Webcast

Meeting Epping Forest

District Council

CABINET
Monday, 9th September, 2013

You are invited to attend the next meeting of Cabinet, which will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Monday, 9th September, 2013

at 7.00 pm .
Glen Chipp
Chief Executive
Democratic Services Gary Woodhall
Officer The Office of the Chief Executive
Tel: 01992 564470
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Members:

Councillors C Whitbread (Leader of the Council) (Chairman), Ms S Stavrou (Deputy Leader
and Finance and Technology Portfolio Holder) (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, W Breare-Hall,
Mrs A Grigg, D Stallan, H Ulkun, G Waller and Mrs E Webster.

PLEASE NOTE THE START TIME OF THE MEETING

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
(a) This meeting is to be webcast;

(b) Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before
speaking; and

(c) the Chairman will read the following announcement:
“l would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to
the Internet and will be capable of subsequent repeated viewing, with copies of the

recording being made available for those that request it.

By being present at this meeting, it is likely that the recording cameras will capture
your image and this will result in your image becoming part of the broadcast.



Cabinet Monday, 9 September 2013
You should be aware that this may infringe your human and data protection rights. If
you have any concerns then please speak to the Webcasting Officer.

Please could | also remind Members to activate their microphones before speaking.”

2, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To be announced at the meeting.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

4. MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the adjourned and reconvened meetings of the Cabinet
(previously circulated) held on:

(a) 22 July 2013; and
(b) 29 July 2013.
5. REPORTS OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

To receive oral reports from Portfolio Holders on current issues concerning their
Portfolios, which are not covered elsewhere on the agenda.

6. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

To answer questions asked by members of the public after notice in accordance with
the motion passed by the Council at its meeting on 19 February 2013 (minute 105(iii)
refers) on any matter in relation to which the Cabinet has powers or duties or which
affects the District.

7. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

(a) To consider any matters of concern to the Cabinet arising from the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny function.

(b) To consider any matters that the Cabinet would like the Council’'s Overview
and Scrutiny function to examine as part of their work programme.

8. CORPORATE PLAN KEY OBJECTIVES 2013/14 - QUARTER 1 PROGRESS
(Pages 7 - 20)

(Leader of the Council) To consider the attached report (C-021-2013/14).

9. DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY - COUNCIL HOUSEBUILDING PROGRAMME
(Pages 21 - 78)

(Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-031-2013/14), as
recommended by the Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee.

2



Cabinet Monday, 9 September 2013

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

EPPING HALL - SPORTS AND LEISURE FEASIBILITY STUDY (Pages 79 - 104)

(Leisure & Wellbeing / Asset Management & Economic Development Portfolio
Holders) To consider the attached report (C-013-2013/14).

LIMES FARM CENTRE (Pages 105 -110)

(Leisure and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-022-
2013/14).

REPAIRS MANAGEMENT CONTRACT RENEWAL (Pages 111 - 114)
(Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-023-2013/14).

PROPOSED REFURBISHMENT OF BAKERS LANE TOILETS EPPING (Pages
115 - 118)

(Asset Management and Economic Development Portfolio Holder) To consider the
attached report (C-024-2013/14).

METHODOLOGY FOR DETERMINING OBJECTIVELY ASSESSED HOUSING
NEED (Pages 119 - 132)

(Planning Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-025-2013/14).
ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE (Pages 133 - 144)

(Asset Management and Economic Development Portfolio Holder) To consider the
attached report (C-026-2013/14).

CAPITAL BUDGET ALLOCATION FOR REPLACEMENT OF PAY AND DISPLAY
MACHINES (Pages 145 - 148)

(Safer, Greener and Transport Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-
027-2013/14).

SECTION 106 CONTRIBUTION FROM THE REDEVELOPMENT OF ST JOHN'S
SCHOOL, EPPING (Pages 149 - 172)

(Leisure & Wellbeing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-028-
2013/14).

REPLACEMENT OF WASTE & RECYCLING CONTAINERS AND THE USE OF
PRUDENTIAL BORROWING POWERS FOR THE NEW WASTE MANAGEMENT
CONTRACT (Pages 173 - 176)

(Environment Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-029-2013/14).

INTRODUCTION OF CHARGES FOR C.A.R.E HANDYPERSON SERVICE (Pages
177 - 184)

(Housing Portfolio Holder) To consider the attached report (C-30-2013/14).

3



Cabinet Monday, 9 September 2013

20.

21.

22.

23.

TRANSFER OF THE DISTRICT COUNCIL'S FREEHOLD INTEREST IN
WALTHAM ABBEY TOWN HALL TO THE TOWN COUNCIL (Pages 185 - 190)

(Asset Management and Economic Development Portfolio Holder) To consider the
attached report (C-032-2013/14).

DIRECTORATE RESTRUCTURING (Pages 191 - 212)

(Leader of the Council) To consider and comment on the attached draft of a report of
the Head of Paid Service to be submitted to the Council on 26 September 2013 (C-
033-2013/14).

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6)
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require that
the permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary
agenda of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks’ notice of non-urgent
items is required.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion

To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business
set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
24 Capital Allocation for 7
Installation of new CCTV
Equipment at the

Langston Road Depot

25 Site of Sir Winston 3
Churchill Public House,
The Broadway, Loughton

26 Langston Road Retail 3
Park

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining
the exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any

4



Cabinet Monday, 9 September 2013

24.

25.

26.

currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least
24 hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential Items Commencement
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall
proceed to exclude the public and press.

3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after
the completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted
for report rather than decision.

Background Papers

Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report
which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.

CAPITAL ALLOCATION FOR INSTALLATION OF NEW CCTV CAMERA
EQUIPMENT AT LANGSTON ROAD DEPOT (Pages 213 - 216)

(Asset Management and Economic Development Portfolio Holder) To consider the
attached report (C-034-2013/14).

SITE OF SIR WINSTON CHURCHILL PUBLIC HOUSE, THE BROADWAY,
LOUGHTON (Pages 217 - 226)

(Asset Management and Economic Development Portfolio Holder) To consider the
attached report (C-035-2013/14).

LANGSTON ROAD RETAIL PARK (Pages 227 - 230)

(Asset Management & Economic Development Portfolio Holder) To consider the
attached report (C-036-2013/14).



This page is intentionally left blank



Agendag_ ltem 8

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-021-2013/14

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013 E_pp!ng ForeSt_
District Council

Portfolio: Leader of the Council

Subject: Corporate Plan Key Objectives 2013/14 — Quarter 1 Progress
Responsible Officer: Steve Tautz (01992 564180)
Democratic Services: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Cabinet review progress in relation to the achievement of the key
objectives for 2012/13, for the first quarter of the year.

Executive Summary:

The Corporate Plan is the Council’s key strategic planning document, setting out service
delivery priorities over the four-year period from 2011/12 to 2014/15, with strategic themes
reflecting those of the Community Strategy for the district. Updates to the Corporate Plan are
published annually, to reflect the key objectives for each year of the plan period and progress
against the achievement of objectives for previous years.

The annual identification of key objectives provides an opportunity for the Council to focus
specific attention on how areas for improvement will be addressed, opportunities exploited
and better outcomes delivered over the coming year. The key objectives are intended to
provide a clear statement of the Council's overall intentions for each year, containing specific
actions and desired outcomes.

A range of key objectives for 2013/14 was adopted by the Cabinet in March 2013. Progress
in relation to the achievement of the key objectives is reviewed by the Cabinet and the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a quarterly and outturn basis.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

It is important that relevant performance management processes are in place to review and
monitor progress against the key objectives, to ensure their continued achievability and
relevance, and to identify proposals for appropriate corrective action in areas of slippage or
under performance. This report presents progress against the key objectives for 2013/14, for
the first quarter of the year.

Other Options for Action:

No other options are appropriate in this respect. Failure to monitor and review performance
against the key objectives, and to take corrective action where necessary, could have
negative implications for the Council’s reputation and for judgements made about the
progress of the authority.

Report:

1. The Corporate Plan for 2011/12 to 2014/15 translates the vision for the district set out
by the Community Strategy, into the Council's strategic direction, priorities and the most
important outcomes that it wants to achieve. The Corporate Plan helps to prioritise resources

Page 7



to provide quality services and value for money. The key objectives adopted for each year of
the Corporate Plan are not intended to reflect everything that the Council does, but instead
focus on national priorities set by the Government and local challenges arising from the
social, economic and environmental context of the district. The key objectives represent the
Council’s high-level initiatives and over-arching goals for each year.

2. Progress against the key objectives was an area of focus in former corporate
inspection processes, in order to assess the Council’s progress in improving the services that
it delivered, and to identify and reflect plans to secure further improvement. Whilst such
external assessment processes have generally been abolished, it remains important to
ensure that appropriate performance management processes are in place to review and
monitor progress against the key objectives, and to take appropriate corrective action where
necessary in areas of slippage or behind-target performance.

3. The key objectives for 2013/14 were adopted by the Cabinet at its meeting on 11
March 2013. From the first quarter of the year, progress against the key objectives will be
reviewed and monitored on a quarterly basis, in order to ensure the timely identification and
implementation of appropriate corrective action where necessary.

4. A schedule detailing first quarter progress against individual actions designed to
secure the achievement of each of the key objectives (at 30 June 2013), is attached as
Appendix 1 to this report. In reporting progress against the objectives, the following ‘status’
indicators have been applied to individual actions:

(a) Achieved - specific actions have been completed or in-year targets achieved;

(b) On-Track - it is anticipated that specific actions will be completed or in-year
targets achieved;

(c) Under Control - specific actions have not been completed or achieved in
accordance with in-year targets, although completion/achievement is likely to be
secured by revised target date or year-end;

(d) Behind Schedule - specific actions have not been commenced or achieved in
accordance with quarterly or other in-year targets;

(e) At risk of failure - specific actions have not been completed or achieved in
accordance with quarterly or other in-year targets, and completion/achievement may
not be secured by year-end; and

) Not Achieved - specific actions were not completed or achieved in
accordance with in-year targets.

5. The Cabinet is requested to review current progress against the key objectives for
2013/14. This report was also considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its
meeting on 3 September 2013, and any comments or concerns raised by the Committee will
be reported to the Cabinet meeting.

Resource Implications:

Resource requirements for actions to achieve specific key objectives for 2013/14 will have
been identified by the responsible service Director/Chief Officer and reflected in the budget
for the year.

Legal and Governance Implications:

There are no legal or governance implications arising from the recommendations of this
report. Relevant implications arising from actions to achieve specific key objectives for
2013/14 will have been identified by the responsible service Director/Chief Officer.

Page 8



Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications:

There are no implications arising from the recommendations of this report in respect of the
Council's commitment to the Climate Local Agreement, the corporate Safer, Cleaner, and
Greener initiative, or any crime and disorder issues within the district. Relevant implications
arising from actions to achieve specific key objectives for 2013/14 will have been identified by
the responsible service Director/Chief Officer.

Consultation Undertaken:

The performance information and targets set out in this report have been submitted by each
responsible service Director/Chief Officer. Current progress in respect of each of the key
objectives for 2013/14 has been considered by Management Board and the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (3 September 2013).

Background Papers:

Current progress submissions for the key objectives for 2013/14 held by the Performance
Improvement Unit. Relevant supporting documentation held by responsible service
directors/chief officers.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

There are no risk management issues arising from the recommendations of this report.
Relevant issues arising from actions to achieve specific key objectives for 2013/14 will have
been identified by the responsible service Director/Chief Officer.

Equality:
There are no equality implications arising from the recommendations of this report. Relevant

implications arising from actions to achieve specific key objectives for 2013/14 will have been
identified by the responsible service Director/Chief Officer.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Key Objectives Progress Update - Q1 2013/14

Proactively promote the policies and reputation of the Council internally and

externally
|Action | |[status |Progress
(a) - Behind (Q1 2013/14) Proposed review of the key decision list in Leadership
Development of ||f||Schedule Team through which Directors can provide further updates on major
high-level corporate projects over a 12 month rolling period. Internal
internal and Communications plan drafted for Leadership Team.
external
communications
calendar
(b) - On Track (Q1 2013/14) Weekly press cutting service with periodic summary
Development of reviews produced for Leadership Team by PR. NB. Resource
a target list of implications for Contact Us email responses. Further review into
media partners potential electronic monitoring alternatives following upgrade of
Newsflash Media Management application September 2013.
(c) - Behind (Q1 2013/14) Draft Strategy produced for consultation pending referral
Development of ||f||Schedule to Web Board and Leadership Team for adoption.
a Social
Networking
Strategy and
increased use of
social media

Engage with communities to put them at the centre of the Council’s policy
development and service design

|Action | |status  |[Progress

(@) - Publication || [On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Consultation Activity reported to F&PM Scrutiny Panel at
of Engagement June meeting. Forward Plan of Engagement agreed.

Charter | |

(b) - On Track |[|(Q1 2013/14) Identification underway in liaison with LSP.
Identification of

key stakeholders|| |

(c) - Facilitation || ||Achieved (Q1 2013/14) The Tenant Scrutiny Panel has been established and

of new Tenant
Scrutiny Panel

tenant members have received training from an external specialist
trainer, in partnership with Uttlesford DC (in order to share costs). The
Scrutiny Panel has been meeting on a regular basis and has chosen to
review the way the Housing Directorate handles complaints, as the
subject of its first Annual Service Review. An informal get-together
between all members of the Tenant Scrutiny Panel, Tenants and
Leaseholders Federation and all Housing Managers is planned, in order
to introduce everyone to each other and for tenant representatives to
understand which Housing Manager is responsible for which functions.

Page 11




Review the strategic direction of the Council to ensure a clear and consistent
set of priorities to facilitate decision-making in constrained times

|Action | |lstatus  |[Progress |
(a) - On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) It was originally planned to produce a new Housing
Determination of Strategy in 2013. However, for a number of reasons, following

the council's consultation with the Chairman of the Housing Scrutiny Panel, the
Housing Housing Portfolio has decided, in principle, that the production of the
Strategy for new Housing Strategy should be deferred until such time as the Local
2013-16 Plan Preferred Options has been published for consultation for a further

year. The main reasons are that the Council's strategic direction for the
Local Plan (i.e. nos. of new homes, locations and affordable housing
requirements) is still under consideration, and the Strategic Housing
Market Assessment (SHMA) (including the supplementary report on
older people’s housing) has not been finalised - both of which are
important foundations on which the Housing Strategy needs to be
based. In the meantime, an interim Housing Strategy Key Action Plan
has been formulated for the forthcoming year, which the Housing
Portfolio Holder will be asked to formally approve later in July 2013, at
the same time as formally confirming the proposed deferral of the
production of the Housing Strategy. All members are being advised of
this approach, through the Council Bulletin.

(b) - On Track [|(Q1 2013/14) A consultant has been assisting in this task.
Development of
council's
Economic
Development
Strategy |
(c) - Behind (Q1 2013/14) Incorporated within the procurement of the waste
Development of ||f||Schedule |services contract. The specification of the final contract will not be fully
the council's specified until after later stages of competitive dialogue. It may
Waste Strategy become necessary to extend the deadline beyond September.
(d) - On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Leader decision on the establishment of a portfolio
Development of holder advisory group prepared. Initial research into leisure needs
the council's (including building on the evidence base of the local plan) is underway.
Leisure Strategy date for initial scoping meeting of the Officer Working Group has been

set. Indicative timetable for the leisure management procurement

B process identified.

(e) - Not (Q1 2013/14) The "Operational Property Strategy" comprises a
Development of |MIAchieved number of facets on which work has commenced. Smarter Working -
the council's This element of the strategy is intrinsically linked to the ICT Strategy
Operational and changes to corporate policy / culture which should help in reducing
Property the EFDC space requirement t the Civic Offices. The detail of how much
Strategy space can be vacated will not be known until the smarter working

strategy has been formulated. A small group of three Assistant
Directors is scoping the methodology for achieving this including
gathering evidence from other authorities that have undergone a
similar transformation. HR have reviewed the Home Working Policy
that will be submitted to Management Board for discussion shortly.
Development of key sites - The development of key sites will have an
impact on the strategy in relation to depot requirements and future
provision. Major Service Contracts - The Waste Management contract
is currently in procurement through competitive dialogue. The outcome
in terms of future depot provision for this service is not yet known.
Planned & Preventative Maintenance Energy Reduction

(f) - Achieved (Q1 2013/14) In April 2013 the Council agreed to provide information
Determination of and advice on the Green Deal to local residents and has provided some
the council's information on its website.

Page212



approach to the
'Green Deal'
initiative

Deliver a robust and resilient Local Plan that facilitates appropriate growth,
whilst protecting the special character of the district

|Action | |[status  |Progress

(a) - Adoption Not (Q1 2013/14) Engagement strategy agreed by full Council on 23 April
of Community & |MAchieved 2013.

Engagement

Strategy for

Local Plan

(b) - Publication ||F|[Under (Q1 2013/14) New timetable considered by Cabinet on 22 July 2013.
of Local Plan Control

Preferred

Options

Consultation

(c) - Publication |F|[Under (Q1 2013/14) New timetable considered by Cabinet on 22 July 2013.
of Local Plan Control

(d) - On Track |[|(Q1 2013/14) This is a significant and ongoing effort.

Compliance with

duty to co-

operate

Promote internal cultural change to break down silo working and implement
new, flexible ways of working

/Action | |status  |[Progress
(a) - Develop Behind (Q1 2013/14) Re-programmed for fourth quarter - original date was
overarching Schedule |too ambitious.

Organisational
Development

Plan

(b) - Review On Track ||[(Q1 2013/14) Draft structure discussed with directors, assistant
senior directors, Cabinet, Appointments Panel and unions. Formal
management consultation started in August with a paper scheduled for September
structure | Council.

(c) - Adoption (none) This is the high-level action for key Operating Models action (c)
of new See progress against the specific next level actions(c) (i) and
organisational (c) (ii)

values and

behaviours | |

(c) - (i) Achieved (Q1 2013/14) Survey completed

Undertake staff
attitude survey

(c) - (ii) Achieved (Q1 2013/14) Values drafted and agreed. Soft launch in July staff
Publication of briefing. PDR process redesigned to cover values. Communications
organisational working on follow up poster/publications.

values and

behaviours and
incorporation in
to working
practices

(d) - (none) This is the high-level action for key Operating Models action (d)

Page 13



Development

See progress against the specific next level actions(d) (i) and

of a more (d) (ii)
commercial
approach to
service
delivery
(d) - (i) On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) To be reviewed in fourth quarter once values are
Adoption of embedded.
customer centric
approach to
service delivery |||
(d) - (ii) On Track |[|[(Q1 2013/14) To be reviewed in fourth quarter.
Generation of
increased
revenue for
traded services |||
(e) - Consider Pending (Q1 2013/14) Following informal discussions with Cabinet Members, it
feasibility of a has been agreed to hold consideration of the feasibility of providing a
one-stop-shop One Stop Shop at The Broadway in abeyance, until after the Senior
at the Management Restructure has been implemented and the Council's
Broadway, future approach to customer contact has been determined.
Loughton | |
(f) - Provision of || ||On Track |/(Q1 2013/14) Management Board has approved a draft report for
a more effective consultation with the Staff Side and individual members of staff
and efficient affected, proposing that the Council contracts with Mears Ltd from April
corporate out- 2014, as part of the existing Repairs Management Contract, to provide
of-hours an Out of Hours Call Handling Service for all emergency calls to the
emergency Council received out of hours (housing and non-housing), together
reporting service with a service enhancement for Council tenants enabling them to
report and make appointments for all repairs out of hours. The cost of
the proposed service would be around £35,000 per annum,
representing an ongoing saving of round £70,000 per annum on the
current cost of the in-house service. The Cabinet will be considering
the proposal, following the staff consultation exercise, in September
| | 2013.
(g9) - On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) The Cabinet approved a completely new Housing
Introduction of a Allocations Scheme in April 2013, effective from 1 September 2013.
new Housing There is a significant amount of work being undertaken to implement
Allocations the new Scheme, which is expected to remove around 3,500 applicants
Scheme from the Housing Register and will require all remaining and new
| | applicants to be re-assessed under the provisions of the new Scheme.
(h) - Exploration|ff|{Under (Q1 2013/14) A draft ICT Strategy has been considered by the
of appropriate Control Leadership Team and this will be presented to the Finance Scrutiny
options for Panel in September for initial Member consideration. This strategy does
smarter working include elements around smarter working and cultural change but
and changes to these themes will need to be developed and taken forward in other
corporate policy specific pieces of work on transformation.
and culture
(i) - Assessment||||Under (Q1 2013/14) Decision made to consider the future of the grounds
of grounds Control service after the first stage of competitive dialogue and the receipt of
maintenance initial tenders. Cabinet to consider in October 2013.
service in
conjunction with
new waste
management
contract
(j)- Update of D (none) This is the high-level action for key Operating Models action (j)

Local Land and

See progress against the specific next level actions(j) (i) and

Paget14




future provision
of Careline
Service

Property () (ii)

Gazetteer and

review of

mapping

service

structure | |

G) - () Behind (Q1 2013/14) Good progress being made but now a risk of progress
Achievement of Schedule ||being stalled through difficulties with data protection requirements.
the 'Silver’ This is preventing the temporary employment of support from
service grade for Broxbourne Borough Council to deal with errors in the existing

the Local Land gazetteer database.

and Property

Gazetteer

(3) - (i) On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Cross functional team considering where a corporate
Completion of function would best fit.

the Gazetteer

structure

considerations |||

(k) - Review of On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Although Essex CC officers recommended that a new

county-wide telecare contract should be procured from April 2014, it is
understood that, following representation from a number of Essex
providers - including Epping Forest DC - Essex CC officers and
members are currently considering the most appropriate way forward,
having regard to the views expressed by existing Essex providers.

Deliver key priorities within budget

|Action | |[status  |Progress

(@) - On Track |[|(Q1 2013/14) On track to date
Development of

revised key

indicator set
based on key
strategies

a consistently
low district
council tax

(b) — Delivery of || |[On Track ||(Q1l 2013/14) On track to date.
all key outcomes|| |
(c) - On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) There is concern about the levels of income from
Consumption of Development Control and Building Control as these are significantly
resources within below their estimated levels at the end of the first quarter. However,
budget overall it is still anticipated that the capital and revenue outturns will

| | be contained within budget.
(d) - Setting of On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) The Spending Review announced that further grants will

be available for Councils choosing to freeze their Council Tax for both
2014/15 and 2015/16. It is anticipated that Members will want to
accept this offer and so Council Tax will continue to be frozen.

Prepare for changes arising from the transfer of public health responsibilities

/Action | |lstatus  |[Progress |
(a) - Under (Q1 2013/14) The local priorities for Health and Wellbeing have been
Development of ||f||Control established. A draft joint strategy for West Essex has been prepared in

a District Public
Health Strategy

conjunction with Harlow and Uttlesford district councils, the West Essex
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the County Council Public
Health Locality Manager. There has been a delay due to the CCG not

Page 15




having yet established a 5-year plan and the first meeting of the West
Essex Wellbeing Board being delayed due to the local government
elections. Now due to meet 24 July.

Maximise potential of the Council's key development sites

|Action | |[status  |Progress

(a) - (none) This is the high-level action for key Strategic Sites action (a).
Development See progress against the specific next level actions(a) (i), a (ii)
of plans for and (a) (iii)

development

of T11 site at

Langston

Road,

Loughton

(@) - (i) Under (Q1 2013/14) Meetings with the owners of the T11 site are taking

Completion of a
development
agreement with
the owner of the
T11 site

Control

place. Timing is linked to the outcome of the waste contract
procurement process and expected vacation of the site.

of development
at the T11 site

(a) - (ii) Under (Q1 2013/14) Meetings with the owners of the T11 site are taking
Facilitation of a Control place. Timing is linked to the outcome of the waste contract

detailed procurement process and expected vacation of the site.

planning

application for

the T11 site

(@) - (iii) Under (Q1 2013/14) Waste procurement provides for contractor to be able to
Commencement ([1||Control remain at Langston Road alternative provided for at least a year.

(b) -
Development
of plans for
the council’s
site at North
Weald,
including
disposal if
appropriate

(none)

This is the high-level action for key Strategic Sites action (b).
See progress against the specific next level actions (b) (i) and

(b) (ii)

(b) - (i)
Consideration of
a report
reviewing the
future of North
Weald Airfield

Achieved

(Q1 2013/14) Report completed and to be presented to Cabinet on 22
July 2013.

(b) - (i)
Incorporation of
recommendation
s for North
Weald Airfield
into
development of
Local Plan

On Track

(Q1 2013/14) Outcome of Cabinet on 22 July 2013 incorporated within
the “Preferred Options” consultation phase of the Local Plan, scheduled
for 2014.

(c) -

Development

(none)

This is the high-level action for key Strategic Sites action I. See
progress against the specific next level actions c (i) and I (ii)

Pages16




of plans for
the disposal of
all or part of
the St. Johns
Road site

(¢) = (i) Jointly On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Joint marketing with Essex CC and the Epping Town

market the St Council is underway with a topographical survey on 15 July and

Johns Road site viewing days on 22 and 24 July.

for sale in part

or as a whole

(c) - (ii) Under (Q1 2013/14) A schedule of the Council’s requirements for a new base

Relocation of the|l||Control for the Housing Repairs Service has been assessed and formulated -

Housing Repairs which has established that a minimum floor area of 1,045 SgM of

Depot by 31 internal space, plus a further minimum floor area of 1,000 SgM. Of

March 2014 external space, would be required. The Council’s requirements have
been circulated to commercial agents to identify suitable premises. No
relocation site identified yet - awaiting clarification of overall depot
requirements in the Waste etc. contract. No risk of impact on
operations yet.

(d) - Disposal | |(none) This is the high-level action for key Strategic Sites action (d).

of the council’s See progress against the specific next level actions (d) (i) and

nursery site at (d (ii)

Pyrles Lane,

Loughton

(d) - (i) On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Planning application refused.

Determination of

a planning

application for

the nursery site

at Pyrles Lane

(d) - (ii) On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Future of nursery service awaits clarification of depot

Relocation of the requirements within the Waste etc. contract. Highly likely that glass

Nursery Service houses will not be required.

from the Pyrles

Lane site

(e) - Deliver Under (Q1 2013/14) The Broadway Regeneration Action Plan, which relates

Regeneration Control to the land under the control of the Council, was adopted by the

Action Plan for
council land at
The Broadway,
Loughton

Cabinet in 2012. Before the development of the Council’s land can be
progressed: (a) The Parish of Loughton needs to decide whether or not
it wishes to provide a new church and community hall on EFDC-owned
land in The Broadway, enabling replacement housing to be provided
elsewhere on the Church’s land. The Director of Housing has written to
the Bishop of Barking (CofE) and the Archdeacon of Harlow
(Methodists) seeking a high-level meeting with them to discuss the two
Churches’ aspirations and intentions, since EFDC needs to move
forward; and (b) The outcome of the proposed re-redevelopment of
the Sir Winston Churchill PH site by a private developer, which may or
may not include some of the Council’s land, needs to be determined.
Once the way forward is clearer, the Council’s Preferred Housing
Association Partners will be invited to submit proposals for the
development of the Council’s remaining land for affordable housing.
With regard to sites not under the Council’s control, the proposed
developer of the Sir Winston Churchill PH site is in discussions with
Estates and Planning Officer about a proposed development scheme.
Following initial discussions with Transport for London about its
development proposals around Debden Station, no further contact has
been received. Negotiations with the developer are progressing well
and it is hoped that Heads of Term will be agreed shortly to enable a
report to be submitted to Cabinet in September. Once approved the

Page 17




developer will submit a planning application and then the development
agreement will be finalised.

(f) -
Development
of depot
provision at
Oakwood Hill,
Loughton

(none)

This is the high-level action for key Strategic Sites action (f).
See progress against the specific next level actions (f) (i), (f)

(ii) and (f) (iii)

(f) - (i)
Facilitation of a
detailed
planning
application for
Oakwood Hill,
Loughton

At risk of
failure

(Q1 2013/14) An additional geotechnical survey has been completed
and a resubmission of the applications is being prepared for August.

() - (ii)
Procurement of
the detailed
design and
development of
Oakwood Hill,
Loughton

At risk of
failure

(Q1 2013/14) An additional geotechnical survey has been completed
and a resubmission of the applications is being prepared for August.

(f) — (iii)

Commencement
of development
at Oakwood Hill,

At risk of
failure

(Q1 2013/14) An additional geotechnical survey has been completed
and a resubmission of the applications is being prepared for August.

Loughton

(9) - On Track |[|(Q1 2013/14) East Thames Group has been appointed as the Council’s
Commencement Development Agent for the Housebuilding Programme. A new Council
of the council’s Housebuilding Cabinet Committee has been formed. The Development
new house and Financial Appraisals for the developments in the first year of the
building Housebuilding Programme, comprising 25 new rented homes on 3 sites
programme in Waltham Abbey, were considered by the Council Housebuilding

Cabinet Committee on 10 July 2013 and it was agreed that all three
sites should be progressed to the planning application stage. The
Cabinet Committee has agreed to utilise East Thames' EU-compliant
Framework Agreements for the procurement of the works contractors,
who will be selected through a competitive process from the Approved
List.

Prepare and plan for the effects of welfare reforms in an effective and co-
ordinated way

|Action

|D|Status

|Progress

(a) - Delivery of
the council's
Welfare Reform
Mitigation Action
Plan

On Track

(Q1 2013/14) Following the formation of an (Officer) Welfare Reform
Mitigation Project Team the Cabinet adopted a Welfare Reform
Mitigation Action Plan in October 2012, which identified 59 separate
actions. Progress is regularly monitored by both officers and, on a
quarterly basis, the Housing Scrutiny Panel. Nearly two thirds of all the
tasks have now either been achieved or nearly achieved, with most of
the remaining third of all tasks either not yet being required or are no
longer required. At the recent 3-Year re-accreditation assessment of

Pages18




the Housing Directorate's Customer Service Excellence Award, the
external assessor awarded “Compliance Plus” accreditation for the
comprehensive and customer-focused approach taken by the Council
to the Welfare Reforms Mitigation Project.

(b) - On Track ||[(Q1 2013/14) A report is going to the July Cabinet to start the
Implementation consultation process for the 2014/15 scheme. Joint work on LSCT

of an updated continues across Essex and there are no reasons at this time to

local scheme of suspect that the 2014/15 scheme will not be approved in time.
support for

council tax | |

(c) - Retention On Track |[|(Q1l 2013/14) The Department for Work and Pensions has not yet

of adequate provided any more information on their road map towards a Single
resources to Fraud Investigation Service or their timescale for achieving this
ensure the objective. As part of the corporate restructure, one of the options
threat of fraud is being considered is the consolidation of fraud officers into the Internal
effectively Audit Unit. This could help in providing a consistent and co-ordinated
managed | | approach to the threat of fraud.

(d) - Retention On Track ||(Q1 2013/14) Further information is also still awaited from the DWP on
of adequate a detailed implementation plan for Universal Credit and the future role
resources to of Local Authorities in the benefits system. To date staff retention has
effectively not been a problem and the performance on both changes of

operate council's circumstance and new claims processing are better than their targets
benefit function |[] at the end of the first quarter.

(e) - Publication || [[On Track |[|(Q1 2013/14) The Councils Benefits and Housing Services continue to

of appropriate
information in
respect of
welfare reforms
and the
implications

work with partners and provide information and assistance where
appropriate. However, as set out above there has been a lack of

significant announcements on how Welfare Reform is to be taken
forward.

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Agenda ltem 9

Report to the Cabinet

Report Reference: C-031-2013/14 _
Epping Forest

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013 District Council
Portfolio: Housing

Subject: Development Strategy — Council Housebuilding Programme
Responsible Officer: Paul Pledger (01992 564248)

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations:

(1) That the Development Strategy, at Appendix 1 of this report, be approved, with
specific attention drawn to the following:

(a) financial appraisals for each phase to be modelled on a 30-year pay-back
period with a positive Net Present Value (NPV) over 30-years, using the financial
assumptions set out in the appendix to the Strategy;

(b) any financial shortfall to be met with subsidy;

(c) the KPIs that are to be used to measure progress, which have previously
been agreed by the Cabinet;

(d) the feasibility reporting format, consisting of:

) the design proposals (the number and nature of units to be
developed);

o a scheme budget estimate;

. a procurement plan;

) a financial appraisal of the site;

) a project timetable;

) a project risk assessment; and

o a recommendation on how to proceed.

(e) the Council will make use of East Thames’ existing EU-compliant
Framework Agreement for constructing the Council’s new homes;

(f) the Council will adopt the East Thames Design Guide to inform the design
parameters and development of each site; and

(9) the Council will adopt the East Thames Employers’ Requirements.

This report has been fully considered by the Council
Housebuilding Cabinet Committee

Page 21



Executive Summary:

The Cabinet has previously agreed to develop around 120 new Council properties over a 6-year
period and that East Thames undertakes the role of Development Agent to deliver this
programme on behalf of the Council. In order to achieve this, a development strategy is
required, setting out the approach the Development Agent and the Council will take, including
what assumptions will be made, the standards used, the consultation methods that will be
adopted, the procurement methods used for construction works and the performance targets
used to measure progress, and ultimately the success of the programme. This strategy has
been considered by the Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee at its meeting in July 2013.
However, decision to adopt the Strategy rests with the Cabinet.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:
Responsibility for the approval of the Development Strategy rests with the Cabinet.
Other Options for Action:

Not to adopt the contents of the Strategy in the format presented and alter any of its statements,
targets, standards, procedures or assumptions. However, this could have an effect on the
feasibility studies already approved by the Housebuilding Cabinet Committee.

To adopt alternative Design Standards and Employers’ Requirements and develop the
Council’'s own. However, this would be time consuming and ultimately delay the programme,
and are unlikely to be much different from East Thames’

To procure the construction works independently of the East Thames framework of contractors.
However, this would require an EU procurement exercise and all of the time and expense that
goes with it and that would mean a delay in Phase 1 of the Programme.

Report:

1. Within the Terms of Reference for the Housebuilding Cabinet Committee, it states that
we will consider and recommend to the Cabinet the Development Strategy for the Council’s
House-building Programme on an annual basis.

2. As part of their appointment, it was a requirement that East Thames prepare the
Development Strategy on behalf of the Council.

3. Particular attention is drawn to the East Thames Design Standards (Hard Copies
available to view in the Members Room), the Employers’ Requirements, the format of the
feasibility reports, the financial assumptions used to compute the financial viability reports and
the procurement method proposed to appoint the developer for the construction phase of the
programme.

4. The Cabinet’s attention is also drawn to the proposed format of the financial appraisals
for each phase, which is modelled on a 30-year pay-back with a positive Net Present Value
(NPV) over 30-years, using the financial assumptions set out in the Strategy. Any shortfall in
funding will be met through the use of subsidy, the approach to which we have already
considered in detail and approved separately.

5. The Development Strategy is set out at Appendix 1 of this report for consideration in
detail and, subject to being satisfied with its contents, we recommend its approval to the
Cabinet, together with the use of the supporting Design Standards and Employers’
Requirements.

Page 22



Resource Implications:

Adoption of the Development Strategy triggers a fee payment in the sum of £3,000 to East
Thames in accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement. This will be met from the
existing budget within the HRA Capital Programme for Council Housebuilding.

Legal and Governance Implications:

Within its Terms of Reference, the House-Building Cabinet Committee is expected to consider
and recommend to the Cabinet the Development Strategy for the Council’'s Housebuilding
Programme.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

None.

Consultation Undertaken:

The Housebuilding Cabinet Committee have considered the strategy and we support its
contents.

Background Papers:

East Thames Design Standards and Employers’ Requirements
Council House-Building Cabinet Committee Report on “Funding the Housebuilding Programme”
(Available for viewing in the Housing Directorate)

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

Since the Development Strategy has a direct bearing on the financial viability and delivery of the
Council’'s Housebuilding programme, the greatest risks are that the assumptions prove to be
incorrect resulting in each phase being un-viable. These risks are mitigated by the Council
being able to learn from the experience of East Thames, who have been undertaking
developments similar to that proposed in the strategy for some time.

Since the Cabinet Committee will consider and sign-off financial appraisals for every proposed
development, the financial effects of the Strategy can be monitored. If, over time, a problem is
identified, the Cabinet Committee can review its policy.

Equality and Diversity:

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment N/A
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
It should be noted that an Equality Impact Assessment has already been formulated for
Housing Strategy and Development.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been

addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
N/A

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Epping Forest
District Council

www.eppingforestde. gov_uk

Matching

Abbass
Beauchamp &
Bermers Moding

High Laver

Little Laver

Wilngale
Magdalan Laver Fyflold 9

North Weald Mareton

Bassett

Epplng Upland
s High Ongar

Ongar

Eppin
Waltham Abbey AR Etanford Rivers

Stapwhord

Theydon  maydes Tawnay
Baks Gaivwet Theycion
Modm

Loughlon

Lambrourne

Suspletord
Abbotis

Buchhurst
um“" Chigwell

Development Strategy 2013-2019

Epping Forest Development Strategy Rag@%



Content

1. Introduction

2. Purpose

3. Context (local and national)
4. What Will We Deliver?

5. How Will We Deliver?

6. Where Will We Deliver?

7. When Will We Deliver?

8. Appendices

KPI's

Pipeline Report

Cabinet “Scheme Approval Report” Format

Economic Assumptions Framework

On-site Management Process

Core File

Terms of Reference for Council House Building Cabinet Committee
Programme and Performance Report Format

List of Sites

TIOMMOOWX>

Epping Forest Development Strateﬁage@@



1 Introduction

Epping Forest District Council currently own and manage around 6,500 homes within
the District. Presently there are 5,700 applicants on the Council’'s Housing Register
who wish to gain access to affordable homes within the District. The Council currently
acts as enabler facilitating Registered Providers (RPs) operating within the District to
develop new affordable housing to meet housing need.

In order to directly meet this housing need the Council has agreed to initiate a
Council House Building Programme to develop new affordable rented homes. This
will be achieved through the use of its own funding and land holdings.

The Council’s Development Strategy sets out what the Council wishes to achieve
from the House Building Programme, details an overall approach to achieve the aims
of the programme and describes a coherent plan to implement these aims.

The House-Building Programme will be delivered by the Council in conjunction with
East Thames Group who have been appointed to deliver Development Agency
Services for the Council, including all development and project management services
and the provision of all professional building services, including: architectural,
employer's agency, quantity surveying, cost consulting, Construction Design
Management, engineering and surveying, but excluding works construction.

This Development Strategy was approved by the Council’'s Cabinet in June 2013.

2. Purpose
Through the Council House Building Programme the Council will:-
Meet the Aims of the Corporate Plan

The Council’'s Corporate Plan 2011-2015 sets out the aims and priorities of the
Council for the four-year period and addresses the challenges that the district faces.
Its stated aim is “Making our district a great place to live, work, study and do
business”. The Council House Building Programme shall contribute greatly to this
aim and supports the four central themes of that strategy namely safety,
sustainability, health and aspiration.

By providing new high quality, sustainable homes in areas that are currently filled
with underused garages the Council will meet the needs of the District's residents
and revive neighbourhoods by providing an environment within which they can
flourish.

Meet Housing Need

The Council House Building Programme will deliver new homes that will directly meet
the demand within the District for affordable rented homes. The demand is clearly
identified in the Housing Strategy, and this Programme shall help to meet the
Council’'s Housing Strategy 2009-2012 and its vision that “Epping Forest will be a
district that has safe, decent and attractive housing that meets the needs of those
who want to live in the District.”

Epping Forest Development Strategy F.Oag@@? 3



Build Sustainable, high quality homes and services

The Council House Building Programme will provide high quality and sustainable
homes to meet the current and future housing need within the District.

The Council will control the type, tenure, and specification and quality of the new
affordable housing provided by the programme.

The programme will expand the Council’s stock holding, and the new homes will be
owned, managed and maintained by the Council thereby increasing efficiencies
within the Housing Directorate, the HRA Business Plan and the Council as a whole.

Create high quality environments and regenerate Communities

The new homes will predominantly be developed on Council-owned difficult to let and
under utilised garage sites. These new homes will improve the existing environment,
reduce anti-social behaviour and contribute toward the revitalisation of existing
communities.

Develop and Maintain a Strong Council

By building new homes on its own land, rather than disposing of it to RP partners
within the District at a discount, the Council will maintain control over its assets and
the HRA will benefit financially from the generation of a long term income stream.
Additionally, the Council will receive the Government’'s New Homes Bonus (with the
“affordable housing premium”), and potentially attract capital grant receipts from the
Homes and Communities Agency, whilst increasing efficiencies through improved
economies of scale by growing stock in management.

Since the Council is able to utilise Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans at
extremely preferential rates, compared to the private loans market, and can recover
all the VAT paid on development fees, it is in an ideal position to deliver affordable

housing within the District at a lower cost than its Preferred Housing Association
Partners.

3. Context

Housing Revenue Account Reform

In 2012 the Government introduced legislation to abolish the Housing Revenue
Account subsidy system and introduce self-financing for Council Housing.

The Government’s policy objectives at that time were:-
» To increase local transparency and abolish the current opaque system under which
there is little connection between the level of rent charged and the resources

Councils have to spend locally;

* To give Councils financial autonomy and therefore more accountability for the
provision of housing services;

* To end decades of complex central control and allow Council housing to be
managed and financed locally; and

Epping Forest Development Stratedl? 2y 8- 282 4



* To ensure Councils have the incentives to actively manage their housing stock on a
long term basis rather than simply react to an uncertain annual funding formula.

Source: Implementing self-financing for council housing, DCLG, 1 February 2011

The Council built its last home in June 1985 and these reforms will provide the
Council with a means of delivering new affordable housing within the District and to
enable it to build more new affordable homes each year than it currently sells under
the Right to Buy.

The Council has agreed that the House Building Programme will be self-funded,
without any financial support from the General Fund and financed from the following
sources:-

o Capital receipts from additional Right to Buy sales as a result of the
Government’s decision to increase discounts for tenants purchasing
their property under the Right to Buy;

e S106 Agreement contributions from developers in lieu of on-site
affordable housing provision;

e Funding from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) (where
possible);

e Borrowing (if necessary);

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) surpluses (generated through
additional financial capacity provided through loans from the PWLB);

e Any other external sources of funding that may be identified or
secured from time to time; and/or

o Cross-subsidy from the sale of other development sites within the
House Building Programme on the open market (if necessary).

Using its own assets to meet housing need

The Council has identified a portfolio of garage sites that are designated as ‘Difficult
to Let’. The Council's research estimates that around 65 of these sites may have
development potential. A further 5 non-garage sites have been identified as also
having development potential. The Council has agreed that, where developable and
viable, these sites will be developed by the Council through the Council House
Building Programme to provide new affordable homes.

4. What Will We Deliver?

Quantum of New Homes

The Council’s initial review of the sites to be used in the House Building Programme
estimates that a maximum of ca.230 new homes could be developed thereon.

Based upon this review the Council has set a target of delivering 20 new homes each
year over the next 6 years, or 120 in total.

Affordable Rents

The homes delivered shall be for affordable rent to meet the housing need within the
District.

Epping Forest Development Strategy feag@@g 5



The affordable rents to be charged are set out in the Council’'s Affordable Rent
Policy, adopted by the Council’'s Housebuilding Cabinet Committee in July 2013, and
will be a percentage of the market rent for that property type in the area.

The rent charged shall be the lower of:-
- 80% of market rents for the location; or

- The Local Housing Allowance (LHA) within the Broad Rental Market Area
(BRMA) for the type of property; or

- An affordability cap of £180 per week.

The Council has decided to adopt an affordability cap which recognises the
Government’s Universal Credit regime and the associated Benefits Cap. Under the
Benefit Cap, the total amount of benefit for which a family in England & Wales shall
be eligible is £500 per week, with single people eligible to a maximum of £350 per
week.

Therefore, with mind to the affordability of the homes and the sustainability of
residents’ tenancies, the Council has used the Homes and Community Agency
(HCA) guidance that weekly housing costs should not exceed 45% of net income.

The application of the Council’s Affordable Rents Policy will result in a maximum
weekly affordable rent of £180 per week (this being 36% of the £500 per week
Benefit Cap under Universal Credit).

All Affordable Rents charged by the Council will be gross and inclusive of service
charges.

Quality

The Council has a significant role to play in improving its existing housing stock,
regenerating neighbourhoods and providing high quality new homes that meet the
needs of local households on low to modest incomes. Through the House Building
Programme the Council will work to provide well designed and cost effective new
homes to meet these aims.

The Council places a great emphasis on providing homes that will last, be cost
effective and be valued by residents. As a design direction, the Council has adopted
the East Thames Design Guide, the East Thames Employer's Requirements and the
Essex Housing Design Guide for the design and construction its new homes. The
Council will work with East Thames to ensure that, for each site, the design
complements and enhances the local neighbourhood in which the homes are built.

The Council will build a range of typologies, both houses and apartments, that are
appropriate to the individual development sites, with a particular focus on creating
sustainable family housing where appropriate.

Through carefully considered design and liaison with local communities, the Council
will develop schemes of a range of sizes that address local needs.

The Council places an emphasis on the sustainability of its homes, environmental
performance and economy of use. Therefore every new home delivered through the

Epping Forest Development Strateﬁagezgﬂp 6



Council House Building Programme will meet at least Level 3 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes.

Each new scheme will go through a design critique process that will enable Council
staff, residents and other stakeholders to have meaningful input into design
evolution.

This co-ordinated approach to developing and designing schemes will ensure that all
relevant Council departments are involved in ensuring successful design, handover,
completion and management.

The Council will work with the Development Agent to provide a comprehensive brief
for each project.

Technical Specification

The Council recognises that the design of the places, spaces and homes built, along
with the quality of their construction, are critical for resident satisfaction.

The Council will use East Thames’ existing comprehensive performance
specification, known as “The East Thames Employer's Requirements” to ensure that
all the new homes delivered by this Programme are robust, energy efficient and cost
effective to residents and the Council.

Key Performance Indicators

The Council will measure the success of the House Building Programme through the
evaluation of key performance indicators relating to the delivery of schemes, cost and
sustainability of the schemes. These can be found at Appendix A.

These will be monitored monthly by the Council’s officers and East Thames and
reported to each meeting of the Council House Building Cabinet Committee.

5. How Will We Deliver?
Review of sites

It is proposed that, in order to achieve the best value for the Council, sites will be
packaged up, preferably using geographical selection. This will achieve economies of
scale for contractors, making them more attractive for contractors and more viable for
the Council.

Each of the 65 garage sites potentially available for development will then undergo a
systematic review and assessment process during the first two years of the Council
House Building Programme, to determine their suitability and viability for
development.

The assessment of these sites will be monitored and reported monthly to the Council

by the Development Agent in the form of a pipeline report (format attached at
Appendix B).

Epping Forest Development Strategy F.Oag@(ﬂ 7



Review of Sites

'\
* Technical Review
* Legal Review
v
: ™
« Capacity Study
cecod * Initial Pricing
e;ﬂgs:w * Feasibility Study y
~
* Cabinet Approval
y,

Primary Phase

Technical review

This will highlight issues that will impact upon or even prevent the development of the
site such as planning considerations, rights of way, rights of light, flood risks,
servicing etc. Any issues highlighted will inform the design direction, technical
specification and cost assumptions used to appraise the viability of the site.

Legal review

This involves investigating the legal title. Once again this will highlight any issues
which could prevent or affect the development of the site such as easements, rights
of way etc. These will inform the financial appraisal and the physical development
proposals.

Secondary Phase

Capacity Study

If, after identifying any physical, legal or technical constraints to development, the
sites are considered viable an architectural feasibility study will be conducted to
determine the development capacity of the site.

Initial Pricing

The architectural proposals produced will be reviewed, along with the technical
information, and priced by the project team and a quantity surveyor.

Epping Forest Development Strateﬁag e B» 8



Financial Appraisal

A financial appraisal will be conducted on each site to determine whether the
development is viable against the parameters set within the Council's Economic
Assumptions Framework. If the scheme is considered viable (either on a stand alone
basis or as part of a wider package of sites) it shall be taken to the Council House
Building Cabinet Committee as part of a package of viable sites for approval to
proceed.

Any site not considered viable for development as affordable housing shall be
assessed by the Council, with the assistance of the Development Agent, for either
other development potential or any other alternative use and the outcome of the
assessment will be reported to the Council’'s Cabinet.

Tertiary Phase

Cabinet Committee Approval

The Cabinet Committee will be presented with a comprehensive report detailing the
scheme details including:-

- The design proposals (the number and nature of units to be developed);
- A scheme budget estimate;

- A procurement plan;

- A financial appraisal of the site;

- Aproject time table;

- A project risk assessment; and

- A recommendation on how to proceed.

Once a project or package has been approved by the Cabinet Committee the
projects shall be progressed to RIBA Stage D by the Development Agent and
submitted for planning approval.

An example of the Cabinet Committee Report can be found at Appendix C.
Appraisal Methodology

The Council will use a loan repayment methodology to determine viability.

The repayment methodology assesses whether the net revenue generated by the
project is capable of repaying the capital loan required to develop the project as well
as the accrued interest.

The Council will use a set of economic assumptions in the appraisal of each scheme.
These assumptions have been derived from various sources, including the Council’s
HRA Business Plan and the actual cost of maintaining and managing its existing
stock. These assumptions are referred to as the ‘Economic Assumptions Framework’
and are at Appendix D.

The Council will consider a scheme viable when the following parameters, set within
the Economic Assumptions Framework, are met:-

- The scheme can repay its loan within 30 years; and
- The scheme produces a positive Net Present Value (NPV) over 30 years.

Epping Forest Development Strategy @&@@@3 9



The Council will also consider the viability of schemes within a package i.e. if an
individual scheme within a package does not meet the financial parameters, but
when it is included within a package of sites and the overall package meets those
parameters, the Council will consider the package to be viable.

Community Liaison

As part of the development appraisal process, the Ward Mmember(s) for the areas in
which developments are proposed will be invited to the meeting of the Cabinet
Committee at which the development and financial appraisals will be considered and
decisions made about whether or not development of the site should be pursued.
This will give an opportunity for Ward Members, as the Council’s representatives of
the local residents, to give their views on the proposals and to raise any concerns.

For those developments that are pursued, during the preparation of planning
applications, the Development Agent, on behalf of the Council, will inform local
residents and Ward Members of the forthcoming planning application, providing
access to view plans on-line. Residents’ Associations will also be consulted where
one exists.

During the preparation and construction of each project, the Development Agent and
contractor will identify and provide a dedicated point of contact for residents to
answer queries, attend any meetings and provide any requested information.

Delivery

Post-Cabinet Committee approval the Development Agent will progress the schemes
through the planning process and to handover.

Planning

Upon Cabinet Committee approval the scheme will be progressed to RIBA Stage D
by the Development Agent and submitted to the Council’s Planning Directorate for
approval.

On site

Upon planning approval, packages of sites will be tendered to procure a Design and
Build Contractor to develop the detailed design (RIBA Stages E onward) and build
out the scheme to completion.

Procurement

The Development Agent will ensure that all procurement is in line with the Council’s
Contract Standing Orders. The Council’'s Development Agent, East Thames Group,
have procured an EU-compliant Contractors Framework consisting of 12 contractors.

Any council in the South East of England may utilise this Framework, and the
Council's Cabinet Committee has agreed that East Thames’ Framework should be
used for the House Building Programme, and that the Development Agent can call-
off contractors from the Framework, and tender each package to every member of
the Framework to ensure value for money is achieved.

Epping Forest Development Strateﬁagezgzﬁg 10



On site

The scheme will be managed on site by the Development Agent in line with the On
Site Management process at Appendix E.

Throughout the construction process the Council's Development Agent will
administer the build contract on behalf of the Council, ensuring that the Programme
is delivered on time and on budget and to the quality and technical standards
specified in the contract.

The Development Agent and the Council will liaise throughout the process to ensure
that the scheme is handed over for occupation as programmed and residents can
occupy the new homes immediately.

The Development Agent will procure for the Council a detailed core file (the content
of which is at Appendix F) providing all necessary technical and legal information on
the development, a Health and Safety File and Operation and Maintenance Manual.

The Development Agent will prepare a Resident Handbook for each new property
describing how their new home works and who to contact if a problem arises.

Post Completion and Defect Monitoring

Post-completion of the new homes the Development Agent will administer any
defects that are identified or reported to the Council during the 12 month defects
liability period.

They will ensure that the build contractor deals with all defects according to the
requirements of the build contract and ensure that the Final Account is agreed.

After the new homes have been occupied for at least 6 months, the Development
Agent will visit residents to find out more about their experiences of living in their new
homes — what they like about the design of their home, what could be better and the
things they don’t like. This feedback will be used to improve future homes in the
Council House Building Programme.

Once the Final Account has been agreed the Development Agent will produce a
scheme review. This shall incorporate:-

- Resident feedback on the new homes;

- The scheme KPlIs;

- The financial performance of the scheme against original approval; and
- The scheme programme against approval.

The outcome of these reviews will be reported to the Council House Building Cabinet
Committee at the appropriate time after completion of each phase.

Governance
The Council has established its Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee,
comprising members of its full Cabinet, to oversee the delivery of the Housebuilding

Programme. Its Terms of Reference are provided at Appendix G.

The Council House Building Programme will have the following governance structure
to ensure accountability, quality control and transparency.

Epping Forest Development Strategy @&@@@5 11



Governance

Approval and Monitoring of Programme

Contract Lead and Strategic Direction

Responsible for Performance, Programme and Operational Oversight

Delivery of Projects

As part of the governance approach, and a requirement of the Development Agent’s
appointment, the Development Agent will record and maintain risk registers for both
the Housebuilding Programme as a whole for each individual development. These
will identify the key risks, the likelihood and impact of them arising and ways for them
to be mitigated. East Thames has subcontracted responsibility for preparing and
maintaining all the risk registers to its building consultants, Pellings.

The risk registers will periodically be reviewed by the Cabinet Committee.
Programme Monitoring

Once scheme approval is granted, monthly meetings will be held where the
Development Agent reports to the Council upon progress of the packages and the
Development Programme generally.

A Programme & Performance Report will be produced detailing:-

- Development Programme cashflow;

- Contract KPlIs;

- Performance against Programme;

- Build Contractor KPlIs;

- Key risks;

- Scheme Reviews;

- Any programme variances (cash or time); and

- Performance against HCA targets (should partner status be achieved).

Epping Forest Development Strategﬂag B 12



Once each scheme is on site, all data relating to the units in development will be
recorded using the Development Agent’s project management system and reports
will be provided to the Council at the monthly progress meeting (reporting format
found at Appendix H).

Programme Control Panels

Pipeline Review Design Review

* Reviews Assessment of Sites from development » Reviews Initial Design Proposals and makes
Agent recommendations to improve and augment
* Filters viable sites to be progressed to design Design
and feasibility stage

Project Board Housing Building Cabinet Committee

* Monthly Monitoring of all projects incl.:- » Approves schemes to be developed and
* Cost Control & Cashflow Monitoring budgets

* Risk Management » Monitors progress of Programme

* Community Liaison co-ordination
* Planning Oversight

* Performance Monitoring

» Operational Control

6.0 When Will We Deliver?

The Council wish to deliver a minimum of 120 new homes over 6 years. A list of the
potential sites for the Council House Building Programme is contained at Appendix .
The Council aim to start building the first new homes before the end of the 2013/14
Financial year and deliver the first handovers within 12 months of commencing the
programme.

The Council will review all of the sites on the list at Appendix 10 within the first two
years of the programme for suitability and viability.

Once assessed the sites will be presented to the Cabinet Committee for approval. A
delivery programme will be composed, which will involve concurrent packages of
sites, to ensure that the 120 home delivery target is achieved.

Any new sites identified will be approved by the Cabinet Committee before being
added to the pipeline.

7.0 Review of the Development Strategy

Although the Development Strategy is intended to cover the whole period of the initial

House Building Programme, it will be reviewed annually by the Cabinet Committee,
which will recommend any changes to the Cabinet for adoption.

Epping Forest Development Strategy Ra%y20 B7 13



8.0 Appendices

A. Key Performance Indicators

B. Pipeline Report

C. Cabinet “Scheme Approval Report” Format

D. Economic Assumptions Framework

E. On Site Management Process

F. Core File, Appendix V in Employers Requirements

G. Terms of Reference for Council House Building Cabinet Committee
H. Programme & Performance Report Format

|. List of Sites

Epping Forest Development Strateﬁagezg&

14



Schedule 1 KPI’'s

Key Performance Indicators

Standard Measures Target
Resident Post-handover resident questionnaire 95% satisfaction amongst
satisfaction respondents
Time Variable target based on initial

Planning: 1% pre-application meeting to validation

estimate for planning
submission

Planning: from validation to approval

13 weeks

Construction time: (excess time over contract completion
date)

108% total days on site
compared to contractual days on
site

Construction time: (excess time over valid extensions
granted)

0%

Construction costs

Feasibility to tender

95% - 105% of estimated cost

Predictability Tender to completion

98% - 102% of accepted tender

Cost per metre”

For information

Whole Life costs

Less than 80% of the
construction costs

Quality of Design

HCA Housing Quality and Design Standards

100% of units meet standard

Lifetime Homes

100% of units meet standard

Secure by Design

Achievement of Part 2 for all
schemes

Full certification for schemes
with more than 40 units

Building for Life

Minimum score of 14

Code for Sustainable Homes

Level 3 as minimum

Defects Resident satisfaction (from post-occupation resident 98% satisfaction amongst
survey) respondents
Defects at beginning of snagging Score of 8 or above on scale
below
Defects at handover Score of 10 on scale below
Defect free | 10
Some defects with no significant impact on residents/client | 8
Some defects with impact on residents/ client | 5/6
Major defect with impact on residents/client | 3
Totally defective | 1
Defects completed on | Emergency 100%
time Urgent 85%
Routine (end of defects) 100%
Site Issues Health & Safety Zero reportable
Considerate Small sites < 40 units Minimum score of 32, no less
contractors than 4 in each section
Waste Maximum of 11 tons per £100k
management Waste generated on site contract value if extenuating

circumstances. Target = 6 tons
per £100k contract value

Waste send to landfill

Up to 6 tons/£100k contract
value

Waste Management data to be collated and entered onto the WRAP portal to ensure

continuous improvement

Page 39




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



> Sl ohlosay] T2 01 | sebeweo) peouwiuied)
a Sl ohlosay TE oF c& soBese o) 4 o¥IS - SPRL
5] 51| 6/ By Gz 0} 2z sebeieq) O o)IS - SpPLIE.
g] 51| A1B53Y 11 03 82 Pue |z ‘0z Sebeleo) & oXIS - SPIOLLE,
5] SR ¢ 03 | sebeleq) peajy s||esueH
5] ToybnoT SR 1085 03 £1G Sebelen) v o)IS - Aepp YoIosa ||
5] Buiddy SR ~ (gg 0} |z SePeR9) g oIS - ||H UORELOIo])
a Buddy SENCEE — (8cilc pue|
110} | soBesen) ¥ oYiS - |[IH UoReuolon
g SE] ENEEEE T/ 01| seBeien) ¥ oUls - SAIQ SAUD.
5] 0 5 NP ng EIGEER] 71 011 SeDEIES)] peoy pajxey],
g EEETANENEN Tro¢ o1 5% SobeIES)) Pnoy As[BuUey,
3 EEEEIETET T6E 0} | sebeien) 380138 PIE[|00;
oa BGqY LEUIEAL [zl 03 | sebeleD) 50|10 5,SEWOLIL ]
DaL| Feaav WEUIEA, Tc 1 sober
(o118 SS010) SPOUSASUOIS
DEL| /eqav WEUTEM, 152 03 BI£ SPEIED) 1NOD 3BULS
L 100 805 9 < DAL Aeqav WEUTEM, v {rzz 03 61z PUE 80Z 0F /81
‘081 019/} SeBeIED) 1
L 100 805 z < J8L| AeqaV WEUTEA, T
L 100 806 z B J8L| Aeqav WETIEA T
3 £10Z 806 r G og1 G0y WETIBA L
0 2102 80 b SOSTOH g [5A0I0dy 10} JOUIGED AINT |21 0Z/S07e ) 7 DaL| feqay HEqIEA, 3
01 poluosold og o1 Hodos pue posieiddy
DAL| 7eqay WEuEMm,
DaL| Aeqay WEUIEAM,
DEL| Aeqav WEUIEM,
0 100 80 ¥ S 6 [EA01 TGy 10 BUIGED) AT [E10Z/S07EL v DAL Aeqav WEUTEM, v
0] pejusseld aq 0] Lodal pue pasielddy
g ERETANENE (921 03 66 SePEIen) Pnog Jues
5] Baqy WEGIE, < 0} g sebeieq) enusay Auusg
5] Baqy WEGIE, {60E 03 20 Sebees) UNog pREeWo.g
g ERETANETE (g 01| sePee o) MIem plPLYdsea
1| siog lopfell
5] 5105 Uop/@ U |
z] ST
=) 1E0U0)
3 IETe]
] PIESAA UHON 155 07 | seBeD) peoy sud
2g PIESAA YHON Paysiowap aq 0} sabeeb ou
Jayuny ‘gl 01 | sebeteB) pug suewsi
a EIEE= Tzl 01 ¢ sePE®=9) 8500 pUI
a BUeZN
=] 15815 DUILDTEJ]
g uojybno
g uojybno
g uo1ybno
g uojybnoT
a TOIUDhoT
=) uoIybnoT
E \USUIY) ¥ 9315 - MOPES I AS e T
TESE 0) ZE¢ sebelen) SPIoLAPE
a d slenbayg |
g (GL9 03 759 SePEIED) peoy 815U
g 107 011G SePEIED) SplRBUSNE
g {1 011 sebed) ploul
7] 0z 031 | Sabeieg) pecy Usal
5] ~ (6 0} | sebesen) Yoo|g O PloybuULdS
191 o3 ¢ sebee o) ola g I
o (203 | sebeieg) d o3l - 9AUQ 8HUSD
{0z 03 | sebeleg) eNUBAY 85Us)
g ezl - 611) 0 9UIS - SPUEPEd
g] (89 - 09) & 3US - SPUENEd
g] 001 - 1) ¥ 3)IS - SPUEYed
=] H 151np{ong {yz 0} | Sebereg) A\ UOJYbNno
a H SN ng {01 03 | SebEIED) A2 MOPUSd
=] H 1510p1ong ZZ 03 | sebeJeg) asNOH weaquloy
a HIsnppRg B 0} GZ SeDEIeb Gnos)
‘{yz 0} | S9Beeb :yJiou) 801 WeaduIoH
oal H = Mg T9€ - ¢|, Sabeleg) 'asnoH sLnog
TWO BT
1P
8poD SNkl SIB14
/585N0H
0 0 L
0 0 SEn G o,
0 0 saus| o0
0 0 swenf
i sals| 107
i Bl senl o
0 0 reoL
0 TE10]
USWIWog | e1epdn JO oeq|  UORdY| JOWERU 2 SBevoE, ENENENEIE
lesteiddy pajuel Z 5| epdn Jo s oY | J010enu0D)| v oEd NETETES
! [eAoiddy aBejg 10l0ld

saunbey'g

B

ueld 2




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



CONFIDENTIAL
Epping Forest District Council E p p' ng FOI’EST
Investment Report D'IS'tr'iC't COU nC|I

www. eppingforestde . gov. uk

Decision Item

Report to Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee

Agenda item / date

Subject Package One
Author

1.0 Executive Summary

1.1

2.0 Scheme Description

2.1 The Sites

2.2 Details

Number of units, proposed typology etc

2.3 Current Use

2.4 Costs
Total Scheme
Build budget (m2 rate)
On cost budget
Any subsidy required
Contingent sums allowed
2.5 Design

Description of the design direction proposed.

Page 1 of 4
EFDC Investment Report Page 43




2.6

Procurement

Proposed methodology

3.0 Scheme Status
3.1 What stage is the scheme
at?
3.2 Does the scheme have
Planning Consent?
3.3 Have the Build Costs been
market tested?
4.0 Strategic Fit
4.1 Fit with development strategy and Council policies.
4.2 Fit with external strategies
5.0 Design & Sustainability
5.1 Code level. Any sustainability issues or features to achieve code.
6.0 Internal Client Sign Off
6.1 Finance
6.2 Housing management
6.3 Property Services
6.4 Rents and service charges
6.5 Legal
7.0 Mix of Units
71 The site disaggregates as follows:-
tl;, ';)'; Beds | Persons Tenure :(i]zr: T)?v';t ci:gi;fw U"ll:i)ts
Affordable Rent £ £
Affordable Rent £ £
Total units
Page 2 of 4

EFDC Investment Report Page 44




8.0 Financial Information
8.1 Comments of the Financial Controller.
8.2 Financial Measure Value
8.3 Target IRR
8.4 Internal Rate of Return %
8.5 Net Present Value £
8.6 Cumulative break-even year
8.7 Cost Value Ratio
8.8 Total Scheme Cost £
8.9 Acquisition £
8.10 Works Cost £
8.11 Total on costs £
8.13 Total Loan Requirement £
8.14 Net Loan per unit £
8.15 First year surplus/(deficit) £
Ten year average
8.16 Subsidy £
9.0 Key Risks
9.1 Revenue Risks:
Mitigation:
9.2 Capital Risks:
Mitigation:
9.3 Reputational Risks:
Mitigation:
9.4 Quality Risks:
Mitigation:
Page 3 of 4

EFDC Investment Report

Page 45




9.5 Legal:
Mitigation:
9.6 Procurement:

Mitigation:

Recommendation The Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee are being asked

to:

Details .

Approve, subject to the satisfactory completion of the due
diligence process :-

The scheme proposals presented herein;

Submission of planning applications for each scheme,
A total scheme budget of £;

A total build budget of £;

Using the East Thames Contractors Framework to
procurement building contractors for these projects.

Appendices

1, Financial appraisal model

2, Feasibility reports

Page 4 of 4
EFDC Investment Report

Page 46




Appendix D

Economic Assumptions Framework For
Epping Forest District Council

Operating / Revenue Assumptions

Affordable Rent

Investment Period 45 years
Rent Increase (above RPI) +0.50 %
Major Repairs Cost per Unit (from year 7) 0.80 % * £1,300 * GIA
Management Cost per Unit £1,327
Maintenance Cost per Unit £910
Voids 1%

Bad Debts 1%
Inflation Elements

Long-term inflation forecast 2.50 %
Management Costs Inflation RPI +1.00 %
Maintenance Costs Inflation RPI +1.00 %
Major Repairs Costs Inflation RPI +1.50 %

Funding Elements
Funding Items Suggested Value

Debt Funding: Development Period 3.3%
Debt Funding: Long-term Financing Period 30 years
Debt Funding: Long-term Financing Rate 3.5%
NPV Discount Rate 3.5%
Approval Criteria

Affordable Rent

Internal Rate of Return (IRR) 5%
Net Present Value (NPV) >£0
Cost-to-Value (C/V Ratio) *** 100 %
Payback year < 30 years

Economic Assumptions Framework Page 47




Appendix D

Notes

Investment Period

This figure is in line with industry assumptions regarding the useful life of a building and the cyclical
replacement of its component parts.

Major Repairs Cost per Unit (from year 7)

This is derived from East Thames research into building lifecycles from the Building Defects Insurance
(BLP).

Management Cost per Unit
Based on Current Council costs
Maintenance Cost per Unit
Based on Current Council costs

Voids

Based on Current Council Performance
Bad Debts

Based on Current Council Performance
Long-term inflation forecast
Based on current RPI projections
Management Costs Inflation

The margin above inflation reflects the fact that over the long term, these costs such as the cost of staff,
tend to rise above inflation.

Maintenance Costs Inflation

The margin above inflation reflects the fact that over the long term, these costs such as the cost of staff
and materials, tend to rise above inflation.

Major Repairs Costs Inflation

The margin above inflation reflects the fact that over the long term, these costs such as the cost of staff
and materials, tend to rise above inflation.

Debt Funding Costs and NPV discount rate

The debt funding costs reflect the Council’s true borrowing costs and NPV discount rate matches these for
the for use in calculating the discounted cashflows.

Economic Assumptions Framework Page 48



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019

Appendix E

1.0
1.1

1.2

2.0

3.0

3.1

On Site Management Process

Purpose of Process

To clarify the processes throughout the period on site.

To ensure consistency in the work practices of the Development Agent, and
ensure that schemes are built to a high standard, are completed on time and
within budget, and meet the funding criteria.

Definitions

SOS - Start on site — The contractual start date of the project which does not
necessarily mean the contractor physically starts on the site

PC — Practical Completion — The date agreed and certified by the consultant
that the works are complete

Contract Completion Date — The date stated in the contract when the works
are due to complete

Valuation — An estimate of the measured work carried out by the contractor
over a set period of time

Interim Certificate- A certified amount to be paid to the contractor by the client
based on a valuation from the consultant

Extension of Time — A period of time assessed by the consultant based on
clauses set out in the contract to justify an extension to the contact
completion date

LADs - Liquidated and Ascertained Damages — A deduction of monies from
the contractor for late completion of the work without a legitimate reason for
an extension of time. LADs should be a calculated amount of the loss
incurred for late completion and not a penalty

Liquidation — The winding up of affairs for a contractor by ascertaining
liabilities and apportioning assets

Determination - The cessation of a building contract under the relevant
clauses stated due to liquidation or non performance

Processes within the start on site procedure

Start on Site Notice

Following start on site the senior project manager must send a copy of the

Page 49



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019

Appendix E

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.4.1

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

Start on Site Notice to the Epping Forest District Council Housing
Development Officer.

Start on Site Grant Claim

The senior project manager should ensure that any HCA grant is claimed at
the earliest opportunity in line with the HCA procedures. A copy of the grant
claim i.e. the IMS print screen should be sent to the Epping Forest District
Council Housing Development Officer.

Tender Price Index for Social Housing (TPISH)

Following start on site the senior project manager must ensure that the
Tender Price Index for Social Housing (TPISH) form is completed and
returned to the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS).

Sign Boards

The senior project manager must comply with the HCA’s signboard
requirements for all Social Housing Grant (SHG) funded schemes.

For the full signboard procedure, refer to the Capital Funding Guide.
Site Meetings

Attendance

The senior project manager must provide a schedule of all site meetings to
the Epping Forest District Council Housing Development Officer. The senior
project manager must attend all site meetings. Where not possible the senior
project manager must ensure that at least one East Thames representative is
present and briefed to raise issues if required.

The meetings shall be chaired by the employers agent who will take minutes
and these will be distributed to Epping Forest District Council Housing
Development Officer.

Role of Group Staff at Site Meetings

The contract is supervised on behalf Epping Forest District Council by a East
Thames. No instructions should be given direct to the contractor by East
Thames or Epping staff. Such instructions must come through the Employers
Agent only.

Contractor’s Report

The Contractors are to submit monthly reports at the site meetings. The

Page 50



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019

Appendix E

3.6

3.6.1

3.7

3.71

3.7.2

3.7.3

report should contain the following :-

Progress for the previous month

Delays or acceleration to the programme

Subcontractors and Suppliers

Any Information Required

Weather / Labour returns/ Health and Safety

Key Performance Indicators required to be collected on a monthly
basis

Client Information

Cost Report

The Employer’s Agent is required to submit monthly reports on contract when
submitting the valuation of the work to date. This should include the following

e Updated cashflow.
¢ Estimated cashflow forecast and final account
e Agreed variations and changes in programme.

Financial Processes

Processing of Interim Claims and Certificates

Requests for payment of all invoices will be sent to the Epping Forest District
Council via East Thames. The senior project manager will check the costs,
and pass to Epping Forest District Council Housing Development Officer to
authorise.

Monitoring of Cash Spend

The senior project manager should monitor contractor’s invoices to ensure
that the pattern of expenditure is approximately consistent with the original
cash flow projections for the scheme. If the contractor appears to be invoicing
at a significantly faster or slower rate than originally planned this may be an
indication of contract difficulties which should be investigated.

Authorisation of Additional Expenditure

There may be circumstances when a variation is necessary which leads to

increased works cost. Under no circumstances should a change instruction
be given without a price being confirmed by the contractor or the Employers

Page 51



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019

Appendix E

3.8

3.8.1

3.8.2

3.9

3.9.1

Agent and the financial effect on the scheme determined.
Any proposed variation must be reported to the Council immediately.

Any variation must be approved in writing by Epping Forest District Council
Housing Development Officer.
Delays in the Project

Authorisation of Extension of Time

The contractor may request an extension of time for delays caused by
allowable factors as laid out in the building contract (e.g. exceptionally
inclement weather). Any such request must be reported to the Council
immediately. Authorisation to issue an extension of time should be given
based on the assessment by the Employer's Agent and approved by the
Council.

Liquidated and Ascertained Damages (LADs)

If a delay has occurred where an extension of time is not allowable under the
contract then it will usually be appropriate to charge a deduction of monies
from the contractor for late completion of the work without a legitimate reason
for an extension of time. LADs should be a calculated amount of the loss
incurred for late completion and not a penalty. The method of calculation for
LADs will be laid out in the contract. The Employer's Agent will advise the
when and where it is appropriate to charge LADs.

Contractor Insolvency and Contract Determination

Early Warning Signs

It is not always easy to spot the signs of a contractor getting into financial
difficulty but if the senior Project Manager notices any of the early warning
signs listed below they should discuss with the Council and the Employers
Agent at the earliest opportunity:

Progress of site slowing down

Sudden contractor staff changes

Lack of materials on site

Persistent market rumours circulating about the contractor
Contractor adopting a more “contractual” approach than previously
Contractor requests for early payments or additional funds
Contractor complaining that they are short of work

Complaints from sub-contractors, or direct requests for payment from
sub-contractors (this is one of the more serious signs)

Page 52



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019

Appendix E
3.9.2

3.9.3

3.94

3.95

3.9.6

Determination

The financial consequences for the Council of a contractor’s liquidation can
be serious. A decision to determine or assign a building contract will only be
taken at the Council. If a contractor goes into liquidation or receivership, the
employment of the contractor may be automatically determined by the
conditions of the building contract. It is important to get the scheme back on
site with another contractor as soon as possible.

Nevertheless the Council must always take legal advice before determining or
assigning any contract and liaise closely with the Employer’s Agent. This will
be lead by the senior project manager The following paragraphs are not a
comprehensive guide, but are intended as a checklist for the senior project
manager in the event of a liquidation or determination.

Site Security

Should a building contractor go into liquidation the senior project manager
must take prompt action to ensure that the site is secured, and if appropriate,
that a security firm is engaged. It is common for malicious damage to take
place in the first few days after the liquidation of a main contractor,
particularly where sub-contractors may have been left unpaid. The senior
project manager must liaise with the Council to gain authority to incur
reasonable costs in arranging immediate security cover. The amount is to be
agreed with the Council.

Liquidators

Agreement with the receiver of a contractor in liquidation may be necessary
to determine the method by which completion works will be arranged. Early
steps should be taken to identify the liquidator. The Senior Project Manager
should liaise closely with the Council solicitors, and the contractor's receiver.
Notifications

The following must be notified if a contractor goes into liquidation

Epping Forest District Council Housing Development Officer

East Thames Head of Development Services

Consultants Report
Immediately after a contract is determined, the Employer's Agent should be

asked to check carefully that the partially completed works have been built in
accordance with the specification, and should invite the NHBC (or other

Page 53



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019

Appendix E

3.9.7

3.9.8

3.10

3.10.1

3.10.2

3.10.3

3.11

appointed) to satisfy themselves on the quality of the work carried out.

Insurance

Contractors insurances may lapse once a liquidation or determination takes
place. The senior project manager should ensure that the insurance officer is
promptly informed and requested to insure any partially completed buildings.
Contract Payments

Under no circumstances should payments be made pending a full
assessment of likely losses. Any contract certificate payments which are

being processed should be stopped. The Council should be notified, and any
cheques issued which have not yet been sent should be stopped.

Updating Information

Property Pages on Sequel Update

When the scheme has its name approved by the local authority and the post
office, the addresses should be updated on sequel, cross checking the floor
areas with IMS to ensure building correct bands.

Variations to original bid on IMS

Variations to grant confirmation may lead to the grant paid back to the HCA
e.g. if a waiver is requested or if a standard is not achieved. If there are any
variations to the original bid information the SENIOR Project Manager should
inform the Council and the Head of Development immediately.

Workflows

It is the project manager’s responsibility to ensure that the appropriate
workflows have been updated and the relevant information for Sequel for this
stage. The internal procedures for Sequel are on the attached link.
Q:\Development\Applications\SDS Sequel\internal Procedures\SDS Sequel
Development Procedure.doc

Service Charges

Service charge information should be completed 6 months before handover
and passed to the Epping Forest District Council Housing Development

Page 54



Epping Forest District Council
Development Strategy 2013-2019
Appendix E

Officer.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



/G ebed

Core File Requirements

SCHEME NAME:

Note - if item included, if item is not applicable or comment

Letter from EDFC solicitor confirming clean title

Confirmation of contractual site possession (with date)

Evidence that contractor and consultants selection in line with EDFC
terms of appointment & procedures

Where capital subsidy to the scheme from other sources, including
public sources, confirmation of the amounts and sources of funding
should be retained

Terms of appointment of consultants

Copies of the building contract document and final account
documentation

Evidence whole life costs assessed at pre-acquisition stage

Copies of Housing Quality Indicator assessments

Evidence that HCA waivers, where applicable, have been agreed for
variations for non-compliance with required standards

Copy of Cabinet approval, and all subsequent re-approvals.

Completed TPISH (Tender Price Index for Social Housing) return
made to BCIS - evidence (email or covering letter) that document
sent also kept on file

An “as built” site plan (not required for street properties)

List of plot numbers, and corresponding full postal addresses and
tenure

Section 106 Planning Agreement

Section 106 Agreement — letters or emails from Local Planning
Authority confirming that the conditions in the Agreement have been
satisfied (copies acceptable)

Copy of Section 38 Road Adoption Agreement. If not to be adopted
note in comment e.g. estate roads to remain private but site abuts
adopted road

Copy of Section 104 Sewer Adoption Agreement. if not to be
adopted note in comment e.g. estate sewers to remain private - join
adopted main in [x] street.

Core File Requirements 28/06/2013

Page 1 of 3



gG abed

SCHEME NAME:

Note - if item included, if item is not applicable or comment

Section 38/ Section 104 — update on expected date of adoption.
Enclose letters from appropriate authorities confirming acceptance
of works/ start of maintenance period/ adoption. NB If adopted,
earlier letters from appropriate authorities are not required.

If development was in breach of old restrictive covenants on title has
any notice of breach been received?

Copy of Planning Permission (if n/a state why e.g. refurbishment)

Conditions to planning permission — letters or emails confirming sign
off of reserved matters and approval of conditions having been
satisfied from Local Planning Authority or explain why sign off not
available

Conservation area consent/listed building consent

Building Regulation completion certificate

Confirmation of date of Practical Completion (note is this covered by
NHBC certification?)

Consultant's estimate of final works costs, and where appropriate a
separate estimate of the non-works elements, e.g. on costs

Restrictive Covenant or Defective Title Indemnity Policies

NHBC/ Zurich/ HAPM documentation. Please note we need final
certificates not cover notes. If copies are not available, please obtain
confirmation from NHBC/Zurich etc. of policy humbers and that
policy is in force.

Environmental Reports — soil reports, site investigation reports.

Environmental - final report. Written confirmation from a third party
validating that recommendations have been carried out. -NB written
confirmation from the local authority that a planning condition to
remediate and to validate the remediation will suffice if a validation
report is unavailable.

Build Contract and Consultants Appointments - only required if no
NHBC

Warranty — architect - only required if no NHBC

Core File Requirements 28/06/2013

Page 2 of 3



6G abed

SCHEME NAME:

Note - if item included, if item is not applicable or comment

Warranty — main contractor - only required if no NHBC

Warranty — sub contractor(s) only required if no NHBC

Deeds of Grant to statutory authorities of rights / easements (e.g.
licences/ wayleaves)

Is the development on a floodplain? If so are there any defences?
Any items incorporated into the build? Agreed mediation plan with
the Environment Agency?

Details of rents, including HB eligible service charges

Any other documentation specifically relating to any interest or
restriction on land and /or build

Confirmation that there are no outstanding matters/disputes with
regard to the scheme e.g. boundary disputes, lack of sign off by
planning authority.

Evidence that the 20 Building for Life criteria have been carried out
and the scheme achieves the required standard.

Required sustainability certificates have been achieved and carried
out by registered assessor on the basis of the scheme designs as
planned and delivered.

Prepared By

[\ =1 1 4 (= 3

Core File Requirements 28/06/2013

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP

Terms of Reference

1.

To consider and recommend to the Cabinet the Development Strategy for the Council’s
Housebuilding Programme on an annual basis.

To consider and sign-off development appraisals and financial appraisals produced by the
Council’s appointed Development Agent for sites previously identified by the Cabinet as having
development potential and that could be included within the Council’s Housebuilding Programme.

To approve the submission of detailed planning applications, and/or if more appropriate outline
planning applications, by the Council’s appointed Development Agent for sites that the Cabinet
Committee considers are suitable for development and viable, having regard to the development
appraisals and financial appraisals for the sites.

To invite ward members to attend meetings of the Cabinet Committee when potential development
sites in their ward are under consideration, and to provide an opportunity for ward members to
provide comments on proposed developments, before development appraisals and financial
appraisals are signed-off and approvals to submit planning applications are given.

To approve the subsequent development of sites considered suitable for development and viable
that receive planning permission, subject to the acceptance of a satisfactory tender for the
construction works.

To approve, and include within financial appraisals, the use of the following sources of funding for
the development of individual sites within the Council’s Housebuilding Programme:

(a) The agreed Housing Capital Programme Budget for the Housebuilding Programme;

(b) Capital receipts made available through the Council’'s Agreement with the Department of
Communities and Local Government allowing the use of receipts from additional Right to Buy
(RTB) sales as a result of the Government’s increase in the maximum RTB Discount to be
spent on housebuilding;

(c¢) Financial contributions received from developers for the provision of affordable housing within
the District, in lieu of on-site affordable housing provision, in compliance with Section 106
Planning Agreements; and

(d) Grant funding received from the Homes and Communities Agency.

To approve the submission of the Council’'s Pre-Qualification Questionnaire to the Homes and
Communities Agency (HCA), applying for Investment Partner status with the HCA.

To consider and accept tenders received for the construction works on sites included within the
Council Housebuilding Programme.

To determine whether, in addition to the potential development sites already considered by the
Cabinet, sites with development potential within the following categories should be added to either
the Housebuilding Programme’s Primary List or Reserve List and detailed development appraisals
and financial appraisals undertaken by the Council’'s Development Agent:

(a) Other specific garage sites comprising 6 or less garages;

(b) Specific garage sites where garage vacancies arise with no waiting list of applicants; and

(c) Specific areas of Council-owned land on housing sites considered to be surplus to
requirements.

Page 61



10. To determine whether sites on the Reserve List of potential development sites previously agreed
by the Cabinet should be promoted to the Primary List, and detailed development appraisals and
financial appraisals undertaken by the Council’s Development Agent, due to:

(a) There being insufficient numbers of properties that can be viably developed from the Primary
List of potential development sites to deliver a Housebuilding Programme of 120 new homes
over a six-year period; and/or

(b) The Cabinet subsequently deciding to increase the size of the Housebuilding Programme and
there being insufficient numbers of properties that can be viably developed to deliver a larger
Programme.

11. To monitor and report to the Cabinet on an annual basis:
(a) Progress with the Council Housebuilding Programme; and

(b) Expenditure on the Housing Capital Programme Budget for the Council Housebuilding
Programme, ensuring the use (within the required deadlines) of the capital receipts made
available through the Council’'s Agreement with the Department of Communities and Local
Government allowing the use of receipts from additional Right to Buy (RTB) sales as a result
of the Government’s increase in the maximum RTB Discount to be spent on housebuilding.

12. To oversee the delivery of the Marden Close, Chigwell Row Conversion Scheme scheme, and in

particular to:

(a) consider the Development and Financial Appraisals;

(b) approve the submission of a detailed planning application and approve the scheme being
undertaken, subject to the estimated works costs being acceptable;

(c) approve the proposed procurement methodology of the works contractor;

(d) award the works contract for the conversion scheme, following the receipt of competitive
tenders; and

(e) agree the capital budget requirement for the Housing Capital Programme;

Membership

Housing Portfolio Holder (Chairman)
Finance and Technology Portfolio Holder
Planning Portfolio Holder

Environment Portfolio Holder
Safer, Greener and Highways Portfolio Holder

Frequency of Meetings

As and when required, as determined by the Housing Portfolio Holder.

Page 62



Council Housing Epping Forest
Building Cabinet District Council

Committee

www. eppingforestde_gov.uk

Information Report

Report title Development Programme and Performance Update
Type of report Information Item
Committee Council Housing Building Cabinet Committee

Committee Date

Agenda number

Author Andy Gatrell, Head of Development Services, East Thames Group

Author’s contact details andy.gatrell@east-thames.co.uk or 0208 522 2000

1 Recommendations

1.1 Note the contents of this monthly exceptions report and associated appendices.

2.0 Balanced Scorecard (Appendix 1)

2.1 The balanced scorecard will contain the EFDC Development Agency Contract Key
Performance Indicators and performance against same.

2.2 It shall also contain KPIs for any construction contracts that have been let. These are to be
agreed prior to execution of said contracts.

2.3 A verbal update will be given by the officer presenting the report. Targets and performance
against targets will be noted.

2.4  Any variance from Target shall be highlighted and an explanation given.

3.0 Development Programme Variance

3.1 This section records total scheme budget expenditure variances over 5%, and out of quarter
/ year movements, when compared to agreed programmes.

3.3  This section additionally highlights key forthcoming milestones on projects, as appropriate
e.g. forthcoming cabinet approvals required, planning application submissions, planning
determinations, Contracts to be let, Start on Sites, and Completions.

4.0 Development Programme Cashflow (Appendix 2)

130517 Development Panel 1

Development Programme and Performancell’la@@ 63




Epping Forest
District Council

www. eppingforestde_gov.uk

4.1  Appendix 2 should be referred to when making decisions regarding approvals. Each scheme
that is going for Cabinet approval will have its individual net cashflow position listed so that
its impact can be seen.

4.2  The Cashflow will highlight any variance from predicted spend and variances over 5% shall
be explained in the body of the report.

5.0 Grant Funding and Internal Subsidy (Appendix 3)

6.1 Any funding awarded or bid for will be reported here and monitored appropriately. It will be
listed, along with targets at Appendix 3.

6.0 End of Project Financial Summaries & Lessons Learnt

6.1  Scheme reviews and their financial summaries will be appended and a briefly adumbrated in
this section along with any key findings. A verbal update may also be presented to the
meeting..

7.0 Monitoring Against Current Cabinet Approval (Appendix 4)

7.1 This is a monthly standing item.

7.2 Appendix 4 will illustrates the current position.

8.0 Risk Register (Appendix 5)

8.1 Any significant Programme Risks in the register shall be highlighted in the report along with
an explanation as to the cause and a note of any actions taken or suggested to mitigate
same.

Appendices

1.

Balanced Scorecard.

2. Development Programme Cashflow.

3. Grant Funding and Internal Subsidy Schedule.

4. Monitoring Against Current Cabinet Approval.

5. Risk Register

130517 Development Panel 2

Development Programme and Performanﬂag)ga@4




Bunsix3 'senssi Bunooa Ao swog ‘aoeds Ajluswe

10 asn JUoIIeOO|[e Uiim JayieBol ‘palapisuod aq 0} pasu
pinom Bupiled 10a.is-4O ‘9AIsUadXe ag pinom sy} ‘pals
-3l 8q 0} PaBU pNoMm UoIIRIS-gNs ‘Jaaamol ‘a(gissod

sl Juswidojara 'sisixe os[e Uoljeis-gns AJIoNI0a(T ‘siely
Bunsix3 ougl usoelpe Joy Buped seplacid Bulpues
-pley Buipunouns pue sabeles ‘lenuajod wawdojaasq

Aepn mojlusd £ 0} Jusoelpy

ol

(01 03 | sebeseb)
Kepp mopuad|

'S1e|} XIS JO X00|d 8|qISSOd 9pIm PO SS900Y "AAOY
Busixe pue pauleias ag 0} 9ABY PINOM PEOY WesqUIoH
Bunuoly serpadold woly ssa00E Jeay 9snoH WeaquloH
wiouy Bupooliaao 0} 10algns ag pinom juswdolarsp

AUy Jjog usalo o} Waoelpy ‘Jenusiod Juswdoeasg

"98NOH WeaquIoH Jo (Yuou) apis fleay

vl

[44

(zz 01 | sabeleb)
8SNOH WeaquioH

"S1e|} 1IN0} 40 %00(q a|dissod oyis

Uinog 'sasnoy ||ews aaiy} sjgissod ‘s}is YHON Uipim peol
ss9008 Pool aAeY sayis Uiog ‘seale asay) Buiaies poY
pue peoy WeaquloH Bunuol) seiusdoid wol) syuiod
$S9008 JBal Ulejal 0} PasuU PINoMm a}is Yinog aus ybnoiyy
Buiuunl pAoY paysiigelsa aAey Aew s)is YHON 'sie|)

10 %00]q A21038 SA1} JUsoElpe WOl BuMooI8A0 0] J0s(gns
aq pinom Juswidojaasp Auy jog usals) 0} Jusoelpe
'sasnoy ‘fpe 0}

SS900B JB3. UIRJUIBI (SIBl4 N0y JO 400|d B(dissod ays yInos
oS

UBnouyy Aoy uleiely ¢sasnoy jo Jied aigissod ays ypoN
salis Yjog 'sayis 4jog Jo auo uo :jenusiod juswdosasg

‘sebeseb 17| yinos ‘sebereb yg| %k
Upou ‘says om| 8s0|D WesdquioH
Je sje|} 0] JusoE(pe pue Jo Jeay 5

8¢

(g€ 01 Gz sebe.eb :yjnos)
(g 03 | sabe.ed :ypou)

8S0|D WeaquioH

'SIe|} IN0J JO %00|q 8|]1Ss0d

'S80 }98-}40 0] Bale BulAlp say1o[o UIylm paplaocid ag pinoo
Bupyied j9a155-140 aWog ‘paresiidal ag pinoo juswdoeAsp
sIUl v'H Alenis3T Ag sie|4 ‘oup ol padojaasp usaq sey
9SNOH aUINOg 4O UHoU 8IS Je|ILUIS "PaUISoU0D aq PINom
slauue|d ‘asnoH aulnog 1oy Bupiied aiis Uo |[e sAoWwal
pinom sabelel asay} Jo [BAOWSY ¢,8SNOH auInog Jo siely
‘0Urg 8yl Aq pasn Buiaq sabeleb aly ‘asnoH suinog

wioly Bupoolsaao 0} 30algns ag pinom juswdolaasp

Auy “12g usaln 0y aoelpy ‘lenualod swdojaasq

8snoH aulnog o (Yinos) apis /lesy Sl

14

Page 65

(9¢ 03 Z| sobeueB)
asnoH awnog|

1H 3sinyyong

sabeleb ploA 9,0z Uey) ssa7 =

‘sdoid jo {pieH=g ‘Ase3=}) Sjuswwod 913 plep |enjuajod juawdojaaag a)Is abeieb o} asuesjug Jo UoeDOT fyduz [sabeieg [sabeien ays abelen
1O "ON "Xe\ JneQ Jo aseq % juesep | |ejol
sabe.eB ploA 9%0¢ uey) alo| = I
sabe.seB ploA 9%0¢ pue %0z Usemiag = Loy

(45 le]
juswdojana( 1o} a|qeyng

awwelboid Buip|INqasnoy [1I2uUno) 10} Sa}IS [euajod




sjulod ss3008 JBa) OMm] "BNUIU0D pnoo sabeleb Bulurews)

(8¢ 0} | sobeseb)

‘gl 01 | sabeleb jo eale ay} ul AluQ ‘jenualod JuswdoeasQg pe1Buldg /| pue G| usemleg [ yoolg 9 prlbuldg)
"Aluo mojebung ajbuis s|qissod
'S9NSS| 1001 881 'SaNss| BUMOOIISAD ‘MOLIBU SIS B)IS
ssoloe pue YBnoly) siusipels) 'sjybll ssa00e asalj} ulejal
0] aAeY ‘Algewnsaid ‘pinom juswdol|aasp Auy sisIxe
os[e ‘ays YBnouy} ‘s)is JO pUS UIBYINOS WO AAOY "HNOD
-a10} 0o saluadold BuIpUNOLINS WOy $$800E Uelisapad (91 0} ¢ sebeleb)
pue tenoiys Wbis ‘yegie ‘[ejusiod juswdojersg pleubulds 9¢ pue ¢ ussmiag 9l yoo|g g pRubuldg
"smojeBung oM} a(qIssod 'Ssa00e AemyBiy poos 'ss|ged
19 pesylaas 'sanss| jool 8al] ‘sanss| BuMoolaA0
0] anp Asu03s a|buls ag 0} pasu pinom Wawdojaasd )
‘dIYSIBUMO [IOUNOD UL AIJUSLIND S| SNUSAY LISISOAA 1T Yok
‘BaJE 3)IS SU) UIYIM Pa)eIodiooul S| SNUSAY UISISSAA (2 01 | sabeleb)
¢ 40 uspleB Jeal ayy JI Ajuo ‘Jenusiod Juswdoaasg SNUBAY UIBISSAA 1 0} Waoelpy / g 9)i§ - aAlIg S1UdD
'smojebung om} a|qissod ‘sanss| Buooliaro
0} anp As103s a|buls ag 0} pasu pinom wawdojaasq
‘8IS $S0J0B JUaIpeIB 9|qelapIsuos ISIXe HNoo3Io)
ojuo saipadoud Bulpunolins woly siulod sssooe Jeal
snoJawnp wapnid ag Aew sallepunog Jo Juswisnipe-al (0z 01 | sebeleb)
awos ‘adeys premime s| ais ‘Jenusiod Juswdosrsg SNUBAY 81JUaD gl 0] Jusoe(py oC ELUETAVETHIET,
puidd3g|
%ez ZZL -6l
pesiy 4 O 3§ - spuepjied
ona uouleS G pue spuepiled g Usemiag
|
Silta %zT 89-09
spuepiied |/ 0} jusdelpy 6 g 8)s - spuepjied
"a|qissod aq
Aew smoleBung uaase pue sasnoy xis ‘padojoasp sesie |je 4|
‘paulelal aq SN esay) sjuswabuelle
$89008 apIs 10 Jeal aaey sBuljjamp Bunsixe spueplled pi 0} Waoelpy
ISO "WUOS JING UIYJIam pawuioy a1e s)o0|d jo ajdno)
'S9YIs J0 awos Buissaooe (gzl 03 0LL pue ool o3 | sabeleb) 00} - G/
syredioo juoly 1e spieAunoo abie| aaey awog Bupjied Jood eale abeleb Joulsip L suoieoo)
AIBA 'SOYIS JUBISHIP 4O Jaquinu e 1o} :jenusiod juswdoiaasg SNoleA UoWwWoD alesladoon 9z VY 9§ - spuepjied
ajesiadoo)n
"SOSNOL OM} 9|ISSO4 'S1e|} DUIISIXe
wiol) senss| BupjooparQ “(Uoisirold Bupjied 19a1is
-1J0 Woyy pede) peol $s300B UO 3okeq S} LN}, pinod
Wawdo@Asp maU pue peoy alowoe|g Wolj usxe)
aq pNoo ss300E ‘I19AsmoH JUswdo@Asp [enuspIsal 1oy
a|qens Alenorped jou s| Bale [eiauas) 1S0| 8 pinom Aeppn uobnoT g6l (g 03 | sabe.ed)
saoeds Bupiied Jeo p j¢ [euonippy ‘Jenusiod Juswdosasg 0} 2| 0 Jeal 0} peOl 889008 BIA ve Aepp uojybnon

"SYer} INoJ 40 %00[q
8|q1ss04 ‘pajeiodiooul ag pinod eale Buikip sayjo0

Page 66




"3)IS 8|0 UO paplA0id aq p|nod Sjelj pawoolpad auo

X "0Ug ey} passasse Ajsnolasid dnolsy swoH ‘padojersp

sI a)Is 8|0y 41 Bupyied sbeleb jo sso| yyim swajqold

‘aYIs ajoym Uo papirold ag pinod sie|) pewoolpag

U0 X oup 1ey) pessasse Aisnolaald dnolo swoH ‘padojeasp
sl a1is sjoym JI Bunjied ebeseb Jo sso| yyim swisqoid

pey Aisnolasid s1eo1j0 Buiuueld fenusiod juswdoaasqg

peoy sianbayyd Lg pue g/ usemieg

8l

8c

(g5z 03 Lgz sebeued)
g 9)is - peoy s1enbayo

"smolebung

oM} 3qISSOd '[I0UN0Y 8L AQ PaUMO AjJUSLIND

sl ezg| ‘sealaym ‘ployasly si peoy slenbayp ¢ ON ‘peoy
slanbayD yim uoiounl Je uspiam 0} pasu AeW molleu

peos 88900y 'SaNss| BuBooIsA0 0} anp Asiols o|buls
slanbayn z JequinN -onews|gold agq Aew

Buiolaies asnyay peoy sianbayD Yiam uooun( je uspim o}
pasu :MOoLIBU pEOI 883900y 'sanss| Bupjoolianro o} anp Aslois
a|Buis aqg 0] paau pinom juswdolaas ‘Jenualod wawdojaasd

peoy sianbayy ezl pue g usemieg

74

(12101 97| sabeseh)
V 9IS - peoy sianbayo

"smolebung

om} 8]q1ssod dIUsIBUMO [I0UNOD UI ARUSLIND S| BALIJ
lousasolsy | oN -oljewsigold ag Aew Buiolaies ssnjoy
‘PROY J91S8UD Uiam Uonoun( 18 uspim o} pasu imolleu

peol $8900y 'sanss| Bupjooliaao o} anp Aslois s|buls

| JaquinN -oiewsigold aq

Aew Buioialas asnjay peoy JalsayD Yiam uoroun( je uspim o}
pasU :MOLIBU prOl S8900Y 'Sanss| BuoollaA0 0} anp Aslois
a|Buis aq 0] paau pinom juswdojaasq ‘Jenualod wswdojaasq

peoy I8issys STl PUB LEL 0 Jesy

44

(529 01 g9 sabe.eb)
peoy 19)sayd

"smo|eBung om} a|qissod oljewa|qold

aq Aew Buioiales asnjoy 00} ssaooe Uelisapad saxe)
SUET |[BH UoHap|y 98 "OU ‘LNooaloy s,8)is aly woly abesed
e 10} SS9008 $8)8) POy slanbaysd Lgl 'ON [IounoD

au Ag paumo s| sUET ||eH UoHeplY Z8 "ou splalusng
Ua Uorjoun( 18 uspim 0} paau Aell MoLleU peol SS800yY
'sanss| Buoolaao 0y anp Aslois s|Buls ag 03 pasu pjnom
wawdojaasg aul |esusD 0} Ajlwixold aso|D “eale 1Noo
-210J Uy 181xe sjusipelt desyg ‘Jenusiod juswdoaasg

SUET |[eH UOLISPIV g6 03 £8 40 leay

0c

(02 01 LG sabeueB)
splduysng|

uojybnon

"smoleBung omy a|qissod

oljews|qold ag Aewl BuloiAles asnjoy "UN0O3.0)

W01} SS9008 JB|NJIYSA USXE) SABY B PUE B¢ Slagquiny
Pl Ulam uoiioun( Je uspim 0} pasu Aew :molieu
peol s8900y 'sanss| Bupjooliaro o} anp Aslois sbuls
aq 0} pasU pinom uswdojaasq “lenusiod uswdojaasg

pie!

N 67 PUE g Usamiag

4%

(zL 01 | sabeieb)
PIRUIIIAIY

1ebuo ybiH

"S9SN0OY G /i 9|qISsod

‘9)IS UO UOIIeIS gns 0111093 “(Usalo) splemals a¢ 01 abeleb)
sso00e a)eAlld auQ ‘pue| passelt Buuiolpe |njesn 'sseooe
pPo0D) 'ZG "ou 0} 1xauU ayis jo ued :jenusjod uswdoleasg

peoy UssID) spIemalS gG Jusoelpy

04

(0z 03 | sebeseb)
peoy uaalo splemalg

"S9SN0oY 881U} 9|1Ss0d
1ea. 0} Bupjted yum prabuuds juoly pinod juswdolaas
‘883008 AemyBiy poosy preubunds 2 pue g woly

%lc

Page 67




‘smolebung aaJy) a|qissod Aisydiiad

9}IS 0} 931 "9JIS JOAO SS|JED LOITROIUNWILIOD [9A3)

yBIH -oijews|qo.d ag Aew Buloiales asnyey PeO. $89008
10 BpIs yoea Uo uoljeis-gns AlI0LI08[S PUB JaUMO ploYaal)
0} anp JNoIYIp aA0.d Aew SIU} ‘19A9MOY PROY S|IIUSHUAA
U Uorjoun( 18 uspim 0} pasu Ael Mmolleu peol sssooy
'sanss| BuooaAo 0} anp Asuos a|Buls ag o) pasu

(08¢ 03 G¢ sebeued)

A1l Aioa pinom juswidoleeq “lenuejod uswdojaasg SIIIUSUUAM 17 JO Jeay 4" /2 peoy s|IUSHUM|
papirold aq piNoo sjel ¢ 1ey) passasse (pue| pasnun)
Aisnoiaaud sey dnoio swoH |enusiod juswdolaasq 980|170 sIayoley | / 0} Jusoelpy L L 9s0|D siBydjeyL
"smoleBung a1y} 8|qIssod ployaaly ale sallid OLL
pue go| slequiny -oews|qo.d ag Aew Buioialas asnjey
‘aleT salIAd Una Uonounl 18 uspim o} pasu imollieu %L
peol 88900y 'sanss| BUNOO(ISA0 0} anp Aslojs a|Buls (601 01 g sebeueb)
2 0} pasu pnom juswdojaasq ‘lenusiod uswdojaasq aueT salAd 0L 01 001 40 Jesy 9 ac g 9)is - aue] salifd
"smo|eBung om} a|qIssod a1}
Meo ainjew Alap 'senssi Bupjoolia Ao 0} enp Aalols sjbuis (zL 01 | sabeieb)
aq 0} paau pnom juswdolaasq [elualod wswdojaasg /2L 01 60190(d Jel} 40 Jeay 9 zl \ 9)S - sueT salifd
'S1e|} OM] |(ISSOd UOISISALOD
10 18ISU0O plnom Juawdolaasp ‘ai081aU) ‘aA0dE Siejy
10 Wwiloy Jeinoipuadiad Jamo| wioy sainjonlis aberes (165 01 LgG sabeleb)
‘888008 AmUBIY poosy ‘Jenuaiod juswdoljaasg 1IN00310) BIA ABAA HOIOSBIIB HO 9 1L g a)s - Aepp yYolosaep|
'S1e|} 831U} /OM] B]qISSOd JUSUUBJWS 0} S9a1) Ulelay
‘palapIsuUcD Angeled ag 03 aAey pinom Bupled Bunsixs
pue map ‘sasnoy Buipunolins usas|s Buisixe sy 0} (sh]
salyjioe) Bupiied Buisixe uo yordwi Jofew e aARYy piNom aueT 0} Of7 sebeleb) auen
wawdojaasp Auy WBls ‘Yede ‘enuslod wswdojpasg |leH Uolaply JemoT g 0} | ausoddo z 9 IleH uoyap|y Jamo-]
(ease Ajuswy)
‘llelap Ul palojdxs 194 jou - [enusiod juswdojaasq mopes|y As|Bue gz-cz 031 Jusoelpy L L g 3)is - mopealy Asjbuer
“Al0J0IpRILOD
ale Ue|d/ases| alj} - 9SED| B 9ABY AR SMOPESI
AsiBue gz ‘puel JoAo Aem Jo 1Bl e sey smopesiy As|Bue
¢ 'smopes|y As|Bue Lz Jo 8ses| sy} UIylim papnjoul usaq (ease Ajuswy)
Alsnosuolla sey pue| sy} 4o swog ‘[elusjod juswdojaasg mopesiy As|Bue -1z 03 Jusoelpy L L v 9IS - mopeay As]bue
¢,90eds Usalb jusorlpe ol JUSWdO|SASP PUSIXT "sasnoy
abie| oM} B|qISSO4 'SUOITRAS|S Jeal pUe JUO. 0} $931)
urelay ‘Aemjied Wwolj ssioN 'sanssi Bupjoojiaao Jolew oN (ece 01 zee sabeleb)
‘aBejuoly ‘sseooe AemuBly poos “Jenusjod uswdolaasd splalApeT Sy 03 8¢ aysoddo o] 2 spRiper
"papiaoid |IIH AS[[eA BlA SS800E pUE pI SS9008
aq p|Noo sie|} paq ¢ X & pue sie| pad | X i 1y} possasse ueq jusoelpe ayelodiooul pinod
Aisnoiaaid sey dnoio swoH Jenusiod juswdoljaasq 80D AQUy 0z 03 ‘Tpy L ¥ aso|D Aquy
"smoleBung omy a|qissod
9|q1ss04 ‘senss| Bupjooie Ao 03 enp Asiogs o|buls aq o3 pesu ZLL /001 (rz 01 €| sobeueB)
pinom juswdolaasg WbIIs ‘Yeqle ‘jeiusiod juswdoipaed| Z11/00L PUB 86/08 S300Iq Jel) usemieg 2 4" SPIRYAIIH
"SMOJEDbUNQ 88143 9|qISS04 oljews|qold agq Aew Buidiales
asnjey (XeWw Wi g) UonoLisal ssa00e Ad pajwl| &g
1 JUsWdojeAa aleymas|a |enusalod ssaooe ON PeoyY
aBplayIT Ypm uoroun| je uspim o3 AljIge ou molieu
peol 8900y 'sanss| BupoojaA0 01 anp Aslols a|Buis (gL 01 9.9 sabe.eb)
|im Juswdoleas a1aymas|e [enualod peoy sbpuayla v/ pue g/ Usamiag Sl o9e peoy abpusiy3|

$58008 ON 'peoy abpusyig yim uoioun( je uspim o3 Ajige
OU :MOLIBU PBO. S8800Y 'sanss| BUM00I8A0 0} anp Aslois
a1BuIs aq 0} pasu pinom Juswdojersq [enusiod Juswdoljaasg

Page 68




cl

$S9008 0} JUsoelpe saaly alne Bulesolal pasu pjnom
uonels-gns AJIoU108|a |jews Iaaamol ‘Buluspim 1oy
Anunpoddo siow saAIf /| diysiaumo [1oUNoD Ul gL pue
/1 Uiog peoy sussnd Yilm uonoun( je Ajjeloadss ‘Uspim
0} pasU Molleu peol sssooy ‘Jenusiod Juswdosasg

peoy sussnyd 6| pue /| usamiag

[ 44

]

(sG 03 | sebeseb)
peoy susanp

"Se|} IN04 JO X00|q |ISSOd USalIos pjnod saal} ybnouye
‘walgold ag pjnoo Buoojisao ‘suspleb [enuspisal Aq
papunoLIns a1S 9)is Jo sapis om) BulBpIog S83813 aINjE
‘paulelal ag 0] aAey Aew pp0Y ‘(AousBy JuswiuoliAUg

10} Algewnsald) ssaooe 10} paplaoid si ajeb 'sesinoolajem
Ag sapis om} Uo palaplog aq 0} sieadde a)ig ‘Uspim

0} pasu AeW :MOLIBU peOl $8800Y ‘[efjuaiod juswdoljaasd

pug suewsn|g /| pue 9| usemyeg

ol

(paysijowsp

sabeleb ‘oug

Jayuny ‘gl 01 | sabeleb)
pu3 suewsn|g|

PIESAA UMON

'S9SNOY |[eWs 931l 9|qIssod [nybullesw

swdoeasp Aue axew 0] papnjoul ag 0} PasU PINoM
siy} ‘sabeleB auy 4o Ynos sisixe pue| Jo eale able| v
‘paulelal 8 0} SPasU sIy} ‘proY Spieuoa] IS /g pue 6e
slaqunu Uaamyag WoJ) suni yeys a3is a4y Ubnouyy sisixe
Aem Jo Bl BuiisiXe Ue ‘UoIIpPe U] 7| Jaguinu ssaooe
Japlo Ul paulelal aq 0} spasu yiedioo) Buisixe ‘Isasmoy
‘a)Is 0} 889008 9|qeuoseay [enusiod Juswdosasg

80|10 puUnod G| PUE 7| Usamiag

cl

(zL 01 | sabeieb)
8s0]9 punod

"smolebung

1noy /a31y} 8|qissod -onewsiqold aq Aew Buioiales

asnyay 'sanss| BupjooleA0 0} anp Asiols aiBuis ag o) pasu
AlaXI| Aioa pinom juswidolaaaq ‘qelb-pue| jo suBig Paumo
[IOUNOD 89 PINOD ‘UMOUMUN SIS JO ISM-ULIOU 0} pUE|

10 diysisumo Alsydiuad syis punole 1s1Xe s9a1) aInje|y
‘paulelal aqg 0} aAey Aew pue sisixe saljadold aueT

90H 40 Jeal 8y} 0} AOY Sjeledag 'sanssi A0y aldissod
Uia SISIXS UoIjeIS-gns AJol10s|T 'ssa00e Uelisapad

usye} aAey saipadold jessyduad Jayio jo Jequinu able| e
pUE PEOJ $S300E 8} WOI SSS00E. JBNOIYSA UdXe) sey sue]
90H 6 "'ON "dIysiaumo 1oUNoD Ul ale sue] aoH /G pue
9A0ID) SIBWIEd i UIOQ (9A0ID) SIBWed Yiam Uooun( uspim
0] pasu Aew ‘Mmolleu peol ssa00y ‘[eljuaiod juswdoljarsd

201D slalljed pi 0} 0F J0 Jeay

%8¢

14

(cz 0} | sebeseb)
anol9 siswied|

BuiazeN

"smolebung

da ajqissod 'senssi Buooliaao o} anp Aslols s|buls aq

0} pasu pinom Wswdojaasg -olews|qoid ag Aew Buioiales
SN oy |10UNOYD BU} AQ PBUMO S| SISA0ID 92 ON 'SISA0ID
U Uorjoun( 18 uspim 0} pasu Ael Mmolleu peol sssooy
'SISIXS PEOJ SSS00B OO SSI00B Ljm LoIIeis-ans AyoLios|g
‘ISIX8 POl 883008 /UN00310} ojuo saitadold Buipunolins
woly sjulod ss800€ Jeal SNoISWNN "S|deulelsns paulasp
aq 0} ARy pinom Jswdojaasp AUy J[og USRI Bl UIYIM
Algaius sl ays ayl Bl ‘Hegle ‘lenusiod juswdopasg

SIBA0ID GZ 03 JUoElpyY

%8¢

8l

(gL 01 g sabeieb)
SI9A|0D)

Page 69

usLIn m:_e_ou_ms__



Asqqy weyjjepm

"smolebung aaly} 8|qissod

“1N0o810} 0juo sailadoud Buipunouns woly sjulod

$89008 JB|NoIYaA snosawnp Aslols a|buls aq o} aaey Aew
wiswdojaaap sanssi BunoolaaQ ‘ablaa uaalb Bunsixs
oo Buiyoeolous Ag ape|S Usal Uiim uonoun( e uapim
0] podU ABW ‘mOlIBU PRl SS90y [ehusiod juswdoiaasg

%cC

apelo Usslo) Lg pue gg Usemieg

1T

(g¢ 01| sobeieb)
ape|o usalo

‘(Jou §1 sUO) smojebung om) a|gissod pajis-al uoiels
Buidwind y “As.ois a|buls ag 0} aAey Aew juswdo@Asp
'sanss| BUMOOIIBAD 'GZ pUB g Usamiag molieu

peoJ S8300Y ¢,91800]-3] LUORISOd pIEMME U pejeoo| aiis
uo uoness Buidwind Jajepa sawey ] ‘fenusiod juswdoaasg

spuelAelo) Gz pue g usamiag

-

(9 01 | sebeueB)
spuejfels)

slog uopfayL

¢S1el} Jo xo0(q [[ews Aldissod ‘pauiuliaep

seale Jusoelpe Jo diysiaumo |iun Juswdoersp

10 8718 ayewisa 03 Jnoiyid oliews|gold ag Aew Buiolales
SN oy PaUspIM 8¢ JOUUED PBOJ SSI00E 810818}
‘ploysaly ale peol SS9008 4O apIs Jayie salpadoid yiog
'ssalppe 0} saal} pue safipsy ainjewl aWog ‘molleu

Aaa ayis 03 YbBnouy) peods sseddy 'sanssi Bunooaao
SSaUPPE 0] PasU PINoM JusWdoaAs UMmOUMUN pUE|

10 seale jusoelpe Jo diysisumo ‘Jenusiod wawdoljaasd

pesiy
s||esUeH gG pue splaipiied ¢ usemieg

o«

9l

(61 01 sabeieb)
V 81IS - SpIaipjied

uopfoy

"smojebung

WB1e s|qIssod (ssa00B MaU 10) peoy UoiRIoW Ul Buljjamp

payoeap ysijowsp 2Aljeulaye) sbuiping Buisixs ussmiag
deb pajwi| 01 snp sigissod ag jou Aew ‘1oAsmoy ‘Bnusiy

S,1819d 1S Ul Uoioun( 1e uspim 0} pasu molleu

peol 88900y 'sanss| Bupjoolia Ao 0} anp Aslols s|buls

2 0} pasu pnom juswdojaasq ‘lenusiod uswdojaasq

%0¢

BNUBAY 8,1818d 1S P pue gy Usemieg 6

0g

(0g 03 | sebeleb)
3aNnuaAY s,J9)8d 15

"smoleBung a1y} a|qIssod ([ Xew Wi g) UoIjoLlsal
ss9008 Ag paywl aq ||im Juswdoleasq olewsiqold
aq Aew BulolAIss asnyoy 1NO0S10) 8L} WO SS3008

uaxe) aaey saipadoid Bujuiofpe snosewny paulelsl aq
0} pesl Aew snUBAY $,1918d 1S Ly PUB 5E U9amiag woly
sunJ yeyy ayis auyy ybnoayy sisixe Aem Jo ybu Bunsixse Uy
Wwawdo@Asp 0] 8Np paAowal Uapim 0} AJlIde ‘molleu
peol s8900y 'sanss| Bupjooliaro o} anp Aslois sbuls

aq 03 pasU pinom juswdolaasq “lenusiod uswdojaasg

Aemsusant 66 pue /6 Usemieg d

8¢

(ge 01 | sabeleb)
Aemsuaanp

1ebuo

‘ubisap sy ojul pajelodiooul
sabe.eB jo yinos pue| Jo eale JI alow Algissod
‘paWIO} aq PINOD S1B|4 7 L/Q 4O ¥00|g Pauleldl aq 0} pasu

Page 70




“Agieau adeospue| sy Uiyl pajeslo Bunied

pue s1e|} INoj 1o ‘Usamiag eale Bupiied [eljuso e pue

sje|y abie| 0m] '3l ‘PeABIYOE &g PINOD OM] B} LUsamlaq
ainxiw e sdeyiad olrews|qold aq pinom uoisiaoid Bupied
‘I8 ASMOL| ‘SIE4 O PSUISALIOD 8] PINOD SiE|} JO Xo0|d

e 40 100]} punoJB sy} Buiwio) seBelel ay] smojebung

10 S3SNO0Y 931} /OM] UIRJUOD PIN0o seale asalj)

10 auQ AemyBiy Buisixe 8y 0} Jusoe(pe s)is Seale SAlY
asaly} Jo yorg ‘Bupiied pajeso|eun Jo SUOI0SS SARY Seale
2s8U)3 40 9|dNnoo v 'smojebung (WJoy 3INg ay3 Ul Xealq

ay} dosy 03 Jdwane ue ) Jo sasnoy Yim Jayis ‘pajiul
aq P|NOY SEBIE 988U} JO BAl) ‘SSIMIBLI0 PEOUIAUCD

aq p|Noo slauueld au} J| "eale sy} Jo Jajoeleyo ay) Buiwioy
se panbBle aq pinoo ‘1s1xa sabelel ayy slaym WIoJ 3|INg
aU3 Ul Mealq [einjeu ay} ‘UersmoH ‘[elualod wswdojpasg

%0¢

1IN0 uoljely

10 [|e - s1e|} 40 X00(q € Jo Joo|s punoif
2y sWiloy asayy Jo aup 'sabeleb

10 (seale) sx00|q sjeledas oug LL

A

(96¢ 03 Oz sebeued)
yno uoljjel|

cl

‘sobeleb Jayio 0y

21e00|2] 03 slasn abeleb ajqeus o} ‘sabeleb of Jo Says saIyy
uo paplaoid &g piNod sjel} pad Z X 9 pue sielypad | X 9
ey passasse Ajsnolaald sey dnoio awoH Ajwixold asopo Ul
||e saBeleb L6 Jo says ajeledss 9,6 |enualod uswdojaasq

sobe.eb jo says ajeledss oug
‘splalyAenled | 03 [py 9l

or

(o7 03 | sebeseb)
splayAaniey

‘uasmiaq eale buped
|eliuso e pue sie|) able| om] 91 ‘paAdILOE 8g PINOO OM}
8y} usamiag ainxiw e sdeyiad ojews|qo.id ag pinom

uoisiaold Buppied ‘Jsasmol ‘sjel) ol PSHUSALOD 8d PINOo
SJe|4 JO X00(q € Jo J0o|4 punolb sy Buiwio) sabeleb ay |
‘smojeBung Jo sasnoy om) UIBILIoD PINoo seale

asay} 4o auQ Aemybly Bunsixe ay; 03 Jusoelpe syis seale
931U} 888U} 4o yoeg Bubiied psjeoo|jeun Jo Uoljoss e

sey seale asalj} Jo sUo smoleBung (Wloy 3ing ay3 Ul Yealq
sy} dosy 03 Jdwane ue uj) Jo sasnoy Yim Jayus ‘pajiul
aq p|Noo seale 9salj} JO 831U} 'aSIMIBYI0 PaoUlAUOD

aq PINoo SIBUUB|H 84} J| "Bale aU} 4o Jajorleyo ay) Buiwioy
se panBle aq pinod ‘sixa sabelel sy} alaym wloy }ing
aU} Ul Meaud [Binjeu 8y} iersmoH [elualod wswdojaasg

%lc

HNOD Juesy 1o |je - sTe|) JO %00(]g
e 4o Joo|} punolB sy} swioy asaly} Jo
auQ ‘sebeleb Jo sx00|q ajesedss ouy 9

8¢

(9z1 01 65 sabe.eb)
ynog jues

"sasN0Y 831U} 9|d1ssod 'sabeleb ayeand

0} 859008 UM Jaliebo) ‘peulelal aq o} spesu ¢ ou

1o uely Buole yiedioo} oljlgnd 'sanss| BupooIsAD JusW
-dojaasp 1oy yBnous apim peos ssa00e ‘ssaooe Aemuybly
poosy (ays aU} 4O 189M BU} U o0(d a|Buls & uIylm paeoo)
ale asayy) ajeald ale asayy jo JuBle ‘1oramoy ‘sabeleb
‘0UZE SUIBIUOD YIS [[elaAQ ‘[elualod wswdojaasg

anuaAy Auuaq GE pue ¢ usamiag [

14

(z¢ 03 g sebeleb)
anuaay Auuag

“(R1oBins

49 10) sasnoy |[ews om) a|dIssod '$s900e AemyBIy poosy
‘Bupyied ayepowwioooe 0y Japlo Ul aul| Bulp|ing Buiisixe wouy
3oeq 198 aq 0} paau pjnom Juswdo@asq slis 0} Waoelpe
$931] "UlewWal Jsnw peay Buiuiny ‘slojalay) ‘oes-ap-nod

10 pus Je peay Buluin} yjo pesssooe pleAunoo sbeies
‘("ouy) eale Bunyied uado Jayio yum pleAlnoo pajjem

uIym pasojous sabeseb Buisixg enusiod wawdojaasd

1N0D plaljswiolg | 0} Jusoelpy 9

(60€ 01 2og sabe.eb)
Hnod pjsyswoigl

sanss| Aem jo Jybul

'Se|} XIS 8|qISSOd P|OYaa.4 SIe PROI SS3008

10 8pis sayye seipadoud yjog payins 1sag aq Aew siel) JOo
300|q |[ews e abejuoly Aemybiy pajiwi| 0} and 9IS oMo Z6
10 UspJeb Jeal wol) $s800Y jjag usalo Jo abps uo ayg
‘Aayduad 0y sesl] 'sanss| Bupoollaan Uonoun( 18 Uspim

0} peau Aewl ‘molleu peol ssaooy [eusiod juswdojeasq

ABAM PIBIYOS3d 176 PUB 6 Usamisd 6

€C

(gz 01 | sabeleb)

Page 71

e pisyyssag|



‘sa1eb ss800€ Jeal Jlay) Ulelsl 0} pasu pinom (6, 0} €5
'SoU) s||Iypunoy Bunuo.y ssipadold “lenusiod uswdojaasq

punoy Lg pue g/ usamiag

€e

/81 '081L 019/| sebeleb)
L 3§ - sliiypunoy

'S9SN0Y g 9|q1SS0d Uoliebsaaul spasu BUIoIAlas asnjey
-oljews|qold ag Aew Buluing Ing - Juswdo@asp 0} ssa00e
Ie|nolyan Joj paioldws ag pinoo peol ssaooe Buisixg
81818 UoIsiaoid Bupied pajeoso|ieun swos ‘paulelal

aq pjnoys pue a}is ay} Jals seale soepe Wol) SAOoY
‘9YIS UIYNIM Uoliels-ans Ajolios|3 enusiod Juswdosasg

%SC

ses|usslo) /| pue G| usemieg

(sizovzie
pue g6z 03 96z sebeied)
9 3)S - slilypunoy

'S8SNOY OM} 8|qISSO4 JUBWJO[@ASP 0} SSe008

1[nolyaA 104 paAojdwe aq pinoo peos sseode Bunsixg
‘8)IS B} UIyIMm sisIXe uoisiaoid Bupjied pajeooljeun swog
‘PaUIB}Rl 8q 03 pavU pINom Jey) sejed sseooe Jeal aAey
ayis a4y} Buipunowuns saipedold ‘[enusiod juswidoljaasg

S|IIYPUNOY G6 03 68 4O leay

€l

(ssc 01 zse
pue 6trg 03 Lirg sebeled)
S 3YsS - sliiypunoy

"S9SN0Y IN0J /93143 8|qISSOd Pays||owap
aq pinoo ‘Jledal jo syels Jood e Ul Ajjualing ale yoiym
‘sobeleb asay) ‘ayis ay3 4o ped (ulsises) usoelpe sy uo
papircid ag pinoo Bupiied pajeosojjeun sseooe Aemybily
pPooS) "alIs 8U} pUNOIE ISIXa $931) alnjew AlqeiapisucD
‘8)IS 8U} Ulyllm s181%a Uoisiacid Bupiied pajeso|eun swog
‘paulelal aq 0} pasu pnom jey) saied sssooe Jeal saey
(sAeamuie4) ssipadoud Buipunouns “lenusiod uswdojeasg

%SC

S[Iypunoy g6} ysoddo

(zee 01 ggg sabe.eb)
¥ 31§ - slilypunoy

"AouSDY JUSWIUOIIAUT By} 4O sjuswalinbal ay; BujeaLu
salnsesw uoleBiliw pooly palinbal sy 0} 1algns ‘eys ay) jo
usLudoaasp |eluapisal ayy 03 aidiound ul suoniosiqo Buluued

ou aAey Aslj} ‘Uolpeynsuoo olignd o3 10slgns pue abels siL}

1e ‘Jey} palllluoo aAey sisolyo Buluueld  sdoys |jIypunoy
pased-s1eiss ||ews ay} 0} PeoJ 901AI9S B Sapn|oul os[e A)l[eoo)
sy pue| pajeroosse pue sabelef psumo [lounod /X ey

e 40 Uois|aoid 8} 10} SS0ID Pay aU} 0} pases| Ajsnolasid pug
sesudwoo ays sy (esle poojd g UOZ B Ul S| 9)IS 8y} 8oUls)
sainsesw uoljeBiiiw pool Jo SIS0 [euolippe Alenoied

- Juswidolarap Jo 1800 UYnm Jsisse 03 pleog diysisuped

(Q0d) wawdopasq 0 swwelBold molJeH-pasurIS-UopUOT
woly paalibe Anjssaoons Buipung 'sje|) pagl X ¢ pue sasnoy
paq € X AlQIssod 'sawoy mau 2 1oy [enusiod juswdoaas

‘nyis Ul sabe.eb
/X J8ASMOL 1O pPBoUs) pue paysijowad
- sdoys 4o apis pue Jeal o} pue

(s8¢ - 6.¢ s9beles)
- s|liypunoy - (s
IleH $s019 pay Jawiod)

"smolebung aaly} a|qissod

“UMOUMUN sI [JIH 401 Buoje Adljod Uo1303)|00 asnyoy "Aslols
om] s| Wawdoaasp JI olewsigold ag pinom Bupoollaarg
‘91Is 9A0CE S2|CBD W09 Yshilig ‘aus Ubnoiys isixe

03 sleadde asinoosalepn "OdL aBULIUl pINoMm UoIeo0|a)
‘uoljisod Ul Ulewal 03 ey |Im sabeleB oy ybnoyy

sjuiod ss800y JUSWaaIBe aARs|ARM 0) 108lgns sI sabeleB
0] YbBnoJys sjuiod ssaooe om ] eale aBIaA UIY)Im S8

104 181%9 SI8pIQ UoljeAlasald 8al] "Alloyiny sAemybiH

0} pajeoipap MOU ‘19ASMOY ‘UOPUOT 40 UolijelodioD

Ad paumo (eale jjog usalD) abiaa pue |IIH Xoid ‘11eg
U815y UIY)M S|4 YIS Jo Jjey YHoN ‘Jenusiod juswdosasg

peoy sASIXO gL pue

2s0|D AngAuos g Jo suspleb Jeal
usamied NS 1IIH 1oId woy sjulod
$89008 OM ] Wled |[Ipold sysoddo

Ll

x4

(Lz 0} | sebeseb)
1I'H 12|

“molebung s|buls a|qIssod $sa00e Aem UBIY poos

"Aluo Asuols s|buis aq pinom Juswidojaasq (uUnoy ddossar
pue Uose 0z) selepunog Auadold Jusoelpe ulyyim

s||e} os[e dojeasp 0} Japio Ul pue| Juaselpy 'siy} 1031Ja1 0}
AlB)I| 9 pnom suolipuod Buluueld ‘smojebung jusoelpe
ay1 03 Bunyied spiacid 01 pajonJisuoo alem sabelef

2y} jey; pawnsse si | WbBIs ‘Yegle ‘lenusiod uswdolgaasq

ABM UOSEN H0Z 03 Juadelpy

(rog
pue zoz ‘00z sebeled)

Page 72

Aepp uosep|




(474

saluadoud JO "ON |eljudjod wnwixep

%0%

(344

G60°L

SIV1OL

"(AabBins 4o 10) s8snoy ||eWS ||euwls om]

a|qissod 'ssaooe Aemybiy poos Bupiied sjepowwoooe
03 4apJo Ul aul| Buiping Bunsixe wouy 3oeq 1os aq 0} pasu
pinom juswdoleaad "ays 0} Jusoelpe saal] Ulewal jsnw
peay Buluiny ‘alojalay} ‘oes-8p-|no Jo pus je peay Buiuiny
1J0 passaooe pleAunoo abeles pleAunoo pajjem Ajjed
uIyyim pasojous sabeseb Buisixg lenusiod wawdojaasq

HNoD As|BUBIAA £ 03 Waoelpy

%6C

(p6E 01 gge sabe.ed)
Hnoo As|bueipp

"S9SNOY XIS /OAl} 9|1SS0d

‘uoisiaold Bupiied Jeal Yum 193118 ple|[0OAA 1O pINoD
wawdopasq 'ssaooe AemyBly Poosy ‘SN0l 1BINOIYSA B

| Uleyal 0} PaaU sy} 03 anp Juswdoleasp [enusiod Aue
SHWI| siy} 1198113 PIe|JOOAA GT 0} G| PUE 193113 plaljusslD
9 0} O 0} $S9008 Jeal Jejnolyaa aplaoid o} Jeplo

Ul paydepe ussq Ajjusoal sey ais ‘Jenusiod Juswdoeas

193115 PIE|IOOM G| 0} Jusoelpy

6€

(6¢ 01 | sabeleb)
193138 PIejlooM|

'SaSNOY XIS /aAl} 9|q1SS0d oljews|qo.ld

aq pInoo BuboopaAQ "UoleBiIsaAul pasu pinom BulolAles
asnjey diysiaumo [1ounosd Ul Ajjuaing /| Jaquinu
‘PloYB14 G| JaqINp ¢880[D S SBWOY ] 1S Ylim uoljoun| e
USpIMm 0] PaaU ‘MOLIBU PEOI SS300Y ¢ PEOY Plalissoulld
Z¢ woly qelB pue ays ybnolyy peoy plalssoulld

ZE 01 g Wol) 8800k Jeay Wsaipelf [eljuelsgns e uo
PayR0| S| SIS (¢SSUDDI| JOPUN) SIS BU} UIUIM payis os[e
ale sabeleb ajeald XIS umouxun ul sabeleb sy Jo yilou
pue| jo eale able| jo diysiaumo “enusiod wawdojaasq

aso|D
SSBWoYL IS /| pue g| Usameg

4%

(z1 0} | sebeleb)
9s0[D S, SeWoyl IS

‘JusWIOW By} 1B 19| [|e ale Jaramoy ‘lledal
0} aAIsUadxs - swiaigoud |einjonuis Jofew woly Jayns sabeles

aue
ABUOH pue 8oelI ] $S0ID Usamiag

%0

(g-1 sobeueb)
(eceua]
$5019) spoysiauolg

“(AleBlns

49 10) sasnoy |[ews om) a|dissod 'ssa00e AemyBiy poosy
‘Bupyied ayepowwoooe 0y 18pIo Ul aul| Bulp|ing Buiisixe wouy
3oeq 198 aq 0} paau pjnom Juswdo@asq siis 0} Waoelpe
$931] "UlewWal sNw peay Buiuiny ‘slojalay) ‘oes-ap-no

10 pus je peay Buiuiny Jjo pessaooe pleAunoo abeles
‘("ouz) eale Bupiied uado Jayio Uim pieALINOD pajlem

uIyym pasojous sabeseb Buisixg enusiod wawdojaasq

10 8fulyg 9| 0} Jueoelpy

%SC

(sze 03 gLg sebeued)
Hnoo albulys

'S9sNoY XIS 8|qISsod
Hnoiip anold osje Aew peay Buiuiny v uolebisaaul pasu
pinom BuioiAlas asnjey peol 83008 BUISIXS 8} 1o
SS900B JB|NOIYSA LIIM PAPUSIXS 8q PINoO POOMYEQ pue
ses|uaalo Buiwlio) saoella) sl Jo yorg paplaroid aq o)
aaey pnom Bupiled jey; pue Aydoso|iyd siyi mojjo) 0} sjge
aq Jou pinom juswidojaAsp mau Aue jey) pawnsse s| |
Buljjemp sy} woly Aeme pareool st Bupied pue syjedioos
elA s| ss9008 ‘AemybBiy a4} 0} SS9008 J0alIp SARY

10U Op (s||IYpUNOY [eulBlio) saiuadold usoelpe Buisixg
‘8)Is aU} UM s1s1xa Uoisiaoid Bupyied pajeoso|ieun swog
‘paUlElal 8 PINOUS PUE }IS Ui J08SIaJUl SAOY Jaul0

(Pzz 0161 PUR 80T 03

Page 73




'sanss| Bupjoopao o} anp Aslojs a|buls 8q 0} padu pjnom
swdojpraq “I1sixo pnooalo} ojuo saipadoid Buipunolns
woyy sjujod sseook Jeal snosownp ‘felusiod juswdojprsqg

[IH Uoijeuoiog £ pue |G usamiag

%0

6l

(ge /L€
pue 0} | sabereb)

Y 9IS - [[IH uoljeuolo)

‘smofebung om} a|qIssod "sseooe Aemybiy pooo ‘se|qeo
19 pesytoaQ 'senssl Jool 991 ‘sanss| Bupjooeao

0} anp As10]s a|Buls aq 0} pasu pinom juswdoprsq
‘diysioumo [1ounoD ul AjJUSLIND S| SNUBAY UIBISOAA 1T
"BaJE 9)IS dy} UlYim pajelodiooul S| anusAY UIBISOAA

2 Jo uapieB Jeal ay} Ji Ajuo ‘fenuajod juswidoprsqg

SNUBAY WBISBAA #Z O} Jusoelpy

%v |

(7 0} | sobeieB)
V 9§ - 3Alg d.udd

fuiddg

"sasnoy

oM} a|qIssod ‘olyewsiqoid aq Aew Buloirles asnjoy
"UNo9al0} ahkeleB Wolj Pajxel] G Ojul SS9O9E IeNolys
¢peol ssaooe 0} ab1oA paqqelB pue| papxey] 9

seH ‘Bupped jea1is (papey] vy pue p ‘g) seipedoid
jusoelpe woly sa|o1yaA AQ papunodwio? ‘molLieu peos
$S000Y "a)is BulA| mo| 0} anp sanssi abeulelp a|qIssod

'SOSNOY 0MY} 9](ISSO "UNODBI0}
afeleB woyy pajxey] 6 Ojul SSOO9. JBINDIUSA ¢ PEOI SSO008
0} ob1aA paqqelb pue| papxey] 9 seH “Bupped jans (papey]

Y pue p ‘z) seipadoid jusocelpe woly sajoiysa Aq papunodwiod

!MOLIEU peoI $S900Y "a)is BulA| mo| 0} onp sanss| abeulelp
9|qIss0d "sonss| Bupjoo|1oA0 a|qissod ‘fenusiod uswdojareg

peoy poixey L i o} Jusoelpy

%8

cl

(z1 0} | sebeleb)
peoy pajxeyl

1S1 9A19S9Y

IIH Isnyyang

‘sdoid jo
JO "ON "Xel

(p1eH=¢ Ase3=|)

'JA9( JO aseq

pem

|lenuajod juawdojanaqg

a)is abeseh o} asuesjuz Jo uoles0T]

Aduz
%

sabeieg
Juesep

sabeieg
|ejol

a)s abeleo

sobeleb pIoA 9,0g Uy} SI0 = I

sobeleb ploA 9,0 pue 9,0g usamieyg =

sabeleb ploa 9,0z uey) ssa =

£y

4 el

juawdojanaq 10} ajqeling
swweiboid Buip|IngasnoH [I2uno) 10} Sa)S [enjuajod

Page 74



pue sueljsopad ‘(sabeles) ‘oug) sojoIYaA 10} dle asay)
!JSIX0 peol $$8098 /UN02910} 0juo saipadoid Buipunouns
wioyy sjuiod Sso00€ JESI SNOJSWINN "O|(EUIEISNS POWISSP
aq 0} 8AeY p|nom Juswidojaasp Auy "Hog USIS) By} UIYHM

(7 0} | sobeleB)

Ajpamus s ays ay] bils ‘Weqe ‘lenuajod juswdopreg asnoy aljqnd uely usai o} usocelpy peawuieg
Il'H jJoo1
‘asnoy ajbuls a|qissod ‘Aemybiy o} ssa00e
pooo “uoljebijsaul pasu diysioumo pue| pue asn uoljels
-qns {papn|oul (uolyels-qns "09|9) SIS /1eal 0} pue| Ji %0 (gz 0} 7z sobeleh)
padojeasp aq p|noo ‘JeramoH -[enusiod juswdojersp oN splaplied 06 pue gg usamleg D 9§ - spivIpIed
(kg oy
‘mojeBung sjBuls 9)qissod "sanss| BupjooaaQ “Aemybiy %0 gQZ pue Lz ‘0z sobereb)
0] sS900E pooo) ‘|lews Ava a)ig “[enusjod juswdojpasg spleIpiied 66 0} Jusoelpy g 9IS - splalplied
"molebung Jo asnoy a|buls d|qissod "Ajuo
SapIs pue juoly 0} uspies) “Aemybiy aoe) 0} pasu pinom
swiool s[qeliqey ‘1eal 0} sanss| BUBOOSAQD ployasl) %0
ale saipadoud usoelpy "joid Jouloy "Aemybiy o} sseooe (g 0} Z¢ sobeleh)
pooD “|lews Ao ays "Wybis ‘ede ‘fenusiod jusiudojpreg spewpied /| pue G| usemieg d d)s - spRIped
‘asnoy a|buls
s|qissod "jo|d JaulioD) "swa|qoid 331} 9|qISSOd "SSO00E
ARemybiy poob sey ayg “ploysaly ayeaud si g JlaquinN %0
‘parelodiooul Z Jaquinu wioly uapireb jusoelpe jo ped )i (¢ 0} | sobeleh)
padojeasp aq pjnoo ‘JeramoH [enjusiod juswdorsp oN pes|\ s|jesue g o} Juaoelpy pes sllPsueH
uopAoy
"Ajuo mofebung ajbuis jsabbns aiojelay |
‘Wwiool 2103s /jue|d pue Jamo) Jlejs 0} payoele seberes)
‘sojpadoud jusoelpe o} Aljenb by urejal o} pasN %EL (08G 01 £2G sobeleh)
'sseooe Aemybiy poos ‘lenuaiod juswdojereg HNo9310J) BIA ABAA YOIOSOLIBIN HO \ 9)S - Aepp Youosallen
uojybno-
‘pajelod.iooul
JIIH uoljeuolo) € ou jo uspied Ji smojebung om]
a|qissod ‘pasn ajis ay} Ajuo ji mojebung ajbuis s|qissod
‘J]og usalg) 0} Jusdelpe AjosIIp SUS “MOLIBU AIDA YIS
0} ybnouy} AemybiH “Bupjooparo pue smojebung jusoelpe
0} anp Aslojs a|buls aq 0} paau punom Juswdojprsq %EL

ZOHS Japun PaAIND Ul unl ABW 8SIN0VISEAA "HNODDI04
OJUO [|IH UOIJEUOIOD (€ "OU LWOJ) SSSOOE Jeay "dYS SS0Ioe
Wwisipels) “(payelodiooul s diysiaumo [1ounog ul AjjuaLino)

JIIH uoljeucio) ¢ "ou jo uspleb Jeal ayy Jayym uodn
spuadap [enjusjod juswdojaraq “fenusalod juswdojrag

[IIH UojeuoioD gi Jo 1eay

(gz 03 |z sobeleb)
g 3JIS - lIlH uoljeuolod

"smoleBung oM} 8|qISSOd "d)IS SSOI0e Jusipels

Page 75



Ll

saljuadoad JO "ON |eljuajod wnwixep

%L

S8

STvIiOolL

‘(A1oBins

d9 10) sesnoy |[ews oM} 9]qIssOd ‘sseooe Aemybiy poos
‘Bupped eyepowwioose 0} Japlo ul aul| Bulpjing Buljsixe wouy
3okq Jos 8q 0} padu pjnom juswdoeas "a)s 0} Jusoelpe
$991] "ulewsl jshw pesy Bujuin ‘siojIay) ‘oBS-9p-|NO

Jo pus Je pesy Bujuiny Jo passeooe preAunoo aberes
‘(‘ouy) eale Bupped uado Joyjo yym preAunos pajem

uypm pasojous sabeseb Buysix3 ‘fenusjod juswdojereq

unoy sdweoipng ¢ 0} Juaselpy

%EL

(L1€ 01 0L € sobeleb)
uno) sdwesipng

Asqqy weuyepm

‘'smojebunq

OM]} 9|qISSOd "SONss| BuPOoPaA0 0} anp As10)s d|Buls aq

0} paau pinom juswdojaasq -onewsjqoid aq Aew Buipines
asnjoy "ploysaly peswuleg | ‘ou ‘uspim o} Ajjigissod

OU ‘MOLIBU PEOJ SS900Y "PSLLIJUOD 94 0} P3aU p|nom
suoiyisod Arepunog "ssai6s 1o} ayis siy} ybnoiy) ppoy uo
Ajojos Aol 0} Jeadde sjuiod ssoooe asay] puoheq ainised

%v |

Page 76



SoNss| BUBIOO|dA0
wouy Jayns pue sBulllamp Bupsixa Jo JUBI| %20]d pinom Juswdo|aasp s|qensun

unop dog
IH Z1 0} | JO Jeal /8pIS ‘payoeny

%0G

(¢ 0} | sebeleb)
Hnoo doy

3BpLIg P10JPOOM|

SdoUS O} SOLISAIIIP JEINDIUSA UHM 219HJUI PINOM JUSWAO[3ASP S|qeHnsun

sdoys Jo Jeay

%CE

(z9z 0 £GZ saobeleb)
ashoy

Asqqy weyjem

rews 00y joid :ojqeNNsuUn

pesi 8pAH Z 03 Eoom_g_

%001

(6 obe.leb)
peoy spleuosa Ig|

BujazenN

Uonels-gns A)o1108|8 0} payJeyE pue |[ews 003 30(d :8jqENNSUN

peoy uojbullleg 6/ 0} JUsde(py

%001

(65 abeueb)
peoy uojbuteg]

sje|} A210}s 1IN0 Juodelpe WOLY BUINOOIIBAO B|qEHNSUN

981y PolobBuoT ul sxo0|q 18y dusoddo

%6E

82

(0250} 796 pue
056 O} Z£G sobe.eb)
as1y HYoltobuor

uoybno

Jlews o33oid ‘ajgeynsun

peoy uojdwel ¢ 0} Jusdelpy

%0

(17 obeleb)
peoy uoydwely

Jlews oo} sjo|d :s|gepnsun

peoYy MOpESIN 9 PUB G O} ucoow.:o/\

%l

(9 0} | sebeleb)

peoy mopea |

sje|} A210}s 1IN0y JuSSElPE WOLY BUINOOIIBAC B|dEHNSUN

sie|d puiysg

%8¢

MIIA :u.__m__

m:_nnm__

Jlews oo} joid :3|gensun

%0

(9G obeleb)
9ALIJ POOAUSPIY|

abplay|

uoseay

pJEM

asuUBIUT [ YIS JO
uoljeso]

jueseA
%

Juesep
‘oN

ayg uo
1BJ0L

uoljeso] sbesen

Page 77

¢10Z 1°quaseq Lo

juswdojanaq Joj ajgensun

awweiboid Bulplingasno}y [19unoy) 10} SIS JO |eljudjod ON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Agenda ltem 10

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-013-2013/14 _

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Leisure and Wellbeing

Asset Management & Economic Development

Subject: Epping Hall — Sports and Leisure Feasibility Study
Responsible Officer: Derek Macnab (01992 564051).
Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Cabinet formally note the Epping Hall Sports and Leisure Feasibility
Study;

(2) That whilst a preferred option has been identified within the Study, none of the
options be excluded at this stage, by virtue of the fact that no other proposals have yet
to been considered as a result of the Expressions of Interest exercise;

(3) That the Study form part of the evidence base in the preparation of a new
Leisure Strategy for the District and the procurement strategy for the Council’s next
Leisure Management Contract; and

(4) That the formal views of Epping Town Council be sought on the feasibility study
to include their level of commitment to the re-provision of a new Sports Centre on land
within their ownership.

Executive Summary:

This report outlines the outcome of a Sports and Leisure Feasibility Study undertaken in
association with the Design and Development Brief, agreed for the St John’s Road site in
Epping. It sets out a series of options, an evaluation of the strengths and weaknesses of
each option, along with indicative costings. It also identifies a preferred option for
consideration.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To report on the results of Epping Hall Sports and Leisure Feasibility Study.

Other Options for Action:

To consider the findings of the Feasibility Study and to reject/agree any of the specific
options.

Page 79



Report:

Design and Development Brief for the St John's Road Area

1. On 10 March 2008, the Cabinet approved the preparation of a design and
development brief to guide the future redevelopment and re-use of sites and buildings in the
St John’s Road area, Epping, which are predominantly in public ownership. Essex County
Council owns two thirds of the land, with the District Council and Epping Town Council
owning approximately a sixth each. (Detailed on Page 4 of Feasibility Study, Appendix 1).

2. The intention of the brief was to:
(a) ensure an integrated planned approach;

(b) clarify the land use and planning policy requirements affecting the area as a
whole and its context in the wider area;

(c) clarify the development constraints to inform investment decisions about
development sites, land disposals, acquisitions and lease arrangements;

(d) stimulate interest amongst land owners, developers and prospective occupiers
so as to bring sites forward for development whilst at the same time explaining
development constraints and expectations, they will have to resolve; and

(e) provide guidance to Council Officers and Members to assist in the
determination of planning applications.

Developing the Brief

3. The District Council together with the County Council engaged specialist urban design
consultants Allies and Morrison Urban Practitioners to produce the brief. From the outset
there were stakeholder meetings which contributed to the various options that formed part of
the consultation process. The consultation period was extended and intensive, using various
media, exhibitions and manned sessions.

4. The completed Development and Design Brief was subsequently endorsed by
Cabinet on 12 September and formally agreed by Council on the 27 September 2012.

5. As part of the public consultation, very strong local support was expressed for the
idea that sport and leisure facilities might be provided within the St John’s Road site as a
possible replacement for Epping Sports Centre, which is currently located in Hemnall Street.
The current Centre is an ageing facility, with poor access for people with disabilities and
limited parking.

6. In addition to the public response, Epping Town Council indicated a wish to explore
the possibility of provision of a leisure facility incorporating the Epping Hall. The Leader of
the District Council agreed to this request and Urban Practitioners were commissioned to
undertake a Feasibility Study.

The Sports and Leisure Feasibility Study

7. In line with the public consultation, the Design and Development Brief, includes the
potential for sports and leisure development. This allows for the Council to evaluate options
which could include a sports facility, but also allow the market to respond with other
proposals. It is worth reiterating that the Design and Development Brief does not tie the

Page 80



Council into delivering a sports and leisure facility on the St John’s Road site. A copy of the
full Feasibility Study document is at Appendix 1.

8. The purpose of the Epping Hall Feasibility Study, was to answer the following
questions:

o What extent of land would be required for a replacement sports facility on a near like
for like basis, with the Hemnall Street facility?

e What scale of sports facility could be accommodated if the site were to be limited to
the land in Epping Town Council ownership?

e Are there options which allow some or all of the existing Epping Hall building to be
remodelled and incorporated, into the new facility in either of these options?

¢ What are the build costs of the options?
e What are the strengths and weaknesses of the options?

9. The work that was undertaken to answer these questions, suggests that it would be
possible to provide a Sports and Leisure facility on a like for like basis, within the land
currently owned by Epping Town Council (on which the Epping Hall stands), either making
use of the existing building, or starting with a completely fresh structure. Options have also
been explored which retain the existing forecourt and green space, at the front of the current
building.

10. The specific Options that have been identified and evaluated are:

. Option 1
Replacement facilities on a like for like basis with a new building extending back from
the existing Epping Hall building line to retain the green space and accessible parking.

. Option 2
Replacement facilities on a like for like basis, retaining and re-using the existing
Epping Hall building.

J Option 3
Replacement facilities on a like for like basis, within the curtilage of the Epping Town
Council ownership.

J Option 4
Replacement facilities on a like for like basis within the curtilage of the Epping Town
Council ownership and retaining the existing building.

11. For each of the Options an assessment of each proposal's Strengths and
Weaknesses was undertaken. This evaluation leads to the conclusion that all the options are
technically feasible, but with strengths and weaknesses which would need to be balanced, in
any final decision to proceed with re-provision, on the site (Pages 13 and 15 of the Feasibility
Study).

12. However, having reached this general conclusion, the consultants on the basis of the
options explored, have proposed a preferred option. This works within the curtilage of the
Epping Hall site, but removes the existing building. This provides the opportunity for a new
facility which can be constructed whilst minimising the likely need for significant excavation.

Page 81



In view of the current patterns of use at the existing sports centre, the profile of proposed
uses for the preferred option new centre have also been slightly revised, with the key
variations being a reduction from four to two squash courts whose popularity has decreased
and an equivalent increase in fithess gym space, for which there is significant demand.

13. Other factors such as environmental impact, traffic management and the effect on
car-parking in the town centre, will also need to be taken on board.

14. Initial indicative costings are provided for all four options and the preferred option
which range between £3.48M to £3.76M, but exclude the cost of the land/building, although
this could be offset by any capital receipt, generated by the sale of the Hemnall Street Sports
Centre site.

Proposed Way Forward

15. The Council’s four Leisure Centres are currently managed under an agreement with
SLM Sports and Leisure Management Ltd. The contract is due to be re-tendered, with the
new contract due to commence in January 2016. As part of this procurement process, a new
Leisure and Culture Strategy is being prepared which will review the Council’s existing
provision and address the issue of future need, on a District-wide basis, to ensure that any
new facilities are provided in the correct location to maximise participation, promote access
and deliver value for money.

16. This strategic work will be overseen by a Portfolio Holder Advisory Committee, which
is due to be established and led by the Leisure and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder. The St John’s
Hall Feasibility Study will provide an important part of the evidence base for the Leisure and
Culture Strategy and assist in Option appraisal for the Leisure Management Contract. It is
therefore recommended that the Council formally note its content. However, it should not be
forgotten that the Council is not the land-owner of the Epping Hall site and is only a minority
land-owner in the totality of the site.

17. Currently an exercise is underway to establish expressions of interest for taking
forward the Design and Development brief. Again, the results of this will influence future
leisure provision options. On this basis, whilst a preferred option has been identified, it would
be sensible to not exclude any option at this stage to retain flexibility.

18. Finally, as highlighted to the Council in September 2012, when the Design and
Development Brief was agreed, the Local Plan will take precedence over the Design and
Development Brief, as well as influencing any future Leisure Strategy.

Resource Implications:

The feasibility study gave an indicative construction cost for each of the Options provided by
Quantity Surveyors experienced in the Leisure Construction field:

o Option One — Set back from the road, all new build, no major new excavation,
additional land take required £3,670,000

o Option Two — Set back from the road, re-use the existing hall, no major new
excavation, additional land take required £3,483,000

. Option Three — Set forward in the site and close to the road, all new build, significant
new excavation required, no extra land take required £3,745,000

Page 82



o Option Four - Set forward in the site and close to the road, re-use existing hall,
significant new excavation likely, no additional land take = £3,568,000

. Preferred Option — New building, no significant new excavations likely, no additional
land take £3,760,000

On Page 19 of the Feasibility Study, the consultants explain the reasons behind while it may
have been expected that by adopting Options 2 and 4, which entail the retention of the
existing building, the build cost will be significantly less, in practice, there is little material
difference.

The figures exclude any land acquisition costs. The land acquisition costs for Options One
and Two are likely to be higher due to the larger land take.

At this stage, no revenue cost projections have been developed for the running of any new
facility, although it is likely that these would be lower than the existing building, which has a
number of longstanding maintenance issues. It is however, still likely that a subsidy in the
form of a management fee, would be required.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The Council has the power under the Community Wellbeing Act 2000 and the Local
Government Act 1974 to provide Sports and Leisure facilities for the Community.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

Any new building would be considerably more efficient in terms of energy use and cost, with
a lower carbon footprint than the existing Hemnall Street Centre.

Consultation Undertaken:

Public Consultation as part of the development of the Design and Development Brief and with
Epping Town Council (formal response to be requested, see Recommendation 4).

Background Papers:

Design and Development Brief.

St John’s Road Epping Hall Sports and Leisure Feasibility Study (attached).
Report to Cabinet 12 September 2012.

Report to Council 27 September 2012.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

In terms of risk, the conversion/refurbishment of existing buildings does involve a higher risk
than a new build approach. The re-provision can only proceed with the consent of the other
land owners, which may be withheld.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Page 83



Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
The current facilities at Epping Sports Centre are poorly accessible for people with disabilities
and movement difficulties, being spread over several levels. The existing Epping Hall has a
lift which would also be provided in any new facility.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been

addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
Will be accommodated within any design brief for any new facility.

Page 84









The point of contact for all matters ralating to this
document is:

Steve Walker

Director

Allles and Morrison Urban Practitioners
856 Southwark Street

London SE1 0HX

0107921 0109

swalker@am-up.com

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION
2. OPTIONS FOR SPORTS PROVISION

3. PREFERRED OPTION

4. ASSESSMENT OF COSTS

10

17

18

Epping Hall, Sports and Leisure feasibility study | Ociober 2012

Page 87

3



Church hall

telephone
exchange

Sr,. D Ownership plots
“ "_:?ibEssex County Council
%0
m Ep\Eﬁ}\g Forest District Council
{1 Epping Town Council

St lohn the Baptist Church

Ownership plan of the area identifying the Epping Hall site
and the adjoining Epping Junior School land

Page 88



INTRODUCTION

introduction

This paper has been prepared for Epping Forest
District Council by Allies and Morrison Urban
Practitioners supported by costing advice from
Northeroft to explore the potential for the delivery of
a sports and leisure facility on the Epping Hall site on
5t Johiv's Road, Epping. It sete out a series of options
for the project including a preferred option, along with
an evaluation of the options and an initial estimate of
the likely project costs associated with each option.

It has been prepared to inform decisions about future
leisure provision in Epping.

Purpose

Public consultation undertaken in March and April
of 2012 demonstrated that theve is very strong local
support for the idea that sports and leisure facilities
might be provided within the St John's Road site

as a replacemert for the Hemnall Street facility
which is in an old building and recuires significant
investment. Several options explored through the
consubtation showed potential for a sports facility
within the proposals, albeit with the caveat that this
was unlikely to be a viable project without significant
investiment from the Council.

It is considered that a facility on this site would
relate better to the town centre than is curtently the
case with the Hemnall Street building. Particularly,
users of the sports certre would be better able to use
the town centre car parks, including any new areas
proposed on the St John's Road area and the location
of the centre closer {0 the existing shops would
benefit town centre vitality.

In response to the public consultation, the recently
adopted brief for the St Joln's Road area includes the
potential for sports and leisure development. This
allows for the Council to evaluate options which

Page 89

could include a sports facility, but also to allow the
market to respond to the opportunity. Importantly,
the brief does not tie the Council into delivering a
sports and leisure facility on thig site if it proves to be
un-affordable.

The initial brief for this paper was {0 answer the
following questions:

+ What extent of land would be required for a
replacement sports facilily on a near like-for-like
basis for the Hernnall Street facility?

* What facility could be accommodated if the site
were to be limited te the land in Epping Town
Council ownership?

» Aje there options which allow some or all of
the existing building to be remodelied and
incorporated inte the new facility in either of these
options?

« What are the build costs of the options?

* What are the strengths and weaknesses of the
options?

Early work on the options has demonstrated that

it would be possible to achieve a like-for-like re-
provision of the space at Hemnall Street, albeit with
varying implications for the impact of the huilding
on the surrounding context - some of the options
would require a more bulky and prominent building
than others. Having demonstrated that all of the
options could match the existing programme of uses
a preferred option has been developed which glightly
revises the approach to the leisure usse. This takes
account of the reduced popularity of squash but the
increased trend towards gym and studio space. The
resull is a building of approximately equivalent area,
but with a revised patiern of uses which is designed
to be more appropriate to current requirements and
hence more likely to be well used.

Epping Hall, Sports and Leisure feasibility study | October 2012



Epping Hall

The existing Epping Hall building comprises a main
hall, conference room, offices, kitchen, bar and
ancillary spaces. It is well set back from the street
and cut into the slope of the site, leaving it with little
street presence and unusual access across a bridge
and poor servicing arrangements. Over the course
of the main St John's Area Design and Development
Brief project the building has been identified as

a potential site for redevelopment, subject to the
agreement of Epping Town Council and subject to
the land being purchased by EFDC. It is expected
that the purchase cost of the land would at least need
to exceed the outstanding mortgage on the building
to ensure that ETC is not left out of pocket. Their
expectations beyond this are not known.

L ) . f 2 ‘.‘ = N :
The existing Epping Hall building viewed from the
parking area adjacent to St John's Road

Page 90



20000mm

A

Corference Resm 1

a
VL 9

Confarance Room 2

|
L

agn

A

Boiler Room

Theatre

NaN'e

Epping Hall upper leveal
{entrance level)
not to scale

Epping Hall lower level
{(hall level}

. not to scale

Epping Hall, Sports and Leisure feasibility study [ October 2012

Page 91



Existing Hemnall Street Facility

The existing spoerts and leiswre huilding located

in Hemnall Street provides a four court hall,
gymnasium, fitness studio and four squash courts
supported by a range of ancillary spaces. The core
of the building is a large Victorian house which has
been extended in a series of phases to provide a
total of 2,212sgm gross internal area. The result is a
building in which it is difficult to achieve an optimal
layout and energy efficiency. The age of the building
also means that accessibility is an issue and that
maintenance is likely to be increasingly expensive.

The location of the building away from the town
centre and the lack of parking on the site means that
the facility has a significant impact on parking in
surrounding streets. In the event that the facility is
moved and the land sold, the site is considered very
suitable for residential development.

Page 92



AINST 120G IR0 DRI

LS TY TV UL

MEYe = YO
VRV DNEMZA J00Td 18HId

TUYNUIINI SSOHD TvL0oL

M ZCLEE = vV

2GROBL = VID
NYld HOGTd ONNOYD

wied yeenby

il

e

MG = VT
N ¥VVISO HvE

e

=@ .
i Mgy = VD

NYld HOGTd ONNOES H3IMOT

ey spocg

WEES =VID  NYId HOO 1S

weay

_wReL | it B
ook Adexegy
ey -
: eluny CuwsiA

L . Eo

18} sunds

NeH uds

Levy = WD
NYld HOOTS ANODES

existing floorplan (ot to scale)

Hemnall Street leisure centre -

g

Epping Hall, Sports end Leisure feasibility study | October 2012

Page 93



OPTIONS FOR SPORTS PROVISION

The work which has been undertaken suggests that
it could be possible to provide a spoils centie on a
like-for-like basis within the existing ETC site, either
making use of the existing building, or starting with
a completely fresh structure. Options have also been
explored which retain the existing forecourt and
green space at the front of the building.

The options for sports provision have been explored
as follows:

* Option 1 — replacement facilities on a like-for-like
hasis with a new huilding extending back from
the existing Epping Hall building line to retain the
green space and accessible parking;

* Option 2 - replacement facilities on a like-for-like
basis refaining and reusing the existing Epping
Hail building;

* Option 3 - replacement facilities on a like-for-like
basis within the curtilage of the ETC ownership,
and

+ Option 4 — replacement facilities on a like-fordike
basis within the curtilage of the ETC ownership
and retaining the existing building.

On the hasis of the options explored above, a
preferred option has been prepared. This works
within the curtilage of the Epping Hall site, but
removesg the existing building. This provides
the opportunity for a new facility which can be
constructed whiist minimising the likely need
for significant excavation. In view of the current
patterns of use at the existing sports centye, the
profile of uses for the new centre has also been
sHghtly revised, with the key variations being a
reduction from four to two squash courts and an
equivalent increase in gym space.

Plans and accomopanying notes for the options
appear on the following pages.

Page 94



e Exlsting burkding oudine

OPTION 1

p
i o
& 1]
P ; H - Spesionr win [fmmmk
: : 1 ]
L ) i T |
Meenr bwitding F i) & 1
e e R - ——rmmee= Enitting ground line

e by

OPTION 2

- Cxishingg grround bne

OPTION 3

|
1

- Exiviing groend fing

QPTION 4

eabten [
-
'™ i S i
- - Eisling ground Line
le | . ' ; .|
Luild - Convertian kel Esitting lendicor
| B B P 2 |
____________ R y
3
§ ———
&
— Roquired axeavarion
pprac 1275 com
M st dat : JY“‘ [
I
I ] l [ l - P
e e e
FoT e M T,
foied sacroion
eppron, 1375 b
v deed it :;} = Convarsion caistisg baddeg ;?r:_. Y VU )i

Page 95

Epping Hall, Sports and Leisure feasibility study | October 2012



-
\green ared
o e < arrvpsheu g

Garsgeron

-

e />

New deeloprmént site
i

SN

i

Le

B8
Al

o
— P
e




Options 1 and 2

These options both work 1o the existing building line
which is set back from the street. The aim of this
approach is 1o achieve the minimum urban impact
over and above the existing building.

Strengths:

+ Minimal impact on the character of the strest ~
most of the change in the urban form is weli set
back from the read;

+ The internal layout of the building is iess
compromised by the configuration of the site
— there is greater flexibility to deliver an ideal
building, particulaily where starting from scratoh;

* No further major excavation is likely to be required;
and

The layout of the building footprint in this way
could work within the main development aea as
showr in consultation option 2 from the St John's
Road Design and Development Brief Consultation.
This allowed for a reconfigured ertrance from
within the site, releasing the street frontage for
cther development,

Page 97

Weaknesses:

-

The bullding is well set back from the road and as a
result lacks a strong public presence;

The existing building is of modest architectural
character and may not project the positive new
image which a new spert and leisure building may
warrant as a flagship council project;

Any development which extends beyond the ETC
site will tequire the purchase of further land from
EEC, increasing the project cost; and

Option 2 which retaing and re-uses the existing
building is not ag efficient in land terms and would
require a greater extent of new building to the
rear of the plot - this could have a more significant
impact on adjoining neighlbours.

Epping Hall, Sports and Leisure feasibility study | October 2012

13



OPTION

Fremyas

T




Options 3 and 4

Both of these options work within the limits of the
existing ETC ownership

Strengths:

L]

Limited land take, leaving more space foi other
development and reducing the land cost associated
with the project;

Potential to use the excavated area of land for new
kuildings to keep the overall bulk of the building

as low as possihle with further excavation to keep
the bulkk of the building down at the street frontage;
and

.

Location of the building with a strong frontage to
St John's Road will give it @ more public profile,
appropriate to a building of this nature.

Weaknesses:

* Thea building would be constrained within the site,
potentially compromising the internal layout. This
is particularly o for the option which retaing the
existing building — the large sports hall needs to
he slotted in between the existing building and the
road and as a resuit the internal layout is not ideal;

» A considerable amount of excavation is likely to
be required to achieve the layout shown which
remains within the curtilage of the existing site;

The excavation issue could be overcome by
exploring options which are designed with a

step in the section of the building. However, this
would result in a moze bulky building on the street
frontage; and

°

Al of the site would be used, leaving no forecourt
area or accessible parking for disabled drivers.

Epping Holl, Sports and Leisure feasibility study | October 2012 15

Page 99



16

Elalles 25
.2 AAAR
wim AnAn

lu,u -
| [T 7T

Upper ground floor plan: Option ETC land only and new facilities FEASIBILITY STUDY EPPING HALL
Scale 1:250 AMUP

Total site area: 2356sqm

Total area (GEA): 153 s%m on lower ground floor + 530sgm on upper ground floor

Proposed building area {GEA): 2061sqm

Components: Four-court sparts hall, fiess studio, class studios, therapy rooms and 2 squash courts October 2012

Existing building outline

Reinstate existing green orea

Site section FEASIBILITY STUDY EPPING HALL
AMUP

Option ETC land only and new facilities
Scale 1:250

Page 100



PREFERRED OPTION

As a result of considering these strengths and
weaknesses a preferred option has been developed as
a variation on option 1. This considers the potential
for a new building, laut pulled forward to the extent
of the existing excavation line with the following key
attributes:

It would reduce the land take whilst imiting the
need for further excavation work;

There is potential to achieve a near-ideal form

of internal layout for the building — it is not
compromised by the need to work with the existing
building and hence the bulk of the sports hall can
be accommodated where it will have least impact
on the street scene,

A small public space can be retained at the front
of the building, maintaining the landscape quality
of the street as it gradually opens out to the more
demestic context to the north west. However,

the access to the building will be much improved,
avoiding the need for the bridge link;

The stepped terrain is used to good effect in terms
of reducing the apparent bulk of the building from
the street; but

The building is cloger to the street and can be
designed to have a more visible profile than the
existing building to suit its public role.

Epping Hail, Sports and Leisure feasihility study | October 2012

Page 101

17



ASSESSMENT OF COSTS

A review of the likely costs of the options has been
prepared by Guantity Surveyors Northeroft. This
has been prepared on the basis of the plans and
areas shown and the likely build cost for a huilding
of a typical specification for this use. It is intended
to provide a method for comparing the various
options with each other on a Hke-for-like basis to aid
decision-making at an early stage. However, the
costs for any project should clearly be reviewed as
more information becomes available.

The cost provided balow relates to the cost of
constructing the new sports budiding, including the
costs associated with demolition or adaptation of the
existing building. It does not make any allowance
for the purchase of land which would be reguired by
options one and twe and which would represent a
significant additional cost to the project.

Option one £3,670,000
Set back from the road, all new build, no major new
excavation, additional land take required

Ontion two £3,483,000
Set back from the road, re-use the existing hall, no
major new excavation, additional land take required.

Option three 23,745,000

Set forward in the site and close to the road, all new
build, significant new excavation required, no extia
land take required.

Option four £3,668,000

Set forward in the site and close to the road, re-uge
existing hall, significant new excavation likely, no
additional land take.

Preferred option £3,760,000
New huilding, no significant new excavation likely,
no additional jand take.

Page 102

O the basis of this evaluation work it is noted that
there is a relatively small difference between the
schemes on a cost hasis - less than a ten percent
apread. With options one and two excluded due to
the impact of the additional land cost, this effectively
means that decisions can be made which focus on
urban design, project delivery and sports and leisure
service provision.



Notes on the re-use of the existing building

It might be expected that by adopting the previous
Options 2 and 4, which entail the refurbishment of
the existing huilding, that the build cost would be
less as the shell of the existing building would be
utilised. Whiist there was some difference between
options, the refurbishment options did not realise
significant savings due to the extent of the work
that would be required to refurbish and convert the
existing building:

.

The existing layout would be altered requiring
demolition of some existing walls and construction
of new walls to create the new layout;

+ Whilst a large proportion of the external walls
would be retained, some works such as cleaning,
repairs and possibly even adaption and creation of
new windows may be required. Similarly we would
envisage that modifications and repairs to the roof
may be required;

The flank wall would require structural alterations
to create a link to the new sports hall (furthest
away from St John's Road);

It ig likely that the bhuilding services would he
replaced in their entirety and designed as part
of a package tc meet the needs of the whole new
building rather than being part of a cumulative
addition which would be more expensive to run
and maintzin in the long termn. When installing
new services, there is likely to be an element of
making good the existing walls and floors which
would not be the case with a new building; and

It is more difficult to install building services in
an existing building as this often reguires use of
existing ducts and risers necessitating additional
builders wark.

It is possible that a more ecenomic refurbishment
option could be developed. However, this may
further limit the potential t¢ deliver a scheme
which best provides the new sports and leisure use
envisaged.

This report has been prepared to evaluate the

urban design and spatial potential for the sport and
leisure facility. It should be noted that there may be
unknown constraints such as underground services,
contamination ete which cannot be identified at this
stage of work and which should be the subject of
further investigation.

Epping Hall, Sports and Leisure feasibiiity study | October 2012

Page 103

19






Agenda ltem 11
Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-022-2013/14
Epping Forest

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013 District Council
Portfolio: Leisure and Wellbeing

Subject: Limes Farm Centre

Responsible Officer: Derek Macnab (01992 564051)

Democratic Services: Gary Woodhall (01992 564473)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Cabinet formally note the outturn figure for the redevelopment of the
Limes Farm Centre of £1,101,000 against the Capital Provision of £1,102,000 (£842,000
from Epping Forest District Council and £260,000 capital grant from Essex County
Council Extended Schools Funding)

Executive Summary:

On 31 March 2009, Epping Forest District Council resumed the management responsibility
for the Limes Farm Hall, Chigwell. A multi-agency group was formed to identify how the
potential of the facility could be maximised for the benefit of local residents. As a result the
hall has been refurbished and extended and now offers a wide range of community activities
and advisory services. This report provides details about the redevelopment process and
advises Members of the Final Account.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

It is a Policy requirement of the Council that with respect to major Capital Projects, the final
account is formally reported to Members.

Other Options for Action:
In accordance with the above policy, there are no alternative options.
Report:

1. The original Limes Farm Hall was a community facility located in the centre of Limes
Farm Estate, Chigwell. The facility has historically catered for a range of local groups and
organisations and local residents in general. The District Council owns the building and land
that it is situated on.

2. As per a number of community facilities transferred to local councils at the time of
“parishing”, the facility was managed and maintained by Chigwell Parish Council, under a
management agreement. However, in April 2008, Chigwell Parish Council notified the
Council of its intention to cease management of Limes Farm Hall as from June 2008. This
was understood to arise from difficulties experienced in making the facility cost effective and
general management problems encountered. The date for the transfer was, however,
extended by negotiation to 31 March 2009.

3. At its meeting in November 2008, the Cabinet agreed to meet the costs of
management and essential repairs to Limes Farm Hall over the period 1 April 2009 to 31

Page 105



March 2010, via DDF provision totalling £47,520.00. Cabinet agreed this sum, to ensure that
community use of the Hall was retained whilst its longer-term future was determined.

4, To meet with the wishes of Cabinet, a multi-agency stakeholder group was formed in
January 2009, with representatives from Essex County Council; West Essex PCT, Limes
Farm Community Association, Essex Police, Chigwell Parish Council, Limes Farm Junior and
Infant Schools, East Potential, London & Quadrant Housing and the Council’s Housing,
Community Development and Safer Communities Services. The purpose of this group was
to assess the potential long-term future of the hall or alternative facility, in providing a range
of improved local services. The general consensus from the group was that people living on
Limes Farm would benefit significantly from provision of a multi-agency purpose built facility,
enabling the improvement in service delivery from a range of statutory and non statutory
partners.

5. Stakeholders were asked to seek external funding towards an improved multi-use
facility. An opportunity was identified through Essex County Council’'s Extended Schools
programme for capital development. A submission was made on behalf of the Council and
the wider stakeholder partnership. The full amount of £270,000 (£260,000 capital and
£10,000 revenue) was successfully secured towards the project in March 2009.

6. Following an interim report to Cabinet on 29 June 2009, on the success of the
external funding bid, Members requested the commissioning of an Options Appraisal and
Feasibility Study for potential development of Limes Farm Hall, to include an investigation of
both capital and revenue costs.

The Feasibility Study

7. In accordance with the Cabinet’s wishes, the Essex Procurement Hub was utilised to
identify suitably qualified consultants to undertake the options appraisal and feasibility study.

8. In the event, Norfolk Property Services were engaged. The company not only
undertook site and building condition surveys, but consulted with a wide range of local
stakeholders, who had an interest in any new provision.

9. Norfolk Property Services were tasked with looking at four broad options, namely
(i) refurbishment of the existing facility;
(i) refurbishment and extension of the existing facility;

(iii) demolition of the existing building and reprovision of new build to
accommodate a youth space on the same footprint; and

(iv) demolition of existing facility and reprovision of a larger new build to
accommodate a multi-agency community facility.

10. On the 16 November 2009, the results of the Feasibility Study were formally reported
to the Cabinet, who considered that the Option of a whole scale refurbishment and extension
of the existing facility achieved the best balance between enhanced provision and
affordability. At a capital cost of £842,125 (in addition to the £260,000 capital provided by
Essex County Council) not only could a significant new facility be provided for young people,
replacing the aging porta-cabin, but with the co-location of the Health Clinic, Housing Office
and Children’s Centre, the community could benefit from more immediate access to a range
of services provided by the Council and Partner Agencies. This was to include drop-in
sessions by the Police and the Council’s Benefits Service.

The Redevelopment

11. Having secured the capital provision, Norfolk Property Services undertook a

Page 106



competitive procurement exercise which resulted in Beardwells Ltd, being appointed as the
main contractor. Work started in April 2011 and was anticipated to be completed by 30
October 2011. Unfortunately, delays were experienced in having to remove additional
asbestos, not evident in initial building condition surveys and also to re-design some of the
steel work fabrication in the roof. With the refurbishment and extension of older buildings,
there is a risk that these types of eventualities may occur once the original fabric is exposed.
Notwithstanding the delay, the newly rebranded “Limes Centre” was opened in January 2012.
The opening ceremony was attended by some 400 residents, and since this initial event the
Centre has proven to be extremely popular.

12. A wide range of new activities are now provided from the Limes Centre for local
people of all ages and abilities. These include the daily provision of a Children’s Centre for
families with children under 5 years old, where parents are offered a range of parenting skills
training and support with budgeting and healthy eating and single parents have the
opportunity to access peer support. This service has been further enhanced by the
introduction of a Health and Baby Clinic which also operates on a daily basis and provides
families with support in regard to breastfeeding and baby & child care. The centre also offers
a regular programme of classes and activities which includes British Associated Judo clubs
for juniors and seniors, drama club for children, support group for migrant families, youth and
older people’s activities, karate clubs for juniors and adults, women’s health and fitness
sessions and a new community café is due to be launched in September, which it is hoped
will become a Social Enterprise initiative. The facilities are additionally utilised for children’s
and family parties regularly at weekends and the main hall receives bookings for weddings
during the summer months.

13. In addition to the ongoing programme of community activities offered, residents have
also been making good use of the Housing Management and other advisory services on
offer. The Children’s Centre is well utilised, with the Council recently reallocating some of the
office accommodation to provide a better and more efficient working environment for their
staff. In order to support the work of the Children’s Centre, a rationalisation of storage is
planned which will involve the knock through of an internal wall, the estimated cost of which
has been allowed for within the outturn figure.

14. One disappointing aspect of the project has been the time taken to achieve the
relocation of the Health Centre into the new building. This has been delayed primarily
because of the changes within health service management generally, with the demise of the
Primary Care Trust and the establishment of the new provider South Essex Partnership Trust
(SEPT). However, the lease and outstanding maintenance responsibility issues have now
been finalised and at the time of drafting this report, the Health Centre, was due to relocate to
the Limes Centre on the 29 August 2013.

15. Whilst the general quality of the new build has been to the specified standards, there
have been a number of design issues and outstanding snagging items that have taken a
protracted period of negotiation to resolve. However, the Architect and Builder have
accepted responsibility for their respective issues and work is being finalised currently. An
update on this will be given at Cabinet. Whilst it has been frustrating seeking resolution of all
outstanding matters, this has not adversely affected the use and enjoyment of the Centre by
the residents. However, one issue that has become apparent is that the acoustics,
particularly in the main hall are poor, with a lot of reflected noise, particularly when use for
children’s parties and functions. A specialist acoustic survey has been commissioned and it
may be that additional resource will be required, depending on the solutions proposed. This
will be subject to a future separate report.

16. Overall, the Limes Centre has come in on budget, despite the delayed construction

period and is proving to be a well valued community resource for the residents of Limes Farm
and surrounding area.

Page 107



Resource Implications:

A sum of £270,000 was secured from Essex County Council Extended Schools Funding, with
£260,000 capital being allocated towards the building costs of the improved community
facilities and £10,000 of revenue towards the design and options study.

A contribution from the Council’s Capital Programme of £842,000 has been made.

Partners involved in the development have committed to contributing the revenue costs of
their premises within the new building. The Council’s revenue costs are being met within
existing budget provision.

The Caretaker TUPE transferred from Chigwell Parish Council.
Legal and Governance

The Council has power under the Community Wellbeing Act 2000 to provide these types of
community facilities.

All necessary Planning Approvals were achieved and the environment around the Centre has
been improved.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The quality of life and community cohesion have been improved for residents on Limes Farm.
The new facility is anticipated to have an impact on anti-social behaviour on the estate by the
provision of a range of diversionary activities. In addition, the new facilities enable much
improved access to service provision on behalf of the Council and partners including on site
benefits advice, primary health care, purpose built youth facility and learning and skills for
people of all ages, therefore increasing opportunities to change lives significantly and
particularly for young people currently not in Employment, Education and Training.

Consultation Undertaken:

An extensive range of consultation has been undertaken with local residents and
stakeholders, including specific face-to-face consultation with young people, families, the
elderly and the range of stakeholders and partners involved.

Background Papers:

Future of Limes Farm Hall Cabinet Report November 2008.
Limes Farm Cabinet Report November 2009.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

The Risk Assessment undertaken in 2009 confirmed that there was a significant risk that if a
decision was taken to close Limes Farm Hall and not re-provide a community facility,
incidences of anti-social behaviour may increase and community response will be negative.
In addition, the decision to withdraw this community facility would adversely affect the
Council’s reputation as a key service provider and particularly in respect of the Council’s last
Benefits Inspection where it was identified that the Council needs to provide greater access
to benefits advice and services.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Page 108



Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment Yes
Process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
The redevelopment has had a positive Equality Impact, in that the provision of a new
community facility on Limes Farm enables the Council to widen access to its core services
and therefore improve equality of service provision for the elderly and many socio-
economically disadvantaged residents. In addition, young people at risk of social exclusion
would specifically be supported in terms of their integration within the community and wider
society and people with disabilities have much improved access to the building through
design adjustments to meet with DDA.

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Agenda ltem 12

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-023-2012/13 _
Epping Forest

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013 District Council

Portfolio: Housing

Subject: Repairs Management Contract — Contract Renewal
Responsible Officer: Paul Pledger (01992 564248)

Democratic Services: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Cabinet notes the outcome of the first three years of the “Insourcing”
arrangements with Mears Ltd as the Repairs Management Contractor;

(2) That the contract with Mears Ltd as the Repairs Management Contractor be
renewed for a further 3-years, with the rates adjusted in line with the Consumer Price
Index in accordance with the terms of the agreement;

(3) That the Consumer Price Index also be applied to the “Incentive” payment of
£2,000 per quarter as set out in the contract, subject to ALL contract KPI’s being met in
each quarter; and

(4) That the Housing Scrutiny Panel considers and recommends to the Housing
Portfolio Holder any future “Key Deliverables” and Service Enhancements that may to be
added to the agreement in Years 3-6.

Executive Summary:

In May 2011, the Council entered into a three-year contract with Mears Ltd as the Repairs
Management Contractor as part of the Repairs Refresh Programme. Since then, the Council’s
Housing Repairs Service has seen a stepped change in performance and service delivery. This
report sets out the changes that have been made and the improvements that have been
realised.

When extending the existing agreement, the Council is able to add further new “Key
Deliverables” to the contract, and this report recommends that the Housing Scrutiny Panel
considers and recommends to the Housing Portfolio Holder what these may consist of and the
benefits they will bring to the Council and its tenants. Members should note a report to the
Cabinet in September will be recommending one additional “Key Deliverable” relating to the
Council’s out of hours service.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:
The agreement with Mears Ltd as the Repairs Management Contractor was initially for a three-
year term, with an option to extend for up to two more terms of 3-years. In April 2014, the

Council needs to enter into a further contract for three years in accordance with the initial OJEU
Notice.

Page 111



Other Options for Action:

Not to enter into a new contract with Mears, and to revert back to a DLO managed in-house.
However, this would mean procuring a new IT package to replace the one currently used by the
Housing Repairs Service licensed by Mears.

Not to enter into a new contract with Mears, and to re-tender to appoint an alternative Repairs
Management Contractor. This would mean placing a new notice in the OJEU and undertaking a
further procurement exercise.

Report:

1. In April 2011, following an OJEU procurement exercise, the Cabinet agreed to enter into
a three-year contract with Mears Ltd as the Repairs Management Contractor (RMC) to
implement changes in the Housing Repairs Service that would see improvements in service
and performance. Subject to the performance of the RMC, that contract could be extended by
two further three-year terms. The first three-year term expires in April 2014; therefore it is
important to consider the options to extend early enough so that should the Council wish to re-
tender the contract, sufficient time is allowed to undertake such an exercise.

2. Since May 2011 when the contract was let, Mears have implemented all 5 of the
contract “Key Deliverables”, namely, the introduction of an efficient IT System that is integrated
with the Council's OHMS Repairs Module, Mobile Working, an appointment system for all
repairs, a supply chain solution (for the purchase of materials), and the introduction of a pricing
system that accurately costs each job.

3. Within 8 months of the contract commencing, the Mears MCM IT system was
implemented and in full operation, which saw an appointment-based process with mobile
working for operatives introduced. Combined with Health & Safety audits, risk assessments,
changes in working processes and behaviour, the performance in repairs targets improved
almost overnight, resulting in the Council achieving all of its repairs KPI's last year for the first
time ever. To put this into perspective, the Council is now able to undertake ALL repairs,
irrespective of priority, within an average of just 6.21 days, with emergencies being completed
within an average time of 4 hours. This is a vast improvement on around 84% of all routine
repairs being undertaken in 8 weeks and emergencies undertaken within 24 hours, which was
the case when the former Building Maintenance Works Unit was incorporated into the Housing
Directorate under the last Corporate Restructure in 2008.

4. The concept of “Insourcing” was first considered and approved by the Cabinet in May
2008, when it was agreed to reduce the number of craft workers, but retain a core to undertake
a proportion of the day to day ad hoc repairs to the Council’'s housing stock, and/or repairs to
void properties, with the balance of the work not undertaken directly by the Council being
externalised via new or existing framework agreements. Since that time, the Council has seen a
reduction of over 10 fte staff in the Repairs Service. Despite this reduction (and saving in
establishment costs), the average productivity has risen from around 1.3 jobs per person per
day to around 5 jobs per person per day. This increase in productivity stems, in part, from the
appointment-based approach to repairs, where tenants are providing access when appointed.
This in turn has seen a reduction in the use of sub-contractors, rather than an increase as was
expected, resulting in savings of around £600,000 per annum to the Housing Repairs Fund.

5. In May of this year, the final “Key Deliverable” to introduce a supply chain solution (for
the procurement of supplies) was completed, some 12 months ahead of the target. With
“‘Insourcing” being pioneered by the Council, the Cabinet is recommended to note the
exceptional changes and performance of the Housing Repairs Service, and in particular the

Page 112



Repairs Management Contractor.

6. With that in mind, it is time to consider whether or not to enter into a contract with Mears
Ltd for a further three-year term, when the existing contract expires at the end of March 2014,
as set out in the contract. Whilst the fees and costs were recorded in the original tender
exercise, the contract prescribes the mechanism for future annual increases to these rates,
which are calculated using the Consumer Price Index (CPI). This price uplift would now become
applicable to the “Services” element of the contract, which currently stands at around £110,000
per annum. The latest CPI indicators would see a rise by around 2.7% for 2014/15.

7. As part of the contract terms, Mears are also entitled to receive an incentive payment
amounting to £2,000 per quarter, subject to ALL contract KPI's being achieved in the quarter.
These were not subjected to an annual increase in the original contract. However, in the spirit of
Partnering, it is recommended that these too be increased in line with the Consumer Price
Index in a similar way as the “Services” are uplifted. This would result in an increase of around
£54 per quarter.

8. The Contract named the Repairs Manager put forward by Mears, with the expectation
that this person would remain in position whilst still working for Mears. Mike Gammack was that
named person, and has been very much at the heart of the success of the changes in the
Housing Repairs Service, and it would be of great benefit to the Council if Mike Gammack was
to remain in the role as Repairs Manager for a further period of time. Therefore, Officers have
sought some reassurance from Mears on the future of Mike Gammack as the Repairs Manager.
The response can be summarised as follows:

“For the comfort of Council Members and Officers, | can confirm that Mike's work at
Epping Forest District Council will remain his priority and he will continue to be based
alongside the Housing Repairs Team and, to all intents and purposes, continue to report
to the Assistant Director of Housing (Property) on a daily basis.”

9. Continuous improvement is the theme of the Repairs Management Contract, which is
managed through the introduction of new “Key Deliverables” or Service Enhancements. Since
the former Repairs Advisory Group (RAG), chaired by the Housing Portfolio Holder, was given
delegated authority to consider future new Key Deliverables and Service Enhancements, it is
recommended that since the RAG no longer meets, and its business now transferred to the
Housing Scrutiny Panel, in future, all new Key Deliverables and service enhancements will be
considered first by the Housing Scrutiny Panel, with recommendations made to the Housing
Portfolio Holder.

10. The Cabinet is asked to note a new “Key Deliverable” relating to the future of the
Council’'s Out of Hours Service is proposed for consideration at its meeting in September.

Resource Implications:

Around £110,000 per annum in “Services” and a further £8,000 per annum in “Incentive”
payments, all to be funded from the existing Housing Repairs Fund.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The Repairs Management Contract was let in accordance with OJEU procurement rules, and
was let with the option to extend to a maximum of 9-years in 3-yearly terms.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

None.

Page 113



Consultation Undertaken:
None.
Background Papers:

Cabinet reports in May 2008 and April 2011 on the restructure of the Housing Repairs Service
and the appointment of the Repairs Management Contractor respectively.

Impact Assessments:

The need for separate Equalities Impact Assessments has been considered but deemed
unnecessary, since a Housing Repairs Service and Asset Management Customer Impact
Assessment has been carried out for all responsive repairs and planned maintenance works,
which includes replacement kitchens. This includes monitoring customer satisfaction. Priority for
works is based on the condition of the components in the home rather than the individual
characteristics of the occupants.

The main risks to the Council and or mitigation factors have been taken into account are:

. Should the Council not enter into a new contract with Mears, or enter into a contract with
any other Contractor, the level of performance and service may deteriorate.

Page 114



Agenda ltem 13

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-024-2013/14 _

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Asset Management and Economic Development

Subject: Proposed Refurbishment of Bakers Lane Toilets Epping

Responsible Officer: Mike Tipping (01992 564280).

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That a tender by Amwell Construction Ltd., in the sum of £87,277.47 be
accepted for the refurbishment of the Bakers Lane Epping Public Toilets including
provision for a Changing Places Facility; and

(2) That Contract Standing Orders in relation to the procedure for inviting,
receiving and opening tenders be waived in respect of this contract for the reasons set
out in the report.

Executive Summary:

This report describes the results of a tendering procedure carried out by Agents acting on
behalf of the Council, and seeks retrospective approval to waive Contract Standing Orders in
relation to the normal process for inviting tenders.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To enable the refurbishment project to proceed without delay and also to avoid jeopardising
the grant funding received from Essex County Council for the Changing Places element of
the refurbishment project.

Other Options for Action:

To set aside the tenders received and conduct a fresh tendering process in accordance with
Contract Standing Orders. This would lead to further delays before the refurbishment project
could proceed and also incur delays in terminating the contract for the existing Superloo in
Buckhurst Hill which cannot be done until the Superloo currently at Bakers Lane can be
transferred to Buckhurst Hill.

Report:

1. The Cabinet at its meeting on 3 February 2013 approved capital expenditure in the
sum of £85,000 for the refurbishment of the public toilets in Bakers Lane Epping. This sum
included £50,000 grant from Essex County Council for the provision of a Changes Places
facility. Changing places facilities are for severely disabled people and their carers to use and
incorporate devices such as lifts and hoists. The nearest changing places facility from Epping
is 22 miles away.

Page 115



2. Cabinet also approved supplementary DDF expenditure in the sum of £21,000 to
relocate the Superloo in Bakers Lane to Buckhurst Hill.

3. In March 2013 the Portfolio Holder for Asset Management and Economic
Development made a portfolio holder decision that in accordance with Standing Order C9 a
negotiated contract be entered into with Beardwell Construction Ltd for the refurbishment of
public toilets in Bakers Lane Epping, the value of the contract not to exceed £85,000.

4. This decision was made as there was insufficient time to allow for the normal
tendering process whilst ensuring that the District Council secured the grant funding from
Essex County Council. There was also a consensus between the County Council, the District
and the Town Council that the project would proceed in the shortest possible time.

5. Stace LLP agents acting on behalf of the Council entered into negotiations with
Beardwell Construction Ltd but could not achieve a tender price within the budget set by the
Council or a figure that was close to it.

6. Stace sought alternative tenders from two other companies known to them as having
undertaken similar projects or having the technical ability to undertake this refurbishment.

7. The outcome of the process is that Amwell Construction Ltd., has submitted the
lowest price in the sum of £87,277.47. Stace also point out that this price makes no
allowance for contingencies.

8. This figure exceeds the previously approved budget of £85,000 by just £2,277.47 In
addition Stace LLP has recommended a small contingency sum of £2,000 should also be
allowed within the project cost, making the total additional budget required of £4,280.

9. To avoid seeking supplementary capital budget it is proposed to fund this additional
requirement from the capital contingency budget within the Planned and Preventative
Maintenance Programme for 2013/14.

10. It is evident that the process has not been carried out in strict accordance with
Contract Standing Orders in relation to the invitation, receipt and opening of tenders. Having
said that it is clear that:

(a) a competitive process has been undertaken;

(b) the company now recommended is on Constructionline (one of the required
alternatives within contract standing orders); and

(c) a negotiated contract has been achieved within the spirit of the previous
Portfolio Holder decision albeit with a different company.

11. The options open to the Council are, firstly to accept the process that has been
undertaken and award the contract to Amwell Construction Ltd and approve the additional
capital expenditure, or, secondly to set aside the tenders obtained by Stace LLP and start the
process again in accordance with contract standing orders.

12. To start the process again will lead to further delays not only in starting the
refurbishment project but also in terminating the existing contract for the Superloo at
Buckhurst Hill which is to be replaced with the Superloo currently at Bakers Lane once the
refurbishment of the toilet block has been completed. The saving on termination of the
Buckhurst Hill contract will be £18,000 per annum.

Page 116



13. There is no guarantee that the outcome of a fresh tendering exercise would achieve a
tender price within the £85,000 budget approved by the Council.

14. On balance therefore it is recommended that to avoid further delay the
recommendation by Stace LLP to award a contract to Amwell Construction Ltd in the sum of
£87,277.47 be approved and that contract standing orders be waived in relation to this
contract.

Resource Implications:

£85,000 approved Capital Budget for 2013/14. Additional capital budget of £4,280 required in
2013/14 to funded from capital contingency within the Planned and Preventative Maintenance
Programme.

Legal and Governance Implications:

A competitive process has been undertaken but not in strict accordance with contract
standing orders. However it is considered that best value has been obtained through the
process that has been undertaken.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

There are no specific implications.

Consultation Undertaken:

None.

Background Papers:

Tender report by Stace LLP.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management
Refurbishment works to preserve the value and condition of a Council property asset.

Equality and Diversity
There will be a positive impact through the creation of a changing places facility especially
designed for severely disabled people and their carers.

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially
adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Agenda ltem 14

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference:  C-025-2013/14

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013 E_pp!ng Forest_
District Council

Portfolio: Planning

Subject: Methodology for Determining Objectively Assessed Housing Need
Responsible Officer: Sarah King (01992 564347)

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) To note the national planning policy, and best practice in determining Objectively
Assessed Housing Need (OAHN);

(2) To note the implications of (1) for the preparation of the new Local Plan for Epping
Forest District; and

(3) To agree the broad methodology for determining OAHN as set out in this report.
Executive Summary:

In the vacuum left by the revocation of Regional Spatial Strategies (e.g. the East of England
Plan), local authorities must now set their own Local Plan targets for the future development of
housing. National policy requires that each area determine its ‘Objectively Assessed Housing
Need’ (OAHN) using official population and household projections, housing information such as a
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), and economic data.

As housing markets do not respect administrative boundaries, the SHMA covering the housing
market area which includes Epping Forest District also includes other local authorities. If the
OAHN cannot be accommodated within a district's own boundaries, then the authority should
work with other adjacent authorities within the housing market area, through the Duty to
Cooperate (National Planning Policy Framework para. 178), to see if they can accommodate
some of the unmet need.

National policy, guidance and best practice and recent Examinations in Public all point to the
need for a robust determination of OAHN, based on clear evidence. This report deals only with
the methodology for determining the OAHN. The next phase of work, which relates this to a target
for market and affordable housing in the authority’s area, will be addressed in a future Cabinet
report.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To ensure that ongoing preparation of the new Local Plan is robust, conforms to national planning
policy and guidance, and takes account of best practice.

Other Options for Action:

Not to consider Objectively Assessed Housing Need, as required by national planning policy (and

Page 119



thus not to base a new housing target on this assessment). However, this would seriously risk the
new Local Plan being found ‘unsound’, i.e. not being accepted at Examination in Public stage by
the Planning Inspectorate. This in turn is very likely to mean that the Council would have much
less control over where development takes place, as planning applications for housing would be
more likely to be granted on appeal. There is therefore no realistic alternative option to
establishing the Objectively Assessed Housing Need for the District and basing housing
development targets upon this assessment.

Report:
Introduction

1. Until recently, housing figures for inclusion in each local authority’s Local Plans were
determined by Regional Assemblies, and set out within the relevant Regional Spatial Strategy
(RSS). For Epping Forest District this was the East of England Plan (EEP). These figures took
into account demographic modelling. However, Government has now revoked all Regional Spatial
Strategies, and housing figures are no longer set at a regional or central Government level.

2. The responsibility of considering housing need and setting a figure through a Local Plan
now rests with each individual local authority as set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF). This presents a significant challenge to local Councils, who often do not
have much experience in such work, particularly demographic modelling.

3. Any new housing figure must of course be based on robust evidence, involving population
forecasting, housing need and affordability and other issues, such as a Council’s strategic
ambitions for economic growth or regeneration.

National Planning Policy

4. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) makes it clear that the planning system
should supply an adequate amount of housing, stating that it must ‘provide the supply of housing
required to meet the needs of present and future generations’ (para. 7). The document is
predicated on the ‘presumption in favour of sustainable development’, one of the objectives of
which is to widen the choice of homes in the country (para. 9). This presumption means that
crucially, local plans should meet their objectively assessed needs (housing and other) unless
‘any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in the [NPPF] taken as a whole’.

5. The NPPF introduces the concept of Objectively Assessed Housing Need (OAHN) at para.
47: ‘To boost significantly the supply of housing, local planning authorities should...use their
evidence base to ensure that their Local Plan meets the full, objectively assessed needs for
market and affordable housing in the housing market area, as far as is consistent with the
policies set out in this Framework .

6. Paragraph 47 refers to a Strategic Housing Market Area. A housing market, a regional or
local area with its own supply and demand characteristics, does not usually respect district
boundaries. Epping Forest District is part of the London Commuter Belt East housing market
area, which also incorporates Brentwood, Broxbourne, East Hertfordshire, Harlow, and Uttlesford.
The NPPF directs that local authorities should prepare a Strategic Housing Market Assessment
(SHMA) in order to assess the likely housing need which ‘meets household and population
projections, taking account of migration and demographic change’ (paragraph 159). This
paragraph also makes plain that local authorities must plan for the effects of migration, and not
only consider ‘natural’ population change arising from their existing population.

7. Although "objectively assessed housing need” is not defined within the NPPF, paragraph

Page 120



50 states that local authorities should ‘plan for a mix of housing based on current and future
demographic trends, market trends and the needs of different groups in the community.....". This
sends a clear message that population growth and change must be analysed in detail, using up to
date demographic information, and looking at the types of households and different needs that
they might have, e.g. older people and young families.

8. The NPPF also gives four tests which a Local Plan must meet to be found “sound” at
Examination in Public. The first of these is that it must be ‘Positively prepared — the plan should
be prepared based on a strategy which seeks to meet objectively assessed development and
infrastructure requirements, including unmet requirements from neighbouring authorities where
it is reasonable to do so and consistent with achieving sustainable development’ (paragraph 182).
This section highlights one of the purposes of the Duty to Cooperate, namely that each local
authority should identify its OAHN, and if it cannot be completely accommodated (due to physical
capacity or significant harm to the other purposes of the NPPF), should work with adjacent local
authorities to see if they can take on some of this unmet need. This is of course a two way
process, some authorities may want to “export” need, and some may be prepared to “import” it.
Given existing planning policy constraints such as Green Belt, it is likely that many authorities in
Essex will wish in the first instance to export some of their need rather than take some from other
districts. However, it is clear that the exceptional need to trigger a review of the Green Belt
(NPPF, paragraph 83) applies where this need cannot be met on existing sites, and many of
Epping Forest District's neighbours have similar constraints. Such a review forms part of the
production of the Epping Forest District Local Plan. An accompanying item on this agenda relates
to the Green Belt review.

9. Local authorities must also consider Gypsy Roma Traveller (GRT) need for pitches and
sites as a facet of housing need. Advice on addressing GRT accommodation need is given in
‘Planning Policy for Traveller Sites’ (CLG, 2012) which was published alongside the NPPF.
Paragraph 4 of this document explains that Government wants local authorities to *.....make their
own assessment of need for the purposes of planning’ and ‘work collaboratively, developing fair
and effective strategies to meet need through the identification of land for sites’. This part of
housing need will be assessed by the updated Essex-wide Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Assessment, which is currently being prepared.

10. The key message therefore is that it is the responsibility of every local planning authority to
plan for its own objectively assessed housing needs, including the needs of all types of
households and special groups, and how these may be accommodated in future.

Guidance and Best Practice in Determining Objectively Assessed Housing Need

11. Several documents have been published in recent months on how to determine OAHN.
Two of these have been produced jointly by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) and the Local
Government Association (LGA).

12. ‘Successful plan-making: Advice for practitioners’ (2013) discusses all aspects of
preparing a local plan, including OAHN. It advises that local authorities must understand their
OAHN in isolation first. The document makes it clear that consideration of local capacity and
constraints must come after the initial determination of OAHN. It explains that ‘/f you have
identified the need, but the plan isn’t meeting it, you will have to demonstrate how the harm
caused by not meeting the need is outweighed by the harm caused by meeting if.
Examples of factors that could outweigh not meeting the need are given as limiting development
in National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, i.e. nationally determined
designations. This advice also reinforces the NPPF’s requirements for OAHN to be determined
using demographic information including migration trends, and a cross-border Strategic Housing
Market Assessment (such as that outlined in para. 6 which includes this Council).

Page 121



13. The document also refers to the Duty to Cooperate, and how this will come into play when
any local authority is unable to meet the needs generated in its own area, or is being asked to
help meet another authority’s identified need. The guidance noted in paragraph 16 of this report
makes a salient point in this respect, namely that it is entirely inappropriate to ask your
neighbours to accommodate housing on land with the same capacity constraints or environmental
designations that you have dismissed.

14. A further study called ‘Choice of Assumptions in Forecasting Housing Requirements:
Methodological Notes’ (Cambridge Centre for Housing & Planning Research, 2013) notes that
migration assumptions should not be altered from those in the official projections unless there is
detailed evidence to support this. It states that *.....authorities should normally plan on the basis of
the official projections.” The NPPF makes it clear that migration should be taken into account, and
‘assumptions that imply departure from recent trends (on which the official projections are
based) would need to be carefully justified . It argues that if local authorities feel that the harm
of providing all the OAHN in the area would have an adverse impact on the area, they should
consider the counter adverse impact of not providing the housing - i.e. the potential harm to the
area should be balanced against the potential harm to those who may have to live in overcrowded
or shared accommodation as a result.

15. The Cambridge Centre report highlights the issue of unmet need as being of importance to
the Duty to Cooperate. If an area cannot meet its OAHN, then this could have significant impacts
on surrounding areas; i.e. the places from which people leave to come to the area (for Epping
Forest District this is mostly outer London boroughs), and the places which people go to on
leaving the area (for Epping Forest District, mostly into more rural Essex). It also advises that
planning Inspectors will ....probe closely into any arguments that an authority is capacity
constrained’, and that ‘.....it would not be reasonable simply to extract any “extra” flow from the
projection without understanding where those that an authority is not proposing to accommodate
will live'.

Principles for Establishing the Objectively Assessed Housing Need

16. A second PAS/LGA document called ‘Ten key principles for owning your housing number
— finding your objectively assessed needs’ (2013), sets out the key stages in understanding
OAHN for a local authority area. These are (broadly):
(a) using up to date demographic evidence to understand how the population has
changed in the past, and what the components of change are (births, deaths, internal
migration, international migration);

(b) understanding what up to date population and household projections are saying
will happen over the period of the plan (for EFDC this will be up to 2033);

(c) deciding whether the evidence justifies the development of different scenarios,
which must be based on evidence,

(d) benchmarking the scenarios against economic growth ambitions;
(e) testing the implications in terms of change in population and households;
() understanding what the affordable need and market demand are showing; and

(9) setting out the likely range of housing requirements and testing the appropriate mix
of housing in terms of tenure, type and size required as a result.

17. The work which Edge Analytics has done on the Essex-wide population study, and the

Page 122



additional work which they are doing specifically for Epping Forest District, will help to provide
evidence for points (a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) above. This work uses the official population and
household figures as a basis, but also considers change at ward level between 2001 and 2011.
The sub-regional Strategic Housing Market Assessment which is currently being updated will help
to provide evidence for points (f) and (g).

18. The PAS/LGA document makes it clear that the most recent Governmental projections for
population and households should be the starting point in understanding OAHN. This Council has
used these as a starting point, as the work prepared by Edge Analytics is based on the Office of
National Statistics’ (ONS) most recent population projections and the Department for
Communities and Local Government’s (DCLG) most recent household projections. The document
advises that there is no single right answer to what a local authority’s OAHN might be, and that
the exact figure is a matter of judgement, but advises that the range of scenarios considered must
be robust and based on credible evidence. It states that for example ‘a ‘zero-migration’ scenario is
not achievable because you cannot stop migration occurring, so using this as a scenario will have
limited value if it is included as part of the requirement range’. The Edge Analytics work includes a
‘zero-migration’ (or net-nil migration) scenario but this is for information purposes only, as past
data shows that Epping Forest District does not experience zero-net migration.

19. The PAS/LGA document also advises that a SHMA should be prepared, and must:
(a) be up to date;
(b) be prepared across the whole of the relevant housing market area;
(c) involve all interested parties across the Council;
(d) include an explicit assessment of affordable housing need; and
(e) provide an assessment of market demand.

20. The London Commuter Belt East SHMA, which this Council is part of, will fulfil these
functions. Part of the reason that a cross-border SHMA is necessary is that, logically, if housing
need cannot be met within a district’'s own area, it should be met within the local housing market
area. Having a cross-border SHMA with the Council’s neighbours therefore helps to open debate
about addressing unmet need within the housing market area. A further update of the SHMA is
likely to be needed prior to submission of the final new Local Plan; this would be undertaken
within the context of the forthcoming new government guidance on SHMA.

21. These studies and reports all provide useful pointers as to factors to take into account,
and pitfalls to avoid, when determining OAHN. The conclusion is that while an element of
judgement is involved in interpreting evidence, there must be a firm foundation of objective
evidence, based on national datasets, from which to proceed, coupled with a clear view with
respect to the projections and aspirations regarding future economic activity in the District.

22. Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners published a helpful diagram showing the key information

and the process often used to determine Objectively Assessed Housing Need in their study
‘Objectively Speaking’ of 2013. This is shown below (adapted slightly for ease of use):

Page 123



Figure 1: adapted from ‘Objectively Speaking’, NLP, 2013

amz._ou_.m_o:mn factors

« Matural change

« Migration

« Headship rates

« Census 2001

« ONS (population) projections
ﬂo_.@ (household) projections

Housing factors

* SHMA estimates of need for all housing types,
including affordahble

» Past delivery rates

* Regeneration, renewal and replacement

«Yacancy rates and second homes

v

\
Forecasting work by
Edge Analytics (POPGROUR madel)
p

Objectively Assessed

%mmmm against local vo__n_y

» Council ohjectives
» Relevant local plans &

» | EF priorities

= Economic grovwth strategy

» Spatial priorities & settlerment
strategies

A\ 4

> Housing Need (OAHN)

/EVIDENCE N\

Capacity, delivery & impacts
« Environmental capacity  « Land availabilibyftrajectony

proposals e & |nfrastructure capacity  ® Cross-boundary unmet need

s Development viahility/demand

Benefits
s Economic (jobs, GVA, strategic) = Social

ﬁ_%\mm:cn”c_\m funding

Economic factors

* Current employment

s Employment forecasts

* Ecanomic activity rates and
unemployment

* Commuting flows

* Housing : jobs ratio

* Tax revenue \

> Recommended Housing Target

%mmmm against National Policy

# Mational Planning Policy Framework
* Plan for Growth

e | «Housing Strategy

“Meef objeclivel assessed needs
Uniess adiverse impacts significanth
and demonstrably oufweigh the
benefits”

U

Duty to Cooperate

s Approach to meeting unmet needs

Infrastructure Needs

« [nfrastructure delivery plans

Page 124



How other local authorities have approached Objectively Assessed Housing Need

23. Forward Planning officers have investigated what other local authorities in Essex are
doing to determine their Objectively Assessed Housing Need. Of the 13 other authorities in
Essex:

. 1 (Maldon) has published an OAHN figure, which is based on the official (ONS) population
projection, and its SHMA is still being prepared;

. 1 (Brentwood) has determined an OAHN figure, but the study explaining what it is based
on has not been published yet;

. 6 are currently working on their OAHN, and are progressing towards a new Local
Plan/Core Strategy, but have not yet published a methodology or a figure;

. 4 have existing adopted documents which do not assess OAHN, but they are all planning

an early review which will include discussion of OAHN; and

. 1 (Braintree) has a very recently adopted Core Strategy (2011, just pre-NPPF) and is
preparing a Site Allocations document in accordance with that, without an assessment of
OAHN. Presumably this will lead to an early review taking into account OAHN.

The detailed results are shown in a table at Appendix 1.
24, It can therefore be seen that identifying OAHN, and the housing figure which is informed
by it, is an issue affecting all authorities in Essex (and elsewhere) and will be a constituent of all

up to date plans.

Lessons Learned at Examinations in Public

25. The real test for any new derived housing figure, and the Objectively Assessed Housing
Need figure on which it is based, is the Examination of a Local Plan. During the Examination, an
independent Inspector from the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) will consider whether or not the
local plan being examined has properly assessed housing need, and subject to other
environmental, capacity and duty-to-cooperate factors, and whether it contains provision for the
appropriate amount of housing.

26. Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners (NLP, a planning consultancy) has published a survey of
local plans submitted for examination during the first year of the NPPF, i.e. 27 March 2012 to April
2013. The study excluded any local plans for areas within London, as the London Plan (the RSS
for London) is still in place. A total of 55 local plans were submitted (some of which are still at
Examination). NLP checked whether each local plan had proposed a housing figure higher or
lower than the figure in the former RSS, and whether the figure was higher or lower than the
Government’s 2008 household projections, as a proxy measure of OAHN. (Since this report was
published, new household projections have been published).

27. Of the 55 local plans submitted to Examination, only 18 were found ‘sound’, i.e.
acceptable to the Inspector, and could be adopted for the relevant local authority to use. 8 of
these contained a housing figure equal to or higher than the old RSS target. 10 originally
contained a lower figure, but of these, 8 had to raise their figure in order to be found sound. So
only 2 of the local plans found sound had housing figures lower than their previous RSS figures -
Bournemouth and Taunton Deane. However, for both of these authorities, household projections
were lower than the former RSS targets. Both authorities were proposing housing targets higher
than their household projection figures so they were able to argue that they were meeting their
need. These data show that the majority of local plans have had to at least equal their former
RSS housing figure to be found sound. Overall, 44% of local plans found sound in the first year of
the NPPF had their housing figures increased at Examination.

Page 125



28. NLP also found that a significant number of local plans submitted within the first year of
the NPPF have had their Examinations suspended, to allow for further housing evidence to be
gathered and to make changes to the original housing figure proposed. This has been to focus on
what is closer to an Objectively Assessed Housing Need than the RSS figures.

29. In other cases Inspectors have found local plans sound on the basis that they will be
subject to an early review of housing figures; this was the case for 5 local authorities, and NLP
noted that ‘.....there is every expectation that refreshed plans will be prepared in the context of
new evidence showing significantly greater levels of need for housing'.

30. The study included case studies on a few specific local plans, one of which was Hertsmere
Borough Council’s, an authority with some of the same challenges as Epping Forest District,
namely a large proportion of land designated as Green Belt, a location just outside Greater
London and pressure for housing development. Hertsmere originally proposed a lower housing
figure than the RSS (which at that point was still in force). The Inspector was concerned that the
figure proposed would not meet either the RSS target or the 2008 household projection figure,
and no alternative evidence on housing need was put forward by the local authority. The
Inspector increased the target to the RSS figure, and agreed to find the local plan sound only if
Hertsmere agreed to do an early review. The implication is that if the RSS had not been in place
at that time, Hertsmere’s local plan would not have been found sound due to the ‘.....absence of
evidence on objectively assessed need, and failure to either review the Green Belt or address
unmet needs through the Duty to Cooperate..... .

31. NLP concluded that there is a need for ‘high quality, objective evidence on the need for
housing and the factors (such as social and economic needs, infrastructure plans, environmental
capacity, and deliverability)’. NLP also found that where arguments against specific levels of
development had been made on the grounds of environmental and infrastructure capacity, these
were not accepted without good evidence of ‘adverse impacts’, as per paragraph 14 of the NPPF.

Implications/Conclusions for Epping Forest District

32. Epping Forest District Council must determine the Objectively Assessed Housing Need of
its own area, using robust demographic, housing and economic evidence (first tier of Figure 1).
Demographic evidence will largely come from the Edge Analytics work shortly to be completed.
Housing evidence will come from the recently refreshed Strategic Housing Market Assessment
(SHMA), and other local information. Economic evidence will come from the Council’s existing
evidence base, and new economic work which is currently being prepared in light of recent data
being released, and the Council’s approach to its economic development priorities.

33. Although there is no official calculation to reach an OAHN figure, the first stage will be to
consider the range of population forecasts in the forthcoming Edge Analytics study, and the
housing numbers that these equate to. Councillors will need to consider which of these forecasts
is most suitable for the district on the basis of past trends, and is robust enough to stand up at
Examination in Public. The forecast will then need to be considered against the SHMA, in order to
consider housing need in general against affordability. For example, a lower forecast may suggest
a certain number of homes are needed, but this will need to be considered against the need for
affordable housing — and if a lower number of homes are built then this may not give the amount
of affordable housing that Councillors may wish to see provided. The SHMA sets out the level of
affordable housing that might be needed for different housing targets — if fewer homes are built
then proportionately more affordable housing will be needed on appropriate developments, as
there will be a lower number of large scale developments providing it. Conversely, a higher
housing target should result in a lower percentage of affordable housing on individual schemes,
because enough will be provided overall.

34. Economic factors also have to be taken into account. Given that in general the district’s

Page 126



population is rather older than average and that there is a lot of out-commuting, the labour force is
proportionately smaller than most. This means that if Members wanted to increase employment
levels in the District (see second tier of Figure 1, ‘Assess against local policies’), the Council
would need to plan for slightly higher development levels, both to increase development of
employment land, and to increase population and thus increase the labour force. A proportion of
new jobs could of course be taken on by existing residents, but past trends show that a large
number of people who live here commute to London, for many reasons such as greater job
opportunities in their profession. This is unlikely to change unless the Council decides to develop
the local economy significantly, with large scale economic development incorporating different
industries and activities.

35. Comparison of these three factors; population/household forecasting, the SHMA and
economic evidence, will lead to the identification of an OAHN figure for Epping Forest District.
This must then be considered against other evidence on environmental, social and economic
issues, capacity, and national and local policy, leading to the identification of a housing target
(second tier of Figure 1). This will include information from the Council’s existing evidence base,
such as the Strategic Land Availability Assessment (SLAA, which considers capacity), the
Settlement Edge Landscape Sensitivity Study, and the ongoing Sustainability Appraisal and
Habitats Regulations Assessment work. The infrastructure requirements necessary to deliver the
housing figure selected can then be finalised and incorporated into the Infrastructure Delivery
Plan, and discussions under the Duty to Cooperate over any housing need which cannot be met
can take place with adjacent local authorities (this could go in both directions as adjacent local
authorities may have excess unmet need, or may be able to accommodate some of Epping
Forest District’s need).

Next Steps

36. There will be a Member workshop to discuss Objectively Assessed Housing Need for
Epping Forest District in October. This will include presentation of the further work which the
Council commissioned Edge Analytics to do on population forecasting specifically for this District.

37. The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) for the London Commuter Belt East
(which includes Epping Forest District) has just been updated. This will be presented to the Local
Plan Cabinet Committee on Monday 14 October 2013. The SHMA is another key piece of
evidence about housing need and affordability which Members will need to consider when
identifying a new housing target.

38. The new Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (Essex-wide) will also be
presented to Local Plan Cabinet Committee on Monday 14 October 2013.

39. The further work from Edge Analytics will form part of the wider Local Plan evidence base
and will be formally presented to Cabinet on 21 October 2013. The Member workshop and SHMA
results will feed into another report to be presented to the Cabinet that evening, the purpose of
which will be to seek agreement on an Objectively Assessed Housing Need figure for the District
Resource Implications:

Work on identifying Objectively Assessed Housing Needs will form part of working towards the
new Local Plan, and features within the existing Local Plan budget.

Legal and Governance Implications:
The National Planning Policy Framework requires each local authority ‘objectively to identify and

then meet the housing, business and other development needs of [their] area’. Not to do so risks
having the new Local Plan found ‘unsound’, i.e. not being accepted at Examination in Public stage

Page 127



by the Planning Inspectorate.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The production of a new Local Plan, including consideration of population change and quantum of
housing development, will be subject to Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulation
Assessment throughout the process. This will ensure that environmental, social and economic
impacts and issues are weighed carefully.

Consultation Undertaken:

Internal consultation has taken plans with senior officers, the Interim Assistant Director, the Chief
Executive and the Portfolio Holder.

Background Papers:

National Planning Policy Framework, Department for Communities and Local Government, 2012 -
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2

Planning policy for traveller sites, Department for Communities and Local Government, 2012 -
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-policy-for-traveller-sites

Choice of Assumptions in Forecasting Housing Requirements: Methodological Notes, Cambridge
Centre for Housing & Planning Research, 2013 -
http://www.howmanyhomes.org/resources/Choice of Assumptions.pdf

Ten key principles for owning your housing number — finding your objectively assessed needs,
Local Government Association/Planning Advisory Service, 2013 -
http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/aio/3766545

Successful plan-making: advice for practitioners, Local Government Association/Planning
Advisory Service, 2013 - http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/aio/3770551

Objectively Speaking, 12 months of applying the NPPF to housing targets in Local Plans: A
review of examinations, Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners, 2013 - http://nlpplanning.com/objectively-

speaking

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

The National Planning Policy Framework requires each local authority ‘objectively to identify and
then meet the housing, business and other development needs of [their] area’. Not to do so risks
having the new Local Plan found ‘unsound’, i.e. not being accepted by the Planning Inspectorate.
This would very likely mean that the Council would have much less control over where
development took place, as planning applications for housing would be far more likely to be
granted on appeal by the Planning Inspectorate. The Local Plan features in the current Corporate
Risk Register (no. 1, rating A1) and in Planning and Economic Development Directorate’s Risk
Register.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Page 128



Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment N/A
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?

The preparation a sound Local Plan should actually impact positively on equality issues. This is
because the Local Plan will seek to meet the needs of the area over the next 20 year period,
including the provision of affordable housing, and the regeneration of deprived areas. The Local
Plan thus has the potential to improve the quality of life of people living, working and doing
business in the district. Planning for the correct type of housing in the correct mix, as per
forecasts of our future population and the calculation of our objectively assessed housing need,
will help to ensure that people can afford to live in the district, and have the right kind of housing
available to them.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?

The potential positive impacts listed above are not limited to any one particular group; the Local
Plan has the potential to improve the quality of life of all people living, working and doing business
in the District.

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Appendix 1: How other local authorities have approached Objectively Assessed

Housing Need

Local Authority

Progress on determining OAHN

Basildon DC

Published a Preferred Options document for new Local Plan in 2012
but now reviewing strategy in order to include an assessment of
OAHN. No detailed information currently available.

Braintree DC

Core Strategy adopted in 2011. Site Allocations document is being
prepared to be in conformity with Core Strategy and does not seek
to identify an OAHN figure.

Brentwood BC

Currently consulting on Preferred Options for new Local Plan.
Planning for provision for 3,500 dwellings between 2015 and 2030.
OAHN figure is given as 5,430 dwellings but the Peter Brett study
which identifies this figure has not been published as yet.

Castle Point BC

Issues and Options consultation for new Local Plan undertaken. Not
yet prepared Preferred Options stage. No information on OAHN
published yet.

Chelmsford CC

Reviewing existing 2008 Core Strategy to be in conformity with
NPPF. However not reviewing housing figures or identifying an
OAHN figure. Work on this will commence in Autumn 2015 following
adoption of the Core Strategy review.

Colchester BC

Draft submission Local Plan review consultation taking place until
September 2013. No OAHN figure is included. Full review of Local
Plan with OAHN figure and new allocations will take place following
adoption in 2015.

Harlow DC

Issues and Options consultation for new Local Plan initially took
place in January 2011. Review of Issues and Options consultation in
September 2013. No information on OAHN figure yet published.

Maldon DC

OAHN has been determined as 4,410 dwellings over a 15 year
period. The figure is based on the Sub-National Population
Projection figure of 294 dwellings per annum. SHMA not yet finished
but assessment of the conclusions will take place when it is
complete.

Rochford DC

Early review of the existing Core Strategy to be undertaken - the
dates are to be confirmed. The Core Strategy was adopted in
December 2011. There is no information published on OAHN.

Southend-on-Sea
UA

Core Strategy review - consultation to take place in early 2014. No
information on OAHN published.

Tendring DC

Proposing 4,000 new homes over a ten year period — 2011 to 2021.
Have not published any detailed information but an OAHN figure has
not been identified. Tendring have considered population projections
and SHMA, but they have also looked at capacity through the
SHLAA and constraints. More information on how the figure has
been identified will be published prior to submission in Spring 2014.

Thurrock UA

A review of the existing Core Strategy is being progressed but
Thurrock does not intend to review housing figures or allocations, as
the Council feels it can demonstrate an adequate housing supply.
However a further review for OAHN is planned in the next few years

Uttlesford DC

The Preferred Options consultation for a new Local Plan took place
in June 2012 with housing figures based on the former RSS. Pre-
Submission consultation has been delayed while more evidence is
prepared. No information has yet been published on OAHN.

Page 131




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



Agenda ltem 15

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-026-2013/14 _
Date of meeting: 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Asset Management and Economic Development

Subject: Assets of Community Value

Responsible Officers: Colleen O’Boyle (01992 564475).
Chris Overend (01992 564247).

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) To approve the procedure and policy attached to this report to ensure that the
Council complies with the Community Right to Bid (Assets of Community Value)
requirements.

Executive Summary:

This report sets out the duty placed on local authorities under the Localism Act 2011 (“the
Act’) and The Assets of Community Value (England) Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”) to
administer the Community Right to Bid (Assets of Community Value).

The Community Right to Bid places a new duty on local authorities in England and Wales to
maintain two lists; a list of assets of community value successfully nominated by the local
community and a list of assets that were nominated, but were unsuccessful in meeting the
eligibility criteria of assets of community value.

If land or buildings on the list of assets of community value come up for sale, the local
community will be given six months to prepare a bid to try to buy the land or asset.

This report sets out the procedure to be put into place to ensure that the Council complies
with the new duty.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To comply with a legal obligation introduced by the Localism Act 2011 and to agree a
procedure to ensure the requirements are met.

Other Options for Action:

An alternative or modified procedure could be adopted, but there must be a procedure to deal
with such bids as may be made.

Report:

1. The “Community Right to Bid” places a new duty on local authorities in England and
Wales to “maintain a list of land in its areas that is land of community value” as nominated by

Page 133



the local community. If land or buildings on this list come up for sale, the local community will
be given six months to prepare a bid to try to buy the land or asset.

2. The Council must also maintain a list of assets identified in unsuccessful nominations.
3. The provisions of the community right to bid:

(a) 1.3.1 Do not restrict who the owner of a listed asset can sell their property
to, nor at what price;

(b) 1.3.2 Do not confer a right of first refusal to community interest groups,
nor enable a community group to trigger disposal of a site; and

(c) 1.3.3 Do not place any restriction on what an owner can do with their
property, once listed, if it remains in their ownership. Planning policy determines
permitted uses for sites, but the Council could decide that listing as an asset of
community value is a material consideration if an application for change of use is
submitted.

Defining an “asset of community value”

4, The Act defines assets in terms of the purpose to which they are being, or have been
used. The asset must be within the Council’s area, but there is a duty on local authorities to
cooperate on sites that cross local authority boundaries. All ownership is covered, be it
public or private, and whether there is a single owner or multiple owners.

5. A building or piece of land is an asset of community value if it is at least partly within
the Council’s area, its main use has recently been to “further the social wellbeing or social
interest of the local community” and could do so in the future, and is defined regardless of the
nature and number of owners.

6. The table listed in Appendix 2 of this report provides a simple overview of what
constitutes an “asset of community value”.

7. There are exclusions within the Act, e.g. Residential properties, unless they are
integral to an asset of community value, such as living accommodation within a public or
caretaker’s flat within a community centre, Statutory undertakers (as defined in S263 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990) for instance utilities, transport providers, the Civil
Aviation Authority and the Post Office.

8. Assets of community value could include land or buildings where the main purpose is
as follows:

(a) The provision of public services directly to the public for the purposes of
education, health and wellbeing or community safety, including:

e Nurseries and schools;

e Children’s centres;

e Health centres, surgeries and hospitals; and

e Day care centres, residential care homes;

(b) Sport, recreation and culture including:
e Parks and open green spaces;
Sports and leisure centres;
e Libraries;

Page 134



e Theatres; and
Museums or heritage sites;

(c) Community services including:
Community centres;
¢ Youth centres; and
Public toilets; and

(d) Local democracy including town and civic halls.
9. Also included is an economic use which provides an important local social benefit
which would no longer be easily available if those services should cease. In these cases it is
the social value of the business that counts, not just the nature of the business. This could
include for example, village shops and pubs.

Nominations

10. Only the local community can nominate an asset for inclusion in the list. Nominations
must come from:

. A body designated as a neighbourhood forum (under Section 61F of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990);
. A parish or town council;

An unincorporated body:
o Whose members include at least 21 individuals; and
o Which does not distribute any surplus it makes to its members;

A charity;
. A company limited by guarantee which does not distribute any surplus it
makes to its members; or
J A community interest company.
11. A public or local authority may not be a voluntary or community body, but this

restriction does not apply to a parish or town councils.

12. Bodies other than a parish or town council must have a local connection with land in
the Council’s area.

13. Unincorporated bodies must also have at least 21 local members who are
registered at an address in the local authority’s area, or a neighbouring authority’s area as a
local government elector.
14. A nomination must include:
(a) a description of the nominated land including its proposed boundaries;
(b) a statement of all the information which the nominator has with regard to:
(1) the names of the current occupants of the land; and
(i) the names and current or last known addresses of all those holding a
freehold or leasehold estate in the land;

(c) the nominator’'s reasons for thinking that the responsible authority should
conclude that the land is community value; and

(d) evidence that the nominator is eligible to make a community nomination.

Page 135



Maintaining the List

15. Every nomination must be considered and all nominations which fit the definition of an
asset of community value must be included on the list.

16. The Council must give written notice of inclusion on the list to:
e the person who nominated the asset;
¢ the owner (the freeholder or a qualifying leaseholder); and
e any lawful occupier.

17. The list must be available for “free inspection” and the authority must “provide a free
copy of the list on request”. The Council must also define the format and content of the lists
and how to best make these publicly available, setting out a simple procedure covering

entries on the lists, modification of entries and removal. An outline process map is attached
at Appendix 1.

Land Charges
18. If land is included in the Council’s list of assets of community value then:
(a) inclusion in the list is a local land charge; and

(b) the Council is the originating authority for the purposes of the Local Land
Charges Act 1975.

19. This also requires that the Council must remove the restriction as soon as practicable
after removing the land from the list of assets of community value.

Sales and Moratorium Periods

20. If a local authority receives notice from an owner that they intend to dispose of an
asset which is on the list of assets of community value (disposal means either the sale of the
property or the granting of a lease of at least 25 years duration), they must publicise this fact
by:

(a) amending the published list with the relevant information — that a notice has
been received, and the dates of the interim and full moratorium periods and the
protection period;

(b) notifying in writing, the body that made the initial nomination; and
(c) publicising the matter locally.

21. The local community has a 6 week interim moratorium period (from the date the initial
notice is received from the landowner) to express interest in writing to the local authority that
“they wish to be treated as a potential bidder for the land”. There is no required format for
this expression of interest. Submitting an expression of interest does not commit the group to
making a bid. Whereas only certain groups can nominate an asset, any community group
can express an interest at this point and can trigger a moratorium period.

22. If no expression of interest is received, the landowner is free to dispose of their land.

If an expression of interest is received, the authority must notify the landowner and provide
them with information about the expression of interest and who submitted it.

Page 136



23. If an expression of interest is received by the local authority, the landowner may not
dispose of their land for six months. This is the six month full moratorium period which gives
the local community time to prepare a bid if they wish to do so. They are not obliged to
prepare or to submit a bid.

24. If a landowner receives a bid they are not obliged to accept it. The landowner and any
eligible community interest group may come to a mutual agreement and complete the sale
before the 6 month period is complete if they so wish.

25. There is an 18 month protected period (from the date that the initial notice is received
from the landowner) during which the landowner is protected from further attempts to block
the sale of the property.

Exemptions from the Moratorium Process

26. Some types of disposal are exempt from the moratorium process even if the asset is
listed. The Act and Regulations list the following exemptions:

e disposal through the gift of an asset;
disposal of an asset containing a business which uses the asset and which is
a “going concern” (e.g. a shop or public house still in operation);

o disposal within a family or partnership or between trustees of a trust or
between companies in a group;

e disposals in the execution of a will or arising from various legal proceedings
including separation agreements between spouses or civil partners;

o disposal of an asset that is part of a larger estate, part of which is not listed,
but where the whole estate is owned by the same person and is a single lot of
land;

e disposals made under any statutory provision relating to incapacity including

physical or mental impairment;

disposals from one NHS body to another;

disposals for ongoing educational provision;

disposals between connected companies; or

disposals as a result of bankruptcy or insolvency

Compensation

27. The Act allows private property owners who believe that they have incurred losses as
a result of complying with the procedures, to apply for compensation from the local authority.
The definition is:

“That the person making the claim has, at a time when the person was owner of the
land, and the land was listed, incurred loss or expense in relation to the land which
would be likely not to have been incurred if the land had not been listed”.

28. The Regulations provide that the following types of claim may be made:

(a) a claim arising from any period of delay in entering into a binding agreement to
sell the land which is wholly caused:

(i) by relevant disposals of the land being prohibited by Section 95(1) of
the Act during any part of the relevant 6 weeks that is on or after the date on
which the responsible authority receives notification under Section 95(2) of the
Act in relation to the land; or

Page 137



(ii) in a case where the prohibition continues during the 6 months
beginning with that date, by relevant disposals of the land being prohibited
during any part of the relevant 6 months that is on or after that date; and

(b) A claim for reasonable legal expenses incurred in a successful appeal to the
First Tier Tribunal against the responsible authority’s decision:

0] to list the land;

(i) to refuse to pay compensation; or

(iii) with regard to the amount of compensation offered or paid.
29. Claims for compensation must be made in writing to the Council before the end of 13
weeks after the loss or expense was incurred or finished being incurred. The owner must
state the amount of compensation sought for each part of the claim; and supporting evidence
must be provided.
30. The Regulations state the public bodies and departments mainly supported by public
funds and subject to public audit under the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the National

Audit Act 1983 are not entitled to compensation.

31. Where the Council has carried out a compensation review, the person who requested
the review may then appeal to the First Tier Tribunal against the decision.

Corporate Procedure

32. The outline procedure is shown in Appendix A below. The timelines given are set out
in the Regulations. Corporate responsibility for the Community Right to Bid will sit with the
Chief Executive and community bodies will be invited to submit nominations to the Policy and
Research Officer. Nominations will be determined by the Director of Corporate Support
Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Asset Management and Economic
Development.

33. The Leader and Portfolio Holders for Community Wellbeing and Finance and
Technology shall form any appeal panel.

34. The Policy and Research Officer will be responsible for maintaining the list of assets
nominated successfully as assets of community value and a separate list of
nominated assets which were unsuccessful.

35. The Policy and Research Officer shall amend the lists in the light of any appeals.

36. The Policy and Research Officer shall cause the list of assets of community value to
be published on the website and make copies available free of charge, on request.

Resource Implications:

Unknown at this stage although there will be officer time involved and there is the
potential for compensation claims.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The report is designed to meet the legal requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

Page 138



Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:
None
Consultation Undertaken:

Draft policy and procedure discussed by Management Board. Documentation
prepared by a small working party of the PLP.

Background Papers:
None.

Impact Assessments:
Risk Management

To fail to adopt a procedure would risk the Council responding ad hoc to requests which may
lead to uncertainty, missed timescales, inconsistent decisions and compensation claims.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Appendix 1

Part 1 — securing the listing of community assets

Does the land/building fall within the meaning ) ( No -
of “assets of community value”? (s.88 of the Falls outside regime
Act) J L

e

y
The community can nominate (s89(1){(a) &(2) }

of the Act). See also Reg 6.

h 4

Local Authority to consider whether land is of
community value {s.90(3) of the Act}. This
must be done within 8 weeks of receiving the
nomination (Reg.7)

S

Publicise list of Prepare list of W Notice sent to
unsuccessful assets of | owner and other
nominations community "l persons (8.91 &
(5593 & 94 of value (s.94 of Reg 9)

the Act) the Act)

h 4

/Locai Authority to maintain and\
publicise a list of assets of

community value (ss.87 & 94 &

Reg.2). Assets will only remain

on the list for a period of 5 years

(although they may be removed

earlier)(s.87(3))
\

Unsuccessful
objection-the land will
remain on the list but
there is a right of
appeal on this
decision (Rea 11\

Successful
objection-land is
removed from
the list (5.92(4))

Page 141



Part 2 - Selling assets of community value

[ Is the land on the list of assets of community value?
v Y
Yes - No-
No restriction on disposal of
land

» Sale of freehold estate if with vacant
possession

¢ Grant/assignment/surrender of qualifying
leasehold (ie 25+years) if with vacant

\_ possession

/Is there a relevant disposal which is not exempt? (s.96)\

/

Moratorium —
Owner of the land must not enter a relevant disposal, save for exempt disposals, unless three

conditions are met (s.95)

.

Y

A 4

Condition A Condition B Condition C
Owner to notify Local B Relevant The protected
Authority in writing of S moratorium period has not

intention to enter into a _ period has ended
relevant disposal _ passed
v v v
Are all the conditions met?
Y
No Yes

h 4

/ Owner cannot enter a \
relevant disposal (s.95)
» Risk of enforcement
action
o Compensation may be
payable to owner (5.29)

. )

Page 142

h 4

Owner may enter a
relevant disposal




APPENDIX 2

Is a building or other land an “asset of community value”?

Nature of Use

Long
Past

Recent
Past

Present

Future

Covered
by the
Act

The main use of the land or
building furthers the social
wellbeing or social interests
of the local community at
the present time AND it is
realistic to think that this
can continue into the near
future (even if the type of
social use of benefit might
change)

Yes

Yes

Yes

The main use of the land or
building furthered the social
wellbeing or social interests
of the local community in
the recent past AND it is
realistic to think that this
could happen again in the
next five years (even if the
type of social use or benefit
might change)

Yes

Yes

Yes

The main use of the land or
building furthered the social
wellbeing or social interests
of the local community
some years ago but is not
presently in use for a social
purpose

Yes

No

The land or building has not
recently been, and is not
currently, in use for a
primarily social purpose

No

The land or building has
been empty or derelict for
many years and remains so
today

No

Page 143




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



Agenda Item 16

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-027-2013/14 _

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Safer, Greener and Transport

Subject: Capital Budget Allocation for the Replacement of Pay and Display

Machines
Responsible Officer: Qasim Durrani (01992 564055)
Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations:

(1) To agree to replace off street Pay and Display charging machines in Council
owned car parks that have reached the end of their design life and are beyond
economic repair; and

(2) That, subject to adoption of recommendation (1) above, to recommend
inclusion in the Capital Programme of a capital allocation of £40,000 for 2014/15 and
£50,000 for 2015/16.

Executive Summary:

There are 41 pay and display machines in the 22 car parks owned by the Council. Whilst
machines are normally replaced when a car park enhancement and improvement scheme is
undertaken, or if a machine is damaged or vandalised, there is currently no budget allocation
for the replacement of machines which have reached the end of their operational life. A
number of machines have now reached this stage and are proving difficult and expensive to
repair and maintain.

The Council entered into an agreement with North Essex Parking Partnership (NEPP) in
October 2012 for cash collection and maintenance of pay and display machines in all Council
owned car parks. For this NEPP receives a set management fee. NEPP is finding it
increasingly difficult to keep the pay and display machines operational. There are frequent
faults and machines are out of operation for longer.

It is not easy to find spare parts for the older and dated machines. If old machines are not
replaced then NEPP could ask for an increase in fee to recover the costs resulting from
additional officer time and purchase of parts.

Newer modern machines will allow better management control and monitoring. For example
diagnostic checks and amount of cash collected can be checked remotely via the internet.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To replace end of life and unsustainable pay and display machines.

Page 145



Other Options for Action:

To continue to operate the old and dated machines by allocating additional revenue budgets
to cover the increased cost of maintenance and upkeep. This can not be recommended as
effective asset management requires replacement of those assets that are beyond economic
repair.

Report:

1. There are a total of 22 car parks owned by the Council and users pay varying charges
for their use. The Council is responsible for maintenance and upkeep of these car parks.
There are 41 pay and display machines across all the car parks. Although users have the
ability to make cash less payments, for example by using mobile phones, pay and display
remains the preferred method of payment for most users.

2. It has been the practice to replace pay and display machines at the time when
improvement and enhancement schemes are implemented. This principle has worked well
and in recent years new machines have been installed for example in the Burton Road and
Vere Road Car Parks at Loughton Broadway.

3. Previously the Council had a contract with Vinci Parks Limited, which ended in 2012,
and included provision for maintenance and upkeep of all pay and display machines in
Council car parks. At the end of the agreement in October 2012 the Council entered into an
agreement with North Essex Parking Partnership (NEPP) for enforcement, cash collection
and maintenance of pay and display machines. This enabled the Council to benefit from the
larger economies of scale offered by NEPP operations.

4, NEPP are responsible for all maintenance costs associated with the pay and display
machines. Following concerns over escalating maintenance costs NEPP commissioned a
survey of all machines across this District. It became evident that a large number of machines
are dated, suffer from mechanical problems/breakdowns, sourcing spare parts is difficult and
technical support by manufacturer is costly. Other members of NEPP have more modern
varieties of machines that are more reliable and cost effective to maintain.

5. The Council pays NEPP for carrying out enforcement activities, collecting cash or
paperless payments and maintaining pay and display machines in its car parks. The costs for
maintenance of machines are based on reasonable and routine maintenance activities. For
example the servicing of mechanical parts, diagnostics of software and general maintenance.
Like any contractor, NEPP can accommodate some additional work, however if the nature of
additional work becomes excessive then it is not unreasonable to ask for adequate
supplementary payment. It is for this reason and in light of the excessive maintenance costs it
is suggested that the Council should replace old and dated machines with new ones
(Recommendation (1))

6. Not all of the 41 pay and display machines would require replacement. Some have
been installed recently, due to improvement and enhancement works or as a result of
damage caused due to accident or act of vandalism. All machines will be checked to confirm
their state of repair and only those which cannot be economically repaired or have surpassed
the manufacturers recommended life expectancy will be replaced. (Recommendation (2))

Resource Implications:
Procurement options will be explored in due course. It is likely that NEPP could attract

preferential rates from suppliers, due to their larger purchasing power. However the Council
has access to some large framework contracts through the Essex Procurement Hub. Once

Page 146



budget is approved the most suitable procurement route will be adopted. It is currently
estimated that a sum of £90,000 will cover the cost of purchase and installation of circa 30
pay and display machines.

Procurement and installation of new machines will be supervised by existing staffing
resources within the Environment and Street Scene Directorate.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The Council charges for the use of car parks and this is a source of income. The Council has
a responsibility to its customers to maintain the quality of its car parks and to ensure the
reliability of pay and display machines.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

Ensuring optimum utilisation of available car parking spaces in the Council owned car parks.
Provision of modern up to date pay and display machines that allow remote access will send
warnings and prompt early inspections and cash collection. New machines are more resistant
to breakages and attempts of theft of cash.

New machines will be solar powered and result in smaller carbon foot print especially when
they replace some of the existing machines powered by mains electric supply.

Consultation Undertaken:
North Essex Parking Partnership.
Background Papers:

None.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

If funding is not allocated then NEPP can rightly ask for increase in yearly management fee to
recover the additional cost of maintenance and upkeep of the old and dated machines.

Some of the older machines are susceptible to theft. Installation of modern machines will
reduce that risk.

Cash from existing machines is collected at a regular frequency. Similarly maintenance is
carried out at a set interval or when a problem is reported by users or Civil Enforcement
Officers. Car park users are unable to use the machine during down periods; this causes
inconvenience to users and loss of revenue to the Council. New machines will have the ability
to be accessed remotely, to run diagnostics, and send message to officers when cash levels
are high.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

Page 147



What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
None.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?

N/A.

Page 148



Agenda ltem 17

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-028-2013/14 _

Date of meeting: 99 Month Year Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Leisure and Wellbeing

Subject: Section 106 contribution from Redevelopment of St John’s C of E

VC School, Epping
Responsible Officer: James Warwick (01992 564350).

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That Cabinet gives approval for the Section 106 contribution (£225,000) from the
redevelopment of St John’s School in Epping to be used to improve and redevelop
sports and leisure facilities at Stonards Recreation Ground, Epping.

(2) That Cabinet receive further reports on the detail of the final improvement projects
to be implemented along with the outcome of any further funding applications.

Executive Summary:

As part of the overall planning process, a Section 106 contribution of £225,000 from the
redevelopment of St John’s C of E VC School was secured for implementing off-site playing
field projects, to compensate for the loss of part of the school's playing fields.

Epping Forest District Council has consulted with Epping Town Council, the Essex FA, Sport
England and St John’s C of E VC School and it is recommended that the best use of the
Section 106 money would be to improve and redevelop sports and leisure facilities at
Stonards Recreation Ground, Epping. A procurement exercise was undertaken and Surfacing
Standards Ltd were appointed to undertake a feasibility study exploring the potential options
for improving sports and leisure facilities at the Recreation Ground.

This report highlights the proposals made in the feasibility study report and identifies the next
steps in terms of maximising community benefit.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The contribution has arisen as a result of the development of the new Secondary School in
Epping to compensate for the loss of playing fields. Therefore, the conditions of the
agreement stipulate that the contribution should be used locally to improve and redevelop
sports and leisure facilities for the wider community.

Other Options for Action:

To use the contribution elsewhere in the District to improve sports and leisure facilities. This

would need to be justified and demonstrated that there was a real priority need elsewhere in
the District, as well as obtaining specific approval from Sport England.

Page 149



Report:

1. The section 106 contribution from the redevelopment of St John’s C of E VC School
totals £225,000. This contribution was secured for implementing off-site playing field
improvement projects to compensate for the loss of part of the school's playing fields. Epping
Forest District Council are required to prioritise the use of the section 106 contribution based
on local needs when determining how to use the funds.

2. Sport England have advised the section 106 contribution should be used to develop
new or improve existing facilities within Epping.

3. The District Council was initially approached by St John’s C of E VC School with
regard to utilising some of the section 106 contribution on the school site for the purchase
and installation of floodlights. However Sport England did not approve and have advised the
school that they should seek alternative funding options. The school have now secured an
alternative source of funding for the floodlights, which will need planning approval.

4, Subsequently, Epping Forest District Council's Sports and Health Development
Manager, has attended site meetings with Epping Town Council and Essex FA at Stonards
Hill Recreation Ground to explore options for using the section 106 contribution to improve
and develop sports and leisure facilities at this site. Surfacing Standards Ltd were appointed
following a procurement exercise to carry out a feasibility study at Stonards Recreation
Ground. The full feasibility Study is attached at Appendix 1.

5. The potential proposed improvements identified are:

(1) re-surfacing of the Tennis Courts into a 2G Artificial surface that would enable
the facility to be used for tennis and football, therefore reducing wear and tear on the
grass pitches;

(i) outdoor gym equipment;
(iii) increase and improve the existing skate park facilities; and
(iv) upgrades to the changing rooms and toilets.

6. The total estimated cost of these upgrades, detailed at P18 of the feasibility study, is
£428,940 (including £33,340 project fees) clearly in excess of the £225,000 available through
the S106 Agreement. However, Sport England have indicated that they would be receptive
to a grant-aid application to help meet the shortfall. The project could also be the subject of
applications to other grant making bodies and, depending on the success of applications,
may allow upgrades to other facilities on the site, such as the Petanque Terrain.

7. It is recommended that the Council makes a formal decision to allocate the S106,
£225,000 towards the project at Stonards Hill Recreation Ground, to, enable some
improvements to be made and to guarantee core funding, in support of other grant
applications, to ultimately deliver all the improvements.

8. Epping Town Council, as the freeholder of the site, will be responsible for the project

management of the improvements, but advice and guidance on this and the development of
grant applications will be provided by the District Council.

Page 150



Resource Implications:

The contribution available to improve sports and leisure facilities is £225,000. There is the
opportunity to develop external funding applications and use this contribution as match
funding for larger scale projects. It is recommended that officer time be used to develop a
match funding bid to Sport England to enable the recommendations to be fully implemented
and add value to the project. Epping Town Council will be responsible for all future revenue
costs.

Legal and Governance Implications:

Sport England have provided advice on how the section 106 contribution can be used.
Planning advice and permission will be sought where required.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The use of the section 106 contribution in Epping will result in a wide range of benefits to the
immediate local community. It is anticipated that the improvements and developments will
increase sports participation and help to improve people’s health and well- being, as well as
offering opportunities for young people to take part in positive activity.

Consultation Undertaken:

Consultation has taken place with Epping Town Council, St John’s C of E VC School, Essex
FA and Sport England. Epping Forest Youth Council — Skatepark Consultation. The Town
Council are in agreement with the proposals (TBC in writing).

Background Papers:

Stonards Recreation Ground Feasibility Study by Surfacing Standards Ltd.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

The key risk is not using the section 106 contribution to provide or improve sports and leisure

facilities within Epping, as this would be a breach of the conditions of the section 106
contribution.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
This recommendation has a positive Equality Impact, in that the provision of a new
community sports and leisure provision in Epping. These will be achieved through providing
greater opportunities for people to take part in sport and physical activity through this new
provision. In addition, young people at risk of social exclusion would specifically be supported
in terms of their integration within the community and wider society and people with
disabilities would have much improved access to the building through design adjustments to
meet with DDA.

Page 151



How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
N/A.

Page 152



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Stonards Recreation Ground

Epping
Essex

Technical Feasibility Study (interim)

Development options for onsite facilities to the benefit of the local community

Client Epping Forest District Council

Project Stonards Recreation Ground

SSL project code SSL1599

Document title Technical Feasibility Study

Document control Revision By Checked Date
First Issue TB 23 052013
Revision A TB 02 06 2013

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 1
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Contents
Section Title Page No
1 Introduction and Objectives 3
2 Technical Feasibility 5
3 Indicative Estimate of Building Cost and Project Fees 18
Attachments

PlanEX743137 (Land Registry Current Title Plan)

2013 TGO Pricing Brochure (email)

UK-ARC-catalog2012Web

1083

6675 - 30042013changingroomoption

6675 - 30042013wcupgradeoption

SSL1599 Stonards Recreation Ground_Subject Area

SSL1599_ Stonards Recreation Ground_Existing Onsite Facilities

SSL1599 Stonards Recreation Ground_Proposed Onsite Facilities

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

1.  Introduction and Objectives

1.1 Surfacing Standard Ltd (SSL) has been appointed to prepare a technical feasibility study for the potential
development of onsite facilities to the benefit of the local community at Stonards Recreation Ground, Epping.

1.2 Epping Forest District Council have £225,000 through a section 106 agreement and are looking to redevelop
recreational sports and leisure facilities at Stonards Recreation Ground in Epping. The potential
developments that have been identified, but not limited to, are:

1.  Re-surfacing the tennis courts into a 2G Artificial Surface that would enable the facility to be used for
tennis, football and netball (approximate size 60m x 40m) - this would allow for formalised football
training and small sided games to take place which would reduce the wear and tear of the grass
pitches and generate income for the Town Council

2. Outdoor gym equipment

3. Improve and increase existing skate park facilities
4. Improvements to the changing rooms and toilets
5. Running Track

6. Drainage

7.  An appraisal of potential layout of for pitch use

1.3 This report and associated information provided within our commission aims to be beneficial in the decision
making process with respect to project development and financing. Ultimately, this technical feasibility study
to establish final proposals, including product information where required; such that tenders may be invited
from qualified contractors procured under the Sport England ‘Design and Construction of Artificial Sports
Surfaces’ Framework Arrangement, Reference (SE369) (OJEU 2011/61-098634) for the development of
final proposals, provision of product information and construction of the pitches, or similar qualified
Framework.

1.4 This report has been prepared with the benefit of recent site inspections, client liaison and correspondence
and preliminary design work.

1.5 This report does not represent the final design and should not be used for planning purposes. It is our initial
interpretation of the project brief offered by our client and their associated partners.

1.6 The objectives of this work are as follows:

Feasibility study

Assessment of project aspirations and requirements

Formation of the project brief

Advice on spatial requirements

Agreement of operational and security requirements as well as maintenance considerations
Appraisal of end-user needs, intensity of use and durability

Review of playing surface options

Identification of NGB compliance, DDA provision and health and safety considerations
Development assessment including all physical features and characteristics

Site sensitivity appraisal

Advice on appropriate surveys and inspections to enable detailed design

Assessment of the scheme impact to the surrounding environment

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 3
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

. Review of necessary approvals and permissions to facilitate the development

Conceptual design

. Initial design options
. Indicative estimate of building cost and project fees

Scheme schedule

. Assessment of critical project targets and processes
. Reporting on preferred timing and sequence

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 4
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

2. Technical Feasibility
21 The Existing Site

Stonards Recreation Ground is located to the North Eastern edge of Epping and accessed may be gained
from a variety of vehicular and pedestrian entrances including Stonards Hill and Fairfield Road.

The existing site boundary is illustrated in attachment PlanEX743137 (Land Registry Current Title Plan) and
drawing SSL1599_Stonards Recreation Ground_Subject Area.

Current onsite facilities comprise a mix of amenity provision including:

Five grass football pitches

A children’s play area

Two artificial tennis courts

A recreational basketball area
A skate park

The Jack Silley pavilion

As shown on drawing SSL1599_Stonards Recreation Ground_Existing Onsite Facilities.
2.2 Appraisal of Football Pitches

The existing playing pitch provision caters for two age groups as follows:

Age grouping Type Pitch size Quantity
Youth U17/U18 & Over 18 (senior ages) 11v11 101 x 71m 1

11v11 92 x 68m 2
Mini-Soccer U9/U10 7 55 x 36m 2

At the time of our general site inspection carried out in March 2013, the pitches appeared in a satisfactory
condition with consistent sward coverage maintained as fine sports turf. Amelioration works were evident to
facilitate the effective drainage and we understand recent drainage improvements have brought beneficial
results to the usability of the pitch throughout the football season.

In terms of pitch layout, the current arrangement appears to provide best use of the available land and we

presume that supply satisfies demand.

Example of existing football pitch Example of amelioration work

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 5
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

The Football Association (FA) has recently published a new guidance document for pitch and goal post
dimensions following wide consultations in order to produce national pitch sizes for mini soccer, 9v9, youth
football and adult football.

Whilst site constraints immediately surrounding each pitch appear to constrain any expansion to the senior
pitches (with the exception of the largest pitch positioned to the East of the Recreation Ground), it is worth
noting the new standard sizes:

Age grouping Type Recommended size without runoff
(safety area around pitch)

Mini-Soccer U7/U8 5v5 37 x27m

Mini-Soccer U9/U10 7 55 x 37m

Youth U11/U12 9v9 73 x 46m

Youth U13/U14 11v11 82 x 50m

Youth U15/U16 11v11 91 x 55m

Youth U17/U18 & Over 18 (senior ages) 11v11 100 x 64m

Please note the FA recommend 3m run offs to all sides of every pitch

Further details can be found within the Technical Standards section of the FA website www.thefa.com.

Whilst this study makes no recommendation for changes to the current playing provision, it will be prudent to
validate the future pitch requirements of user clubs; especially with regards to new pitch formats for mini
soccer and youth football after which any alteration to pitch sizes and quantity may be considered further.

The introduction of a new artificial Multi Use Games Area including two small-sided football pitches will also
aid the quality of and reduce seasonal damage to the grass pitches with formalised training, coaching as
well as recreation games being accommodated on the new synthetic turf playing surface.

In terms of ongoing maintenance of the grassed playing pitches the FA recommends that improvements are
essential to ensure as many players as possible have the opportunity to play on a defined standard for
playing surfaces, whilst recognising that natural turf pitches have a limited number of playing hours per
week.

As such, the FA’s Performance Quality Standard (PQS) provides a recommended minimum quality standard
for the maintenance and construction of pitches. Specifically, it provides a basic standard recommended for
grass pitches, which may be located at a variety of locations including a Club site, within a park or
recreational ground.

Principally, the PQS recommends that a natural grass pitch must:
Have adequate grass cover

Low level of weed coverage

Be flat

Have the ability to drain water

If met, the PQS ensures a flat drained surface suitable for ‘recreational’ and competitive football activities up
to Step 1 of the Non-League pyramid.

The FA’s PQS for natural grass construction upgrade is as follows:

Element Limits Method of Use
Sward Height mm 20-60 PS BS 7370 : P3 A3
20-75 SM
Hardness in g 35-200 STRI method of test using a 0.5kg Clegg Impact

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

o

on for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982

Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 6
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Hammer from a drop height of 0.55 m
Water infiltration rate mm/hr 5 BS 7370 : P3 A8
Evenness - 2 meter straight edge < 20mm BS 7370 : P3 A4
Slope — Direction of Play <1.25% BS 7370 : P3 A5
Across Play <2.5%
Ground Cover % > 70 for SH 25-30 | BS 7370 : P3 A6
> 80 for SH 30-35

Again, further reading concerning current Performance Quality Standards for grass football pitches can be
found within the Technical Standards section of the FA website www.thefa.com.

2.3 Multi Use Games Area (MUGA)
The existing two tennis courts are retained in a reasonable condition and contain an porous macadam

playing surface with chain-link perimeter ball stop fencing (2.7m high) and artificial lighting provided by four
8m high mid-hinge masts each mounted with two floodlight luminaires (eight floodlights in total).

Existing tennis courts

£ b

o
Existing tennis courts Artificial lighting

The desired sporting activities to be accommodated by the new MUGA include football and tennis; however
netball cannot be supported if the playing surface comprises sand filled synthetic turf.

England Netball explains this is because the action of playing netball or the lack of maintenance can cause
the fill material to rise to the surface (for example the silica sand used to stabilised the pile of a 2G synthetic
turf and retained within the surface giving suitable performance). England Netball conclude that irrespective
of the performance characteristics of synthetic turfs and textile surfaces, the presence of un stabilised
particulate material on the top of a surface is not considered to be acceptable.

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 7
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

There may be other sports locally demanded that could be accommodated by the new MUGA.

In terms of the proposed facility size, we have been guided by the immanent FA Tech Guide (soon to be
published by The Football Association) which recommends that to maximise football development outcomes,
a minimum pitch size of 37m x 27m is adopted when developing new small-sided football facilities.

Once requisite pitch run offs are incorporated, the eventual Total Play Area (the area within the sports facility
where the player can move freely, for example the space within a fenced enclosure consisting of both the
pitch and run-offs) becomes 63 x 43m.

An adjoining equipment store is beneficial for housing football goals and tennis nets and other associated
playing equipment when not in use, which is sized 3m x 43m.

The overall development area is therefore proposed to be 66 x 43m and will require the expansion of the
current tennis courts footprint.

The playing provision will offer two small sided football pitches and four tennis courts, albeit these sporting
applications require differing performance standards which may necessitate an acknowledgement of this
awkward alliance and potentially a compromise regarding the final playing surface; during detailed design
stages.

With mature trees immediately adjacent to the Eastern edge of the courts, it appears that land adjoining to
the West and South may be occupied by the MUGA footprint. Consequential works are likely to include the
re-routing of a hard standing path (serving the skate park) the relocation of the recreational basketball area.

In terms of facility orientation, the preferred orientation for the main playing direction for the new pitches /
courts (which should follow an approximate north (between 285° and 20°) to south direction due to the effect
of the setting sun) will not be realised, but this should not dissuade the development.

The MUGA should be constructed in accordance with modern quality standards appropriate to external
artificial sports facilities and key features to consider are as follows:

Drainage

The designed drainage strategy should ensure that surface water is discharged from the surface area at a
rate which will sustain performance and safeguard against fluvial flooding and discharge through any soak
away which shall be designed in accordance with BRE Digest 365 wherever practical.

Base and Foundations

The purpose of the granular sub-base for any artificial sports pitch is to provide a resilient substrate onto
which the playing surface system can be installed. The principal qualities that a good base should contain
are adequate stability that it does not move outside the tolerances for surface regularity over a period of ten
years and is capable of supporting and transmitting to the underlying substrate the loads of all vehicles,
plant, machines and playing surface construction to be used during the construction and the maintenance
and refurbishment of the facility throughout its functioning life.

Playing Surface

The 2G synthetic turf playing surface and any associated shock-pad layer should provide performance and
durability over the life expectancy in accordance with the intended sporting activities.

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 8
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Example of 2G synthetic turf playing surface

Perimeter Ball Stop Fencing

Perimeter fencing is required around all sides and ends of the pitch to provide an adequate ball-stop and to
offer a degree of security to the facility. Typically, new perimeter ball-stop fencing will consist 4.5m high of
resistance mesh panels with 6mm diameter vertical wires and twin 8mm diameter horizontal wires forming a
200 x 50mm mesh to centres including 1.20m high rebound mesh (66 x 50mm mesh to centres).

Example of resistance mesh panel fencing

Floodlights

Example of 868 mesh

Floodlights will be required around the MUGA perimeter to facilitate use during and throughout the winter
months, thereby enabling the facility to be used to its full potential by local community groups.

Lighting performance should be design in accordance with Lawn Tennis Assocaition standard levels of
illumination (which will also satisfy football requirements), which are outlined below:

Standard Maintained Maintained Uniformity Uniformity
Average Average within PPA within TPA
lllumination lllumination Emin/Eav Emin/Eav
on PPA on TPA

Recommended 500 Lux 400 Lux 0.7 0.6

Minimum 400 Lux 300 Lux 0.7 0.6

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982

Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group P 1 6 1 9

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061
VAT number GB 678834179



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Example of efficient floodlights Example of floodlight mast mounted with two luminaires
c/w 2kW lamps / fitting

Sports Equipment

New goals are required and self weighted freestanding goals are appropriate for the variety of football and
tennis activities and proposed playing pitch arrangement. All goals and nets should be in supplied
accordance current quality standards and should be housed within the adjoining equipment store when not
in use to fulfil safety requirements.

Associated items
To complete the pitch provision, a variety of associated fixtures and fitting s will be necessary including:

Site Furniture (including foot mats, litter bins, player signage and boot scrapers)

Signage and Sundries

Entrance pathways

Maintenance Equipment (the provision of new maintenance equipment is favoured to ensure adequate
routine maintenance can be completed by the pitch owner / manager)

Performance compliance

Subject to the final selection of sporting activities and playing surface type, the appropriate performance
standard for the MUGA will be:

BS EN 15330-1. Surfaces for sports areas. Synthetic turf and needle-punched surfaces primarily designed
for outdoor use. Part 1. Specification for synthetic turf surfaces for football, hockey, rugby union training,
tennis and multi-sports use.

This European Standard specifies performance and durability characteristics for synthetic turf sports
surfaces used primarily outdoors.

Five categories of surface are covered, each based on the principal sporting use of the surface, as follows:
surfaces designed primarily for hockey; surfaces designed primarily for association football; surfaces
designed primarily for rugby union for training purposes;

The requirements are intended to apply to surfaces used for community, educational and recreational sport.

For professional and elite levels of competition, many sports governing bodies have published their own
specifications; the requirements of the sports governing bodies might differ from those detailed in this
European Standard and facility developers are advised to ensure that they select surfaces offering the
correct level of performance for the level of competition played on the pitch or court.

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 10
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

This European Standard is based on type approval testing of products in the laboratory. Selected
requirements may also be used on site to assess the suitability of installed surfaces.

2.4 Outdoor Gym and Running Area

There are several suppliers and providers of outdoor gym equipment and for the purpose of this study; we
have incorporated a model offered by The Great Outdoor Gym Company.

Their medium park gym includes an eleven equipment station comprising:

1x Welcome sign

1x Cross trainer

1x The bench

1x Chest press/ Seated row

1x Leg press/ Oblique
1x Dips/Leg raise

1x Handbike

1x Fitness bike

1x Recumbent bike

The overall safety area for this gym measures 10.4 x 8.7m (91m?) whilst the surfacing area is sized 8.1 x
6.1m (50m?)

The equipment is EN1176 approved and provided with a tem year guarantee.

Further details can be found within attachment 2013 TGO Pricing Brochure (email).

Example of outdoor gym station

To compliment the gym, we propose a two lane shuttle run / sprint straight to enable condition training for
committed or casual runners.

The surface type would typically be a polymeric Sport England Type 4 and line markings may include two
lanes (1.22m wide) with shuttle run markers set at 10m /20m / 30m / 40m / 50m.

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 1 1
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Example of polymeric sprint straight / shuttle runs

Whilst the demand for this component has yet to be qualified, it may present a fun addition to the outdoor
gym area.

2.5 New Skate Park

A recent survey conducted in December 2012 by the Epping Forest District Youth Council on the skate park
identified a variety of problematic issues within the current provision as follows:

Health and safety Broken glass.
Broken equipment and repairs are needed on the ramps.

Underage drinking Young people drink there when its dark.
Attracts problematic young people and can be used as a hang out area for
smoking/drugs/drinking which prevents skaters from using the skate park.

Anti social behaviour Older teens don't treat the area with respect.

When parents take their children to the skate park, younger children can't use
the equipment because the older ones intimate them.

Vandalism, Graffiti, especially on the ramps.

Young people (underage) are using lighters.

The recommendations offered within the survey presented a range of improvements:

. The young people recommended making the skate park bigger

. Update the equipment with a skate bowl or half pipe

. Add lighting so people can use it during winter months

. Lighting will make the park safer for the community

. Add a roof or cover for the ramps so it can be used in all weather

. To visit the following skate parks in Cheshunt, Harlow, Waltham Abbey and Saffron Walden to gather ideas

and speak to other skaters for advice

. Youth Councillors will be attending the Cheshunt Skate Jam on Thursday 21 February to compare parks and
meet other skaters

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 12
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

The existing stake park

To satisfy some of these requests, we have researched a range of models offered by UK Skate Parks and
for the purpose of this study, we have incorporated their model Pro MX Series 1083 which provides two all
steel / polyester powder coat skateboard units set onto a 25 x 12m hard standing pad. Conveniently, the
existing stake pad size is conducive for this model.

Also, new artificial lighting is included within the redevelopment proposal to enable evening use and to
increase general safety.

Further details can be found within attachments UK-ARC-catalog2012Web and 1083.

As suggested within the survey, we recommend that Youth Councillors are consulted further with regards to
the content and styling of the new skate park, to ensure that user aspirations are satisfied.

Example of UK Skate Parks 1083 model

2.6 Improvements to Jack Silley Pavilion

A visual inspection carried out by HSSP Architects in March 2013 identified a variety of deficiencies with the
building provision as follows:

Outdoor WCs

No disabled provision

No paper dispensers

No baby changing facilities

Inadequate DDA access and thresholds

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 13
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Changing rooms

Safeguarding issues

No WC in referee’s changing room

Undersized changing rooms

No water supply to urinals

No emergency alarm / lighting / directional signage
No disabled provision

No locked / lockable storage areas

Pavilion

. Generally clean and tidy and re decoration works are currently being carried out

. No evidence of emergency alarm system (e.g. break glass operation) / directional signage

. External improvements needed to damaged guttering and soffits and fascia and pointing to brick work at
lower level

. Consider double glazed windows to improve energy efficiency

As such, basic improvement schemes have been developed to modernise the pavilion facilities; to alter and /
or upgrade in accordance with statutory (e.g DDA) and FA guidelines. A visual representation of the
proposed improvement options is shown in attachments 6675 - 30042013changingroomoption and 6675 -
30042013wcupgradeoption.

—

Inadequate access to external WC’s No paper dispenser

Inadequate emergency provision No WC in referee changing accommodation

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 14
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

No water supply to urinals Undersized changing rooms

’ :

Basic emergency provision only with pavilion Damaged guttering requires rectification

.

S N

Damaged pointing requires rectification Modernise with double-glazed windows?

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 15
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

2.7 Statutory Approval

It will be necessary to obtain approval/s to implement the various parts of the proposed development and the
following sequential planning process should be considered to reach a successful conclusion:

Stage item Activity
Research Relevant planning policy guidance including local
development plans and any constraints to be considered

Pre-application Discussions and negotiation with the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) and other parties

Additional studies / surveys Complete works as specified by the LPA to form part of
the application

Public consultation (as required) Contribute during pre-application stages

Develop application Prepare technical information and question responses
Submit application Via the Planning Portal

Validation / determination date Confirm validation and target decision timing

Officer’s report Obtain report when published, then review and react to

recommendations as necessary

Receive planning permission Review

Discharge planning conditions and notices Submit follow-on applications

Other statutory approvals / Building control Submit similar applications
2.8 Conclusions

This study has identified several development options for onsite facilities to the benefit of the local
community and we trust that the technical appraisal permits the project to advance towards detailed
considerations and development.

The complete development proposal for Stonards Recreation Ground is shown on drawing
SSL1599 Stonards Recreation Ground_Proposed Onsite Facilities.

We understand there is good evidence and a strong demand for improved facilities to support outdoor sports
provision within Stonards Recreation Ground and outcomes may necessitate consideration regarding the
future management, supervision and maintenance of facilities; presumably to arrange increased supervision
for the increased facilities and longer usage.

This report forms the first stage in understanding the current provision and potential options and should be
used as a framework for developing a strategy for extending and modernising facilities at Stonards
Recreation Ground.

Based on the assessments and research detailed within this report, we propose the following sequential
method of project development and implementation for those elements to be delivered:

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 1 6
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Project Stage Time Allowance

Feasibility / Concept Design Works

Agree Concept Designs / Elements to be Taken Forward 4 weeks
Agree Preliminary Design with Scope of Works and Project Costs 4 weeks
Approvals

Prepare Planning Application/s 3 weeks
Submit and Track Planning Application/s 12 weeks*
Receive Conditional Planning Approval/s 0.1 week
Discharge Planning / Statutory Condition/s 12 weeks
Receive Final Planning Approval/s 0.1 week

Detailed Development

Carry Out Site Investigation/s 6 weeks
Carry Out Power Investigations 2 weeks
Complete Detailed Design 4 weeks
Update Cost Plan 1 week
Agree Final Cost Plan 2 weeks
Undertake Health and Safety Compliance 4 weeks
Procurement

Prepare Tender Documents 4 weeks
Agree Tender Documents 1 week
Agree tender list of appropriate Contracting Organisations 1 week
Carry Out Tender Action including Invitation to tender, Tender Analysis, 5 weeks

Evaluation and Recommendation

Construction

Prepare / Exchange Forms of Contract 4 weeks
Contractor Mobilsation 3 weeks
Construction Period 13 weeks™*

Post construction
Rectification Period (as per contractual conditions) 52 weeks

*kk

*Assumes major application
**External pitch works only
***To be clarified once Forms of Contract are agreed

Whilst the above method outlines a sequential approach to project delivery, it may be possible or preferable
to undertake certain stages concurrently to condense the overall delivery timetable.

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 17
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

3. Indicative estimate of building cost and project fees

3.1 Our initial estimate for the capital expenditure required to deliver the entire facilities presented within this

report are as follows:

Description Cost (ex. VAT)
Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) Construction £279,335
Outdoor Gym and Running Area Construction £46,350
New Stake Park Construction £69,825
Improvements to Jack Silley Pavilion TBC
Project Fees and Development Costs £33,430
Total £428,940
3.2 Elemental costs for individual facilities are as follows:

Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) Construction

Description of Work Cost (ex. VAT)
Contractual Provisions and Compliance (Preliminaries) £5,000
Site Establishment £3,900
Site Clearance, Excavations and Groundwork’s £8,960
Drainage and Base Works £80,085
Playing Surface (2G Synthetic Turf) £52,000
Perimeter Ball-Stop Fencing £41,450
Sports Equipment, Site Furniture, Signage and Sundries £12,400
Floodlights £40,000
Reinstatement £1,750
Testing £3,000
Maintenance Equipment and 24 Month After Care £9,000
Recreational Basketball Area £4,890
New Pedestrian Pathway (Leading to New Skate Park) £3,600
Client Contingency (5% of above costs) £13,300
Total £279,335

Outdoor Gym and Running Area Construction

Description of Work Cost (ex. VAT)
Contractual Provisions and Compliance (Preliminaries) £2,100
Site Establishment £2,300
TGO Multi Park Gym £21,000
Site Clearance, Excavations and Groundwork’s £750
Drainage and Base Works £8,200
Playing Surface (Polymeric) £8,000
Reinstatement £450

Surfacing Standards Ltd.

1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.

Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T.01536 400 012

F. 01536 401 953

E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (ISO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group 1 8

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e




SSL

Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

Testing £1,350
Client Contingency (5% of above costs) £2,200
Total £46,350

New Stake Park Construction

Description of Work Cost (ex. VAT)
Contractual Provisions and Compliance (Preliminaries) £1,250
Site Establishment £900
UK Skate Parks model Pro MX Series 1083 £50,000
Base Improvements £4.500
Floodlights £8,000
Reinstatement £500
Client Contingency (5% of above costs) £3,325
Total £69,825

Project Fees and Development Costs

Description Cost (ex. VAT)
Feasibility / Planning Fee (Current Commission) £4,200
Planning Application Fees £2,000
Outstanding Surveys (Geotechnical, Electrical, Utilities, Etc...) £3,500
Forward Professional Fee for External Works (Development, Procurement, £23,730
Construction, Post Construction)

(6% of construction estimate)

Forward Professional Fee for Internal Works (Development, Procurement, TBC
Construction, Post Construction)

Other Project Costs Incurred TBC
Total £33,430

3.3 Estimated costs are based upon a range of initial stage assumptions. We recommend that the site

conditions are fully evaluated and correctly assessed in due course, in order to validate the proposed

construction works contained within this document.

All costs are subject to VAT at an appropriate rate.

Outline Within the outline pre-tender cost estimate, the sub-headings and item descriptions identify the work

covered by the respective items.

Estimated costs have been derived from our professional assessment and review of actual tendered costs

from similar projects during 2012.
Estimated costs are projected to be accurate within +/-5%.

Estimated costs include contractor OHP.

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e

19



Surfacing Standards Limited

SPORTS PITCH CONSULTARNTES

End of document

Published by Tom Betts, Consultant
Signature
Issued 23" May 2013

This report has been prepared with all reasonable care, skill and diligence by Surfacing Standards Ltd and is confidential
to our Client. Surfacing Standards Ltd accepts no responsibility whatsoever to third parties to whom this report, or any
part thereof, is made known. Any such party relies upon the report at their own risk.

© Copyright Surfacing Standards Limited 2013

Surfacing Standards Ltd.
1A Perth House. Corbygate Business Park.
Priors Haw Road. Corby. Northamptonshire. NN17 5JG

T. 01536 400 012
F. 01536 401 953
E. info@surfacingstandards.co.uk

www.surfacingstandards.co.uk

Organization for ization (1SO) Quality System (QMS) ISO 9001:2008. Registration number GB18982
Member of Sports and Play Construction Association Professional Services Group

Registered in England & Wales under registration number 05154061 20
VAT number GB 678834179 ag e



Agenda Item 18

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-029-2013/14 _

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Environment

Subject: Capital budget allocation for replacement of waste and recycling

containers and the use of prudential borrowing powers in relation
to the new waste (etc.) contract

Responsible Officer: John Gilbert (01992 564062)
Qasim Durrani (01992 564055)
Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) To agree to replace those waste and recycling containers that have reached the
end of their design life and cannot be repaired or reused;

(2) Subject to recommendation (1) to recommend to Council an ongoing capital
allocation of £30,000 per year from 2014/15 onwards; and

(3) To agree in principle to the use of the Council’s capital resources and/or
prudential borrowing powers for the provision of the waste management and, if
required, the grounds maintenance fleet and associated equipment, as part of the
procurement of the next waste management (etc.) contract.

Executive Summary:

The Council first introduced wheelie bins for refuse collection in 2005. Additional wheelie bins
and containers were introduced in 2009 for the collection of food and garden recycling.
Wheelie bins are expected to last at least seven years before requiring replacement, however
some can last a lot longer.

Wheelie bins can get damaged for a variety of reasons. Wherever possible repairs are
carried out by swapping usable parts with other damaged bins. With an aging bin stock it is
becoming increasingly difficult to carry out repairs, bins are also beginning to fail structurally.
As more wheelie bins and containers reach the end of their operational life it is becoming
necessary to replace them. It is good financial management to replace these with capital
budget and not revenue.

As the procurement exercise for the next waste management (etc.) contractor gathers
momentum, a decision is required on the Council’'s appetite for the use of its own capital
resources or for prudential borrowing to fund the required vehicle fleets and associated
equipment. Although it is entirely possible for the new service provider to meet the financing
costs, it may be financially preferable, as with the containers referred to earlier, for the
Council to use its own capital resources or borrowing powers, to achieve savings in revenue.

Page 173



Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To replace end of life waste and recycling containers and to be able to advise prospective
service providers on the Council’'s willingness to make capital moneys available for the
provision of vehicles and equipment.

Other Options for Action:

To only utilise revenue budgets to replace damaged and end of life assets and to procure
new vehicles etc for the new waste management (etc.) contract This is not good financial
management and can not be recommended.

Report:

Wheeled bins and associated containers

1. The Council first introduced wheelie bins for residual collection in 2005. Food and
garden collection bins were introduced in 2009. Other containers include larger ‘euro bins’ for
collections in flats and communal buildings, blue boxes for glass collection, kerbside and
kitchen caddies. Wheelie bins and other collection containers have a design life of seven to
ten years. However some bins can last a lot longer. The Council has adopted a policy of
reusing bins as much as possible, by salvaging parts from damaged wheelie bins or
purchasing spares to repair damaged bins. For this the Council has a revenue budget
allocation.

2. A wheelie bin consists of seven usable parts: the main body, lid, two wheels, an axle
and two clips to hold the lid. When a resident reports a damaged wheelie bin they are
provided with a replacement. The damaged bin is repaired, if possible, for example if a wheel
has come off. The bin is then stored at the storage compound in North Weald Airfield until
supplied to another resident. This approach has extended the life of the wheelie bin stock and
negated the necessity of bulk replacement of stock at the end of seven years.

3. There are over 150,000 containers in use in the district. The average cost of a standard
180 litre wheelie bin is £20 whereas that of a kerbside caddy is £5 and kitchen caddy £2. The
cost of replacing the entire stock of 48,000 wheelie bins introduced in 2005 is estimated to be
£960,000. The estimated value of the entire stock of containers is £2,066,000

4, It is therefore suggested that a capital provision of £30,000 per annum be sought
commencing in the 2014/15 financial year, to enable the programmed replacement of
containers. (Recommendations (1) and (2))

Use of capital resources for the procurement of new vehicles and plant

5. As part of the on-going procurement exercise for the waste management (etc)
contract, the first stage of Competitive Dialogue has been completed. Each contractor has
been able to directly engage with the Council’s officer project team in order to discuss, in
confidence if necessary, options for the delivery of these services in the future.

6. One of the issues which has been brought up by each of the contractors is the
willingness of the Council to utilise its own capital assets or to exercise its prudential
borrowing powers to purchase assets such as vehicles, plant and equipment. Whilst the new
contract will require the contractors to provide the necessary plant and equipment, there may
well be financial advantage in the Council providing the capital provided that the Council
secures a revenue advantage in so doing. This provision could take the form of the use of
existing capital resources or the Council borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board, where

Page 174



it can obtain preferential rates of interest.

7. For the purposes of the initial tender submission, which follows the first stage of
competitive dialogue, the contractors have been instructed to assume that they will meet all
required investment costs. However, as the dialogue progresses, it will be necessary to be
able to inform contractors as to the Council’s appetite for making capital available. The use
of capital on this way is in accordance with Council policy provided that a clear revenue
benefit can be demonstrated. (Recommendation (3))

Resource Implications:

The total asset value of the existing wheelie bins and other container stock is listed as
follows:

Container type | Year of Approximate Estimated cost
introduction number

Wheelie bin for | 2005 48,000 £ 960,000
residual waste
Wheelie bin for | 2009 48,000 £ 960,000
food and
garden
recycling
25 litre kerbside | 2009 10,000 £ 50,000
caddies
5 litre kitchen | 2009 48,000 £ 96,000
caddies

£ 2,066,000

Current arrangement of carrying out repairs to damaged bins will be continued and new bins
only purchased when it is no longer possible to carry out cost affective repairs.

The scale of potential capital provision for vehicles, plant and equipment cannot be precisely
quantified since it will vary dependant upon the nature of the services to be provided by any
particular contractor. However, given the known costs of refuse freighters and other plant
and equipment, the total capital requirement could be in the region of £5 million. Indicative
rates for the Council to borrow such a sum over a 5 to 7 year period are in the region of 2%,
whereas for a waste contractor to borrow this same sum, rates in the order of twice this could
be anticipated. The Council would expect any associated reductions in revenue costs to be
reflected in the annual contract sums.

Legal and Governance Implications:

Relevant legislation includes:
Environmental Protection Act 1990
Controlled Waste Regulations 1992
Local Government & Finance Act 1988
Household Waste & Recycling Act 2003

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The collection and recycling of household waste is a key component of the Council’s “Safer,
Cleaner, Greener” strategy. The state of containers presented by residents for collection of
their residual waste and recycling has an impact on the street scene in the district. If the state
of containers is poor and they are in a bad state of repair then it would reflect badly on the

Page 175



street and neighbourhood.

It is a key requirement of the waste and grounds maintenance specifications that vehicles
and plant are fit for purpose and meet current environmental standards. This will require the
new service provider to provide new fleet and equipment throughout the period of the
contract

Consultation Undertaken:

None

Background Papers:

Cabinet reports and agendas for the Environment Portfolio Holder Advisory Group.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

By choosing to have an ongoing programme of replacement of bins that have reached the
end of their operational life the Council is better managing the financial risk. By avoiding the
need for replacement of stock at once, which would mean some usable bins would also get

discarded. If the bin stock is not kept in good working order then the collection arrangements
could be affected by delays caused in dealing with damaged and unfit containers.

The delivery of a consistent and high quality waste and ground maintenance service relies
upon the use of modern and efficient plant and equipment. Therefore, vehicles and plant
need to be replaced at regular intervals.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
None.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been

addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
N/A.

Page 176



Agenda ltem 19

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-030-2013/14

Date of meeting: 9 Sept 2013 Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Housing
Subject: Introduction of Charges for C.A.R.E.’s Handyperson Service
Responsible Officer: Lyndsay Swan (01992-564146)

Democratic Services Officer:  Gary Woodhall (01992-564470)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That charges are introduced for the Handyperson Service from 1 October 2013 on
the following basis:

(a) Service users who are on means-tested benefits be charged a fee of a
maximum of £30 each time they use the service, with the exception of falls
prevention and home security work which will be free of charge;

(b) Service users who are not on means-tested benefits be charged a fee of a
maximum of £50 for Handyperson Service work and £25 each time they use the
service for falls prevention and home security work; and

(c) Where the work costs less than these limits, service users will only pay
what the work costs.

(2) That, for the purposes of eligibility for the Handyperson Service, the definition of
‘older person’ means someone who is over 60 years of age and retired, or a couple
where both are over 60 years of age and retired;

(3) That a request be made for a Continuing Services Budget Growth Item of an
additional £5,000 per annum from April 2014 to supplement the budget for the
Handyperson Service’s work; and

(4) That use of the Handyperson Service be denied to previous service users that had
failed to pay their contributions for the use of the service.

Executive Summary:

The Handyperson Service has been operating within its existing budget of about £10,000 per
annum for a number of years. It is now considered timely to increase the budget through
increased contributions by service users and a request for a Continuing Services Budget (CSB)
growth item of £5,000 per annum. This would enable C.A.R.E. to extend the scheme to older
people who, although not on means-tested benefits, are more likely to be on low income and,
therefore, vulnerable to ‘cowboy builders’.

As well as revising the budget, the eligibility criteria need clarifying to bring them in line with the

current state retirement age. It is therefore considered timely to clarify the requirements for
eligibility at the same time as the contributions scheme is introduced.

Page 177



Reasons for Proposed Decision:

For a number of years C.A.R.E.’s Advisory Panel has wanted the Handyperson Service to offer
more practical and financial support to people who are not on means-tested benefits but, by
virtue of being older people and retired, may be less able to organise and pay for smaller repair
jobs. Without additional, ongoing funding the only way of achieving this would be by introducing
fees for the service.

Although the introduction of charging will subsidise the cost of work for additional customers, it
could not compensate for it entirely so an additional source of funding will be required. On the
other hand, as a result of the introduction of repayable housing assistance, there is likely to be a
reduced need for capital budget provision for private sector discretionary grants from April 2014.
It is proposed, therefore, to increase the funding from the Council's General Fund by an
additional £5,000 per annum from April 2014, by seeking a Continuing Services Budget (CSB)
Growth Item, to help fund the Handyperson Service.

The eligibility criterion, that the service should be available to ‘older people’, has remained
unchanged for many years. When it was introduced, the widely used definition of ‘older’ was 60
years of age in line with the age at women could receive their state pension. The state
retirement age has increased and it is considered reasonable that the definition of ‘older’ for the
purposes of the eligibility criteria is amended accordingly.

Other Options for Action:

The option of not extending the scheme to people who are not on means tested benefits has
been discounted as, for a number of years, the C.A.R.E. Advisory Panel has expressed a wish
that this should happen.

There is an option to vary the charges proposed but this has been discounted. Although it
would make it less necessary to make a bid for a CSB Growth Item if the charges were
increased, it is considered that the scheme would be unaffordable to many older people. If the
charges were reduced, the income generated would not prove a worthwhile subsidy to the
Handyperson Service budget, particularly taking into account the cost of collecting the charges.

The intention behind defining ‘older person/people’ as being 60 or above in the Handyperson
Service eligibility criteria was to provide a service to the residents in the private sector who were
most likely to fall prey to unscrupulous tradesmen by virtue of being less able to maintain their
own homes or afford to pay others to do this for them. Since that time the age at which people
can receive their state retirement pension has changed and continues to do so. Although they
would have to contribute towards the cost, under the existing eligibility criteria people of 60 and
over who were still working could use the service. As this is not within the spirit of the scheme,
the option of not clarifying the definition has been discounted.

Report:

1. Caring and Repairing in Epping Forest (C.A.R.E.), the Council’'s in-house Home
Improvement Agency provides help and support to older and otherwise vulnerable home
owners and private tenants to maintain independent living in the community. As part of its
function C.A.R.E. provides a Handyperson Service through which small, low cost jobs, such as
minor plumbing and electrical jobs, remedial carpentry and falls prevention work are carried out
for vulnerable people in the private sector. The service is not to be confused with handyperson
services provided for Council tenants, which is funded from the Housing Revenue Account.

Page 178



2. C.ARR.E. is currently funded through the Council's General Fund, Housing Related
Support (formerly Supporting People) at Essex County Council (ECC), occasional grants from
other outside organisations and fees from the private sector housing grants it helps access for
service users. The Council will be providing £10,250 towards Handyperson work in 2013/14
and has contributed around £10,000 per annum for a number of years.

3. In addition to its usual annual allocation, in 2009/10 and 2010/11, ECC made additional
grants available to the Handyperson Service so that C.A.R.E. could set up schemes to ‘promote
independence’ for vulnerable people in the private sector. C.A.R.E. used some of this extra
funding to carry out work for older people living on mobile homes sites and, as some of the
additional funding was not used up in the years in which it was given, with ECC’s agreement the
surpluses were brought forward into 2013/14 when they will be fully spent.

4, Under existing eligibility criteria the service is available to older and, in some cases,
disabled people. People who are on means-tested benefits can use the service free of charge
but those who are not on means-tested benefits (referred to as ‘Able to Pay’ clients) may use
the service but have to pay the full cost of the work. These service users are provided with a
reputable builder to carry out the work but mostly have to make their own arrangements for the
work to be carried out.

5. Individual applicants may use the Service up to a maximum of 3 times a year with
applications being at least 3 months apart. Each job can cost up to a maximum of £250 for any
application but no more than £400 in any one year. The work is carried out by small local firms
of contractors who have been vetted for their suitability to carry out Handyperson-type jobs.
Generally about 50 jobs are carried a year with each job costing from £25 to £250. The average
cost is about £150.

6. In addition to the basic Handyperson Service described above, C.A.R.E. provides a
‘Handyperson Plus’ service under which service users can have a core set of security devices,
such as door and window locks, fitted free of charge. The average cost of an intervention (each
time the service is used) is £120. The Service also carries out falls prevention work, supplying
and fitting measures such as grab-rails, handrails and ramps under the same eligibility criteria
as the Handyperson Service. Job costs range from about £40 to £250 with the average being
approximately £180.

7. C.A.R.E. receives policy direction from the C.A.R.E. Advisory Panel which is chaired
and supported by Council Officers but includes a service user representative, representatives of
ECC, Voluntary Action Epping Forest (VAEF), the CAB, the NHS and three EFDC councillors.
For a number of years the Advisory Panel has wanted the Handyperson Service to offer more
practical and financial support to people who are not on means-tested benefits but, by virtue of
being older people and retired, may be less able to organise and pay for smaller repair jobs. A
particular concern was that, without this support, vulnerable people in the private sector could
fall prey to ‘cowboy builders’.

8. Without additional, ongoing funding the only way of achieving this would be by
introducing fees for the service. On 28 June 2012 the Panel received a report on proposals to
introduce charges for the Handyperson Service. The Panel was in agreement with this and was
also of the view that the eligibility criteria should be revised so that a subsidised Handyperson
Service could be offered to older people that are not on means-tested benefits.

9. Charging for Handyperson Services is current practice for the other Home Improvement
Agencies in Essex where one provider charges people who are on means-tested benefits £11
per hour, while those who are not on means tested benefits pay £18 an hour. Another provider
charges £13 per hour and £20 per hour respectively. In both cases the cost of any materials is
added to any labour rate and clients pay the contractor on completion. Both providers have

Page 179



employed staff to carry out the eligible works and provided them with vehicles.

10. Charging for labour and materials in this way would not be possible for C. A.R.E. as it
uses external contractors rather than an EFDC-employed handyperson. Under these
arrangements, in order to calculate the cost to the service user, the contractor carrying out the
work would need to provide an itemised estimate for every job, bearing in mind that some jobs
are very small. It would not be cost effective for the contractor to prepare an estimate for each
customer and then revisit to carry out the work after C.A.R.E. had told the service user how
much they would have to pay.

11. Although some of the practical difficulties associated with charging for the service would
be removed if C.A.R.E. did have its own handyperson, a cost/benefit analysis of this approach
has demonstrated that it would not be viable. It is felt that a better option to attract funds to the
service would be by levying a set charge of a maximum contribution each time someone used
the Handyperson Service. Under this approach, the Council would pay the Handyperson
contractor’s invoice but would recover the charge from the service user. It is felt that maximum
charges of £30 per job for people on means-tested benefits and £50 per job for those who are
not would be appropriate and affordable. Service users would pay the full cost of the work if it
was less than these amounts, but £30 and £50 respectively if the work cost more.

12. While it has long been the wish of the Advisory Panel to introduce a charging scheme
for the Handyperson Service, previous attempts to find an agreeable charging scheme have
proved unsuccessful. The Advisory Panel and C.A.R.E.’s Service User's Forum have both
been consulted on the introduction of a charging scheme and both are in favour of the
proposals outlined and, in particular, that people who are on means-tested benefits should not
be required to pay for falls prevention or security measures. For the purposes of the
calculations, therefore, these have been considered to be free of charge for people on means-
tested benefits. Service users who are not on means-tested benefits would be required to pay
up to £25 towards falls prevention or security measures.

13. Calculations have been carried out based on the number of jobs undertaken in 2012/13
when sixty jobs were carried out at a total cost of £9,325. Although data is not currently
collected on work carried out for service users who are not on means-tested benefits, it has
been estimated that this is likely to be half as many service users as currently receive the
service free of charge. On this basis, it is estimated that the annual cost of the work carried out
would be about £14,000, with customer contributions being about £2,500, a net cost to the
Council of £11,500. This exceeds the current budget by £1,250 per annum. It should also be
pointed out that the budget and the unit cost of jobs do vary from year to year. Owing to a
change in C.A.R.E.’s staffing arrangements in 2012/13, slightly fewer jobs were carried out than
might usually be the case, so the actual budget shortfall might be expected to be more than
this.

14. If service users were to pay their contribution on the completion of work there is a risk
that they may refuse to pay. For this reason it is advised that, where possible, the charge is
made before the work is carried out, however, it is not always certain how much a particular job
will cost before it is carried out (where there is unexpected or unforeseen work, for example). In
a few instances, therefore, when the charge is more than the cost of the work being carried out,
the service user may pay more than the work will cost. In these cases, which will be relatively
few in number, it is proposed that the service user is reimbursed for the over-payment.

15. There will also be instances, however, where the work is urgent (such as leaking pipework),
when it would be unreasonable to expect the service user to wait while their payment is
processed before the work can be carried out. In these circumstances the service user will be
charged on the completion of the work. If they refused to pay it is hoped that writing to them
would hopefully encourage most to settle the debt as, given the relatively small sum involved, it

Page 180



might not be cost effective to pursue the debt through the usual channels. It needs to be
recognised, therefore, taking into account the size of the individual debt, that after all
reasonable measures have been exhausted to collect it, the debt may have to be written off.
However, in these circumstances it is recommended that no further work should be carried out
for clients until all previous invoices have been paid.

16. Consideration also needs to be given to the additional work resulting from the
implementation of the new arrangements. From the estimations above, collecting the charges
would equate to the administration associated with about 75 invoices a year, less than two a
week, which should be within the capacity of the Directorate to administer.

17. There is also a risk that providing a subsidised service for people who are not on
means-tested benefits will result in the budget being spent before the end of the financial year.
It is considered that additional funding from ECC and other agencies in 2013/14 is likely to be
sufficient to cover any shortfall in funding in 2013/14. However, additional funding would be
required from 2014/15 onwards and it is recommended that a request is made for a CSB
Growth Item of £5,000 per annum from April 2014. Expenditure on the Handyperson Service
budget is, and will continue to be, reviewed on an ongoing basis. As a result, indications of a
potential funding shortfall can be picked up quickly and appropriate measures taken to address
this, such as adjusting the levels of contributions and putting a hold on carrying out any more
work until further funds are available.

18. Although under a different budget heading within the General Fund, the budget increase
is likely to be compensated for from funds within the allocation for private sector housing
discretionary assistance. The introduction of ‘repayable assistance’ in July 2012, which was
intended to have the effect of recycling the available budget, has started to take effect. It is
anticipated that in the review of capital budgets in September 2013 it may be possible to reduce
the capital allocation for 2014/15 and make even further reductions in future years.

19. The aim of the Handyperson Service is to provide help to carry out maintenance and
repairs for C.A.R.E. clients who are older (i.e. over 60 and retired) and/or disabled. Age and
disability are considered to be ‘protected characteristics’ under the Equality Act 2010 and the
Council is required under its general equality duty to remove or minimise the disadvantages
experienced by groups that share protected characteristics and to take steps to meet their
needs. It is considered that the proposals in this report will contribute to fulfilling this duty.

20. The Handyperson Service was set up in the 1990’s, with an aim to help ‘older people in
the private sector’, although no definition was ever provided of what ‘older meant. Since that
time the age at which women can receive their state retirement pension has been converging
towards the male retirement age of 65 years and has now been further increased for both men
and women born after a certain date. It now seems timely to provide a definition of ‘older
person’ and it is recommended that this should be people of at least 60 years of age who are no
longer working and are in receipt of their state retirement or, where a couple, both are over 60
years of age, no longer working and in receipt of their state retirement pension.

21. The Council’'s contribution towards the Handyperson Service has remained relatively
unchanged for a number of years. In recent years, however, C.A.R.E. has been able to
supplement this by attracting additional grants, often from ECC. There is no certainty that
additional funds will be available in future, particularly in the light of cuts in ECC’s Housing
Related Support budget. It seems reasonable, therefore, for the Council to now increase the
Handyperson Service budget from £10,250 to £15,250 in order to continue providing this highly
valued service. In addition, in order to be able to offer the service to more vulnerable people in
private sector housing, it seems reasonable to expect service users to make a financial
contribution towards the service as suggested above.

Page 181



Resource Implications:

No additional funding in 2013/14 owing to the carry forward from previous years of under-spent
funding from ECC and other grant sources. As additional sources of funding may not be
available from April 2014, however, it is recommended that additional funding of £5,000 per
annum is made available from April 2014/15, by way of a CSB Growth Item, for the
Handyperson Service. A review will be carried out of the private sector housing discretionary
assistance budget towards the end of the year in the expectation that it will be possible to
reduce the capital budget for 2014/15 under this heading and since the introduction of
repayable grants in 2012, it may be possible to make further reductions in future years.

Legal and Governance Implications:
Local Government Act 2000; Regulatory Reform Order 2002;
Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The proposal is aimed at making the most of available funding to help older people in the
private sector have homes that are reasonably adapted for their needs and are safe and warm
to live in.

Consultation Undertaken:

The C.A.R.E. Advisory Panel and C.A.R.E. Service Users Forum have been consulted on the
proposals.
Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

There is a risk that providing a subsidised service for older people who are not on means-tested
benefits will result in the budget being spent before the end of the financial year. It is
considered that additional funding from ECC and other agencies in 2013/14 is likely to be
sufficient to cover any shortfall in funding in 2013/14. However, it is recommended that a CSB
Growth Item of £5,000 is made available from April 2014/15 for the Handyperson Service. A
review will be carried out of the Private Sector Housing Discretionary Assistance budget in
September 2013 in the expectation that it will be possible to reduce the Capital budget under
this heading and since the introduction of repayable grants in 2012, it may be possible to make
even further reductions in future years.

There is also a risk that service users might not be able to pay their contribution and the Council
might ultimately have to write off the debt. It is considered that this will not be a frequent
occurrence and that sending out of reminder letters to service users for late or non-payment will
often resolve the matter. It is also recommended that service users who fail to pay their
contribution are denied access to the service in future. However, given the small amounts
concerned, and the cost of pursuing the debts, the most cost-effective option in some cases will
be to write the debt off. The number of debts that arise in this way will be monitored and, if this
becomes a more than occasional occurrence, consideration will be given to implementing
additional measures to resolve the issue.

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for relevance to the Council’s
general equality duties, reveal any potentially adverse equality implications?

Yes. There may be difficulty in accessing the C.A.R.E. service for people with certain
disabilities and/or do not speak English as their first language. As C.A.R.E. is predominantly a
service for older and disabled people, a number of measures are already in place to improve
accessibility, such as making documents available in other formats and through regular publicity

Page 182



to special interest groups (such as the Alzheimer's Society). Home visits are carried out
wherever possible so that people do not have to overcome the practical difficulties in travelling
to the Civic Offices.

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment process, has a formal
Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

Yes. The Housing Directorate carried out Customer Impact Assessments (CIAs) of Private
Sector Housing functions, which includes C.A.R.E., in 2010.

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
The Private Sector Housing ClAs identified some possible adverse equality implications such as
difficulties accessing services for people who don’t speak English as their first language.
However, the Action Plans in the ClAs include actions to overcome any potential problems and
these measures have been put in place.

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 184



Agenda ltem 20
Report to the Cabinet

Report reference:  C-032-2013/14

Date of meeting 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
. District Council

Portfolio: Asset Management & Economic Development

Subject: Transfer of the District Council’s freehold interest in Waltham Abbey
Town Hall to the Town Council

Responsible Officer: Mark Scott (01992 564407).

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) To agree in principle the freehold transfer of the Waltham Abbey Town Hall to
Waltham Abbey Town Council at no cost, including a right of pre-emption as the
disposal is likely to contribute to the promotion or improvement of the economic and
social well being of the area;

(2) That the Director of Corporate Support Services in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder for Asset Management and Economic Development be given delegated authority
to negotiate final agreement of terms; and

(3) That further liability for insurance and repairs be transferred to Waltham Abbey
Town Council.

Executive Summary:

This Council and Waltham Abbey Town Council have been attempting for several years to
complete a transfer of Waltham Abbey Town Hall to the Town Council. Following a report by the
Working Group on Parishes it was resolved to transfer the freehold interest to the Town Council
subject to conditions. For various reasons it has not proved possible to complete the detailed
terms for this transaction. There remains a willingness to finalise the matter and the fact that the
District Council no longer require occupation of the building provides an opportunity to achieve
a clean transfer of title, subject to the usual protections for each party.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:
To achieve transfer of title to the Town Council.
Other Options for Action:

Not to complete the transfer and grant a lease for a term of years. This would not fulfil the spirit
of the earlier decision or the recent discussions on the matter.

Report:

1. Waltham Abbey Town Hall is an Edwardian brick building, situated in the centre of
Waltham Abbey. The site is shown by black verge on the attached plan and comprises a site
area of 0.3 acres. It includes public toilets managed by the Town Council. The internal area of
the Town Hall is approximately 8,200 sq ft comprising a suite of rooms and a public hall. Until
2013 the premises also contained the District Council’s local Information Desk and Cash Office.
Whilst not a statutory listed building it has local listed status and is situated in a Conservation

Area. Page 185



2. Waltham Abbey Town Council have been in occupation of the Town Hall since 1974
under short term leases and are currently holding over on a lease which expired on 31 March
1991 at a rent of £5 per annum. The terms of the lease required the Town Council to complete
an agreed programme of works over a 10 year period with an annual expenditure of £ 10,000
per annum. This lease had not been completed pending agreement of terms for the rooms
occupied by the District Council.

3. At its meeting on 30 September 1997, the former Policy and Co-ordinating Committee
received a report from the Working Group on Parishes. It resolved that subject to the consent of
the Secretary of State for the Environment, Transport and Regions and to a right of pre-
emption, to transfer the freehold of the Town Hall building to Waltham Abbey Town Council at
no cost. In addition the areas then used by the District Council were to be leased back to the
District Council for nil consideration.

4, On 30 January 2001, the former Resource Committee received a report from the then
Head of Planning Services and Head of Legal and Administration in order to agree the terms of
the transfer.

5. For various reasons on both sides it has not been possible to bring the matter to a
conclusion and only recently changes to District Council’'s own use and the impact on the
Town Council’'s own plans have facilitated progress.

6. Since the original decisions were made, albeit the fundamental principle of transfer to
the local council remains unchanged, two factors now make the negotiations and process much
more straightforward:

(@) during 2013 the District Council’s local Information Desk and Cash Office have
vacated the premises; and

(b) the Local Government Act 1972: General Disposal Consent (England) 2003
provisions have removed the need to seek the Secretary of State’'s consent for
disposals not exceeding £2,000,000, however the disposal must meet the following
criteria:

The local authority considers that the purpose for which the land is to be disposed is
likely to contribute to the achievement of any one or more of the following objects in
respect of the whole or any part of the area, or of all or any persons resident or present
in its area:

(i) the promotion or improvement of economic wellbeing;

(ii) the promotion or improvement of social well being; or

(iii) the promotion or improvement of environmental well being.
7. As both the District and Town Councils are of the view that a transfer satisfies (i) and (ii)
above, it is recommended that in principle that the freehold interest in Waltham Abbey Town
Hall be transferred to Waltham Abbey Town Council at no cost, including a right of pre-emption
in favour of the District Council. A right of pre-emption gives the District Council a right of first
refusal in the event of the Town Council wishing to dispose of the Town Hall.
8. In completing the details of the transfer there are always discussions in relation to
precise wording. For this reason authority is sought for the Director of Corporate Support
Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Asset Management and Economic
Development to be given delegated authority to negotiate final agreement of terms.

Resource Implications:

None. Page 186



Legal and Governance Implications:

Section 123 Local Government Act 1972 and General Disposal Consent (England) 2003.
Consent given for sale of land (covenants are deemed to be a sale for this purpose) can be
released for undervalue provided that they are for social economic or environmental reasons.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The Town Council will have the opportunity to invest in the building in accordance with their
plans and the wishes of their local residents.

Consultation Undertaken:
Waltham Abbey Town Council have been consulted regarding their views on the report.

Background Papers:

Policy and Co-ordinating Committee — 30" September 1997
Resource Committee — 30" January 2001

Cabinet 12 March 2012

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

The documentation will reflect that because of the nil consideration a pre-emption protects the
District Council should the Town Council wish to dispose of the Town Hall. Further, liability for
insurance and repairs will transfer to the Town Council.

Equality and Diversity
None identified

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially
adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
N/A

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been

addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
N/A

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 188



TOR GNP

ARGE TR~

Epping Forest
District Council
79 /
25 TOSQ -
27
N Gatehouse
27
37
3 %
w g
) o 72 255 s [
o \:« 51 4 “ 35 o
Moore House l‘:l © = 53 4: to
= SR I 39
5 © g l“\)
<
5 88 FB
=t
hy > Weirs
O Fn FB
& S
7 o Sluice
= 3 1 &8 Posts
5w @ The Rectory
“ /§ TCB
g
L O Abbd
Coul & PH
se- o?: oo
g 5 " 2 —]
% ez T © 40 O 0D OQg
% ¥ 16 |14
™ g 2 0 \Y
Bank S — 19.8 19.2m
36
egy | G4 €
L
i WALTHAM A
4 fol
Stone v ey & Town
. Hall
age MO
Pighe™ PO,
E O CHURCH
Cornmill Mews \/ % srREET
© ko] voe
- vginow S ° S 4
ourl
’ e Eg -
o 32 <
of [G)
ooR‘N\LL ﬂ
PH -~
Cornmill ~ Stream
LB
o
’f K PH
¢ o treay S ®
: g &
& 4
o © é{y S b@'?)
s = w Way
1 OO
\
Car Park D o
® &
&
Apbey
J \nam
' e st o o
Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
D D © © Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
PARADISE R{ EFDC License No: 100018534 2011
© Royal Mail Copyright & Database Right 2011
R ; ¢ | © Environment Agency, © Copyright
10 2 o Geo Perspectives, © Natural England 2011
Reproduced with the permission of Natural England
Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date
Civic Offices Transfer to Waltham Abbey Town Hall 08/08/13
E'gf;nStfg:ts o Town Council WAItham Abbey Scale
MG 482 . Essex 1:1250 @ A4
Drawing No.
Tel. 01992 564000 P age 189 Drawn By




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190



Agenda ltem 21

Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-033-2013/14 _

Date of meeting: 9 September 2013  Epping Forest
District Council

Portfolio: Leader of the Council

Subject: Directorate Restructuring

Responsible Officer: Glen Chipp (01992 564080).

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470).

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Cabinet notes the content of the attached draft report to Council from
the Head of Paid Service; and

(2) That the Cabinet provides responses prior to the end of the formal consultation
process on 15 September 2013, so that comments received can be included in the final
report submitted to Council on 26 September 2013.

Executive Summary:

The draft report to Council is included at Appendix 1. This is a draft version to solicit early
responses so that the final version presented to Council can incorporate any changes felt
necessary after considering feedback from the formal consultation.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The purpose of this report is to ask Cabinet to note the content of the attached draft report to
Council and provide feedback as part of the formal consultation process.

All staff have been briefed on the report and have been invited to provide their own detailed
feedback.

Other Options for Action:

To continue as we are with no restructure and no clearly defined Values and Behaviours -
Rejected on the basis that will result in reduction of services as financial constraints on Local
Government worsen.

Impose a top down reorganisation and set of Values without involvement and engagement of
staff - Rejected on the basis that the organisation is not currently in crisis so shock treatment
is unnecessary. Additionally wider involvement invariably improves motivation and
commitment to delivery of corporate goals.

Choose a more conservative option - Rejected on the basis that this would merely postpone
the inevitable and would undoubtedly lead to even more radical changes later.

Page 191



Report:

1. In order to meet the tough challenges facing Local Government and drive cultural
change in the organisation, it is necessary to restructure the organisation and develop a set
of Corporate Values and Behaviours that is widely supported by the staff and members.
These two things are complimentary and it is unlikely that real cultural change can be
achieved without implementing both.

Restructure

2. Detailed discussions were held with all of the senior management team, as those
individuals most impacted by the restructure proposals. This was an iterative process starting
first with Directors and then moving on to involve Assistant Directors.

3. It is important to note that there isnt one correct solution to any structural
reorganisation because it is possible to design many different workable structures. The
principles involved in developing the current proposals are:

(1) to reduce the number of silos (functional departments under the control of a
single Director); and

(i) to group together similar types of services in a more logical structure.
4, This should streamline the organisation by reducing the number of interfaces between
departments thereby improving communication, reducing duplication and minimising the

potential for misalignment of priorities.

Behaviours and Values

5. A set of Corporate Values has been developed from the bottom up by involving over
100 staff selected at random from all departments and all levels of seniority.

6. A programme of workshops led by the Chief Executive was delivered with the help of
external facilitators and internal HR professionals. Working with groups of around 12 people,
various team building exercises were completed and the staff discussed the importance of
adopting a consistent set of organisational values. Most importantly the groups set out what
they regarded as the key values and behaviours for the organisation.

7. The output from all of the groups was compared and a set of the top 5 values was
prepared. There was a high degree of consistency between different groups and the
feedback from staff involved in the process has been overwhelmingly positive. The
definitions of Values and Behaviours that were developed have been tested with staff not
involved in their initial preparation. This ensured that the definitions were drafted in terms
which are readily understood and relevant to staff in their various roles.

8. Directors and Assistant Directors were actively involved in the process from an early
stage. Political groups have been briefed by the Chief Executive and Cabinet was regularly
informally updated on progress.

Resource Implications:

At this point, final detailed calculations have not been included because the proposed

structure is still the subject of consultation. Clearly if further changes to the structure are
contemplated costs will change.

Page 192



The final report to Council will, of course, include a detailed business case for the proposed
option.

At this stage it is envisaged that the restructure will involve three voluntary redundancies and
one potential compulsory redundancy. Initial figures have been compiled for redundancy
costs, strain on the pension fund for all those staff potentially affected.

External Consultants, Gatenby Sanderson, have also been engaged to benchmark the salary
levels that the new roles could attract.

This cabinet report is merely asking for feedback on the proposals prior to a decision report
being submitted to Council. Consequently there is no financial implication arising from the
recommendation in this report. That said, it is anticipated that by managing recent vacancies
at Assistant Director level and reducing the number of senior management positions, the
costs of restructuring will pay back within 12 months through on-going salary savings.

In January 2013 unfilled vacancies with annual revenue costs of over £400k were eliminated
from the establishment as an initial step in restructuring the organisation. If these savings are
taken into account, the anticipated payback period is significantly reduced.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The Council must comply with relevant employment legislation. The final report to Council will
be formally vetted by the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, internal HR professionals
and potentially by legal advisors as necessary.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

In and of itself the restructure and the adoption of Corporate Values and Behaviours will not
impact the range of service delivery. The proposal does not contemplate any reduction in the
scope or nature of services.

The proposed Corporate Values and Behaviours do not conflict with the Council’'s Safer,
Cleaner and Greener objectives.

Consultation Undertaken:
Wide informal consultation has been undertaken from an early stage involving:-
i.  Senior Management (Directors, Assistant Directors including Statutory Officers)
ii.  All staff briefings (All staff have received a copy of the draft report)
iii.  Union representatives
iv. ~ Cabinet Members
v.  Political Groups (Independent members were offered the same opportunity)

vi.  Directorate Restructuring Panel — all party panel convened to advise on restructuring
and be responsible for recommending appointment/redundancies of Chief Officers.

vii.  Gatenby Sanderson — Recruitment Specialists engaged to benchmark salaries.

Page 193



Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

Any restructuring involves a degree of risk. Staff morale can be impacted and if the
transition between old structure and new is not resourced and managed effectively,
performance may be impacted.

Efforts have been made to mitigate this risk through early wide consultation and
engagement with staff. Generally the vast majority of staff recognise the need for
change, have engaged positively and support the proposals.

The implementation has also been managed over a 6 month period to allow time for
reflection and to check for obvious problems. Adequate resource will be made
available to manage the transition.

Whenever potential compulsory redundancies are involved there is potential for those
staff impacted to challenge the process.

Efforts have been made to mitigate this risk by involving the senior management in
both the organisational design and the agreed process for appointing candidates to
roles in the new structure.

The Council is committed to a fair and open process and will take advice to ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and Council policies. An all-party Directorate
Restructuring Panel has been formed to manage the appointment process.

The decision to exclude external candidates from the process reflects both the view
that EFDC has sufficient internal talent to populate the new structure and a wish to be
fair to current employees.

Equality & Diversity

An Equality Impact Assessment has not yet been carried out, as this report forms part of the
consultation process. However, an assessment will be carried out and reported to the Council
as part of the final report.

Page 194



Draft 2

August 2013
Report to the Council
Consultation Document
Statutory Report of the Head of Paid Service Date: 26 September 2013

DIRECTORATE RESTRUCTURING
Recommendations:

(1) That the proposed Directorate Structure for the Authority and the
associated services and other responsibilities for each new Directorate be
approved as set out in the report of the Head of Paid Service for
implementation with effect from 1 April 2014;

(2) That, with effect from 1 April 2014, the following existing posts be deleted
from the establishment:

Deputy Chief Executive

Director of Corporate Support Services
Director of Environment & Street Scene
Director of Finance & ICT

Director of Housing

Director of Planning & Economic Development
Assistant to the Chief Executive;

(3) That, with effect from 1 April 2014, the following 4 new posts of director are
added to the establishment in substitution for those listed in recommendation
(2) above, namely:

Director of Communities
Director of Governance and Law
Director of Place

Director of Resources;

(4) That, for the purposes of recruiting to the 4 new positions set out in
recommendation (3) above, appointments be made from within a “ring fence”
comprising the current post holders in respect of the present posts listed in
recommendation (2) above;

(5) That, as recommended by the Directorate Restructuring Panel, Council
agree to terminate the employment of TBA, on the grounds of voluntary
redundancy/early retirement, the costs of which are set out in table TBA;

(6) That a further report be submitted by the Directorate Restructuring Panel
on the termination of employment and voluntary redundancy/retirement in
respect of any existing Chief Officer who is not successful in being appointed
to a post as a result of the “ring fenced” recruitment process;

Page 195 1



(7) That the salary ranges applicable to the new Director positions be approved
on the basis of market salary comparison provided by Messrs
GatenbySanderson and considered and supported by the Directorate
Restructuring Panel;

(8) That the detailed job descriptions and person specifications etc for the new
Director posts approved by the Directorate Restructuring Panel in accordance
with its terms of reference be noted;

(9) That the following statutory designations be allocated by the Head of Paid
Service to a suitably-qualified post holder after appointments have been made
and in accordance with statutory requirements governing those roles, namely:

= Chief Finance Officer under section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972
= Monitoring Officer under section 5 of the Local Government Act 1989

and that supplementary job descriptions for those roles be prepared by the
Head of Paid Service based on the Constitution of the Council;

(10) That the designation of Deputy Chief Executive be allocated by the Head of
Paid Service to the most suitable post-holder among the 4 new Directors after
the appointments have been made;

(11) The allowance applicable to the statutory and Deputy Chief Executive
designations be approved on the basis of the information provided by Messrs
GatenbySanderson and considered and supported by the Directorate
Restructuring Panel;

(12) That after 1 April 2014 appointments be made to the positions of Deputy
Chief Financial Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officer with supplementary job
descriptions based on the Council’s constitution to reflect the duties of those
roles and, in accordance with Sections 40 and 41 of the Local Government Act
1972, a Returning Officer;

Assistant Director Posts

(13) That the following existing Assistant Director posts be deleted from the
establishment:

Assistant Director, Democratic;

Assistant Director, Community and Culture;

Assistant Director, Human Resources;

Assistant Director, Facilities Management & Emergency Planning;
Assistant Director, Legal Services & Licensing;

Assistant Director, Benefits;

Assistant Director, Revenues;

Assistant Director, Accountancy;

Assistant Director, ICT;

Assistant Director, Development Control;

Assistant Director, Forward Planning, Conservation & Policy;
Assistant Director, Building Control;

Assistant Director, Housing Property;

Assistant Director, Housing Operations;

Page 196 2



Assistant Director, Private Sector & Resources;
Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods;

Assistant Director, Technical Services;

Assistant Director, Performance and Operations; and
Chief Internal Auditor

(14) That with effect from 1 April 2014, the following 15 new or amended
Assistant Director posts be created, plus the Chief Internal Auditor:

Assistant Director, Human Resources;
Assistant Director, Benefits;

Assistant Director, Revenues;

Assistant Director, Accountancy;

Assistant Director ICT & Facilities Management;
Assistant Director, Democratic Services;
Assistant Director, Legal Services;

Assistant Director, Development Management;
Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods;

Assistant Director, Technical Services;
Assistant Director, Forward Planning & Economic Development;
Assistant Director, Housing Property;

Assistant Director, Housing Operations;
Assistant Director, Private Sector & Resources;
Assistant Director, Community Services; and

Chief Internal Auditor.

(15) That post holders for the present Assistant Director positions be
assimilated without interviews to the new Assistant Director posts set out in
recommendation (14) above with effect from 1 April 2014 as follows:

Present Post

Assimilated to

Assistant Director, Human Resources

Assistant Director, Human Resources

Assistant Director, Benefits

Assistant Director, Benefits

Assistant Director, Revenues

Assistant Director, Revenues

Assistant Director, Accountancy

Assistant Director, Accountancy

Assistant Director, Democratic
Services

Assistant Director, Democratic
Services

Assistant Director, Legal Services &
Licensing

Assistant Director, Legal Services

Assistant Director, Development
Control

Assistant Director Development
Management

Assistant Director, Environmental and
Neighbourhoods

Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods

Assistant Director, Technical Services

Assistant Director, Technical Services

Assistant Director, Forward Planning,
Conservation & Policy

Assistant Director, Forward Planning
& Economic Development

Assistant Director, Housing Property

Assistant Director, Housing Property

Assistant Director, Housing
Operations

Assistant Director, Housing
Operations

Assistant Director, Private Sector &
Resources

Assistant Director, Private Sector &
Resources

Assistant Director, Community and
Culture

Assistant Director, Community
Services

Page 197




| Chief Internal Auditor | Chief Internal Auditor

(16) That, for the purposes of recruiting suitable persons to the following new
Assistant Director, appointments be made from within a ring fence comprising
the post holders for the following posts:

Ring Fence Post New Post

Assistant Director, Facilities Assistant Director ICT & Facilities
Management & Emergency Planning; Management
Assistant Director, ICT

(17) That the job descriptions, person specifications etc for the new Assistant
Director positions be delegated to the relevant Director once appointed.

(18) That the salaries applicable to the 15 new Assistant Director positions be
approved in accordance with the Council’s internal job evaluation scheme and
assimilated to the appropriate salary range operated by the Council as set out
below: and

Post Salary Range

Assistant Director, Human Resources

Assistant Director, Benefits

Assistant Director, Revenues

Assistant Director, Accountancy

Assistant Director, Democratic
Services

Assistant Director, Legal Services

Assistant Director Development
Management

Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods

Assistant Director, Technical Services

Assistant Director, Forward Planning
& Economic Development

Assistant Director, Housing Property

Assistant Director, Housing
Operations

Assistant Director, Private Sector &
Resources

Assistant Director, Community
Services

Chief Internal Auditor

Financial Appraisal

(19) That the financial appraisal in the Head of Paid Service’s report showing
net DDF, General Fund and HRA (TBA) expenditure arising from the
implementation on 1 April 2014 (including consultants’ fees (TBA) of the new
Directorate Structure be approved and appropriate provision made in the
2014/15 budget and subsequent years.

Further comments to be included by the Director of Finance and ICT.

Page 198 4



Introduction

1. The restructuring is part of a transformation programme aimed at changing the
culture of the Council. Whilst the new structure will generate savings its prime
purpose is not to maximise day one savings. Rather the new structure seeks to align
the departmental hierarchy with the delivery of the Council’s key strategic objectives.
The reduction from 7 to 4 groupings will help reduce the number of silos, effectively
minimising the potential for service failures at the interface between Directorates.
The structure will also provide sufficient senior management capacity to drive cultural
transformation of the Council.

2. The proposed structure will group services as follows;
Resources Directorate:

3. Focussed on management of internal resources to optimise the efficiency of
support services and the financing arrangements of the Council. Notable changes
from the existing structure includes:

a) the combination of facilities management and ICT functions to facilitate a
fundamental review of the Council’'s work spaces;

b) the inclusion of Human Resources/Payroll/Health and Safety/Training,
Business Administration/Processes and Reprographics

Law & Governance Directorate

4. Focussed on legal, democratic and a number of regulatory services of the
Council and management of independent audit. Notable changes from the existing
structure include:

a) the provision of internal audit, performance management, FOI and
democratic services;

b) the management of development control, building control and planning
enforcement.

Place Directorate

5. Focussed on the delivery of front line services in the neighbourhood and
developing policies for economic growth and place shaping. Notable changes from
the existing structure include:

a) licensing functions combined in one structure;

b) leisure management and public health and wellbeing managed by one
Assistant Director;

c) Countrycare, fleet operations and depots managed by the Assistant
Director responsible for the bulk of the Council’s fleet and waste services;

d) amalgamation of disparate strands of economic activity into an Economic
Development function to be managed in the interim by Chief Executive.
(Interim arrangements will be in place until the position of the Assistant
Director, Forward Planning and Economic Development is clarified).

Communities Directorate

6. Focussed on community development and safeguarding and the provision of

Page 199 5



decent homes for our communities. Notable changes from the existing structures
include:

a) safer communities, arts and sports development brought under the
Director responsible for Housing;
b) PR and communications resource consolidated in one corporate function.

7. A copy of the details of the proposed structure can be found at appendix 1.

8. Appointment of Statutory Officer roles (Section 151 and Monitoring Officer) and
the Deputy Chief Executive functions will be made once the Director appointments
have been made. Depending on the qualifications of the successful candidates the
statutory officer roles may need to be fulfilled by the next tier of suitably qualified
professionals.

Values & Behaviours

9. Re-stacking the organisation to reduce the number of silos and collect similar
functions under a leaner management structure is unlikely to drive cultural change in
the organisation in and of itself. Consequently a parallel project has been undertaken
to identify key corporate values and associated behaviours which provide a clear
vision of the service delivery standards that our organisation aspires to. This project
has involved over 120 staff from all levels and departments within the Council. A full
copy the proposed corporate values and associated behaviours is included at
appendix 2

10. In short we have identified five value themes:

One Council
Trust
Performance
Customer
Innovation

11. The general thrust of the values will focus staff on delivering on our promises,
designing services that customers’ value, dealing openly and honestly with people
from the point of contact and actively seeking new ways of doing things.

Directorate Restructuring Panel

12. The Panel consists of cross party members and the Head of Paid Service.
Members of the Panel have reviewed the draft proposals and have been invited to
feed back their views to assist the Head of Paid Service in preparing the final report.
The Panel will take an active role in the recruitment of the Chief Officer posts.

Timeline

13. If the proposed structure is agreed, it is proposed that the recruitment process
for Directors will take place in October/November. If possible the appointment and
redundancy recommendations of the Directorate Restructuring Panel will be
submitted to Council on 4 November, if this is not possible they will be submitted on
16 December. The Director appointments will take effect from 1 April 2014.

14. The advantage of agreeing the appointments ahead of the implementation date
means the Directors can be involved in appointment process for Assistant Directors

Page 200 6



where necessary. In addition it will give them time to discuss any issues regarding
changes to reporting lines, including reviewing team objectives, managing handover
of work, reviewing administrative support, and directorate processes. It is proposed
to agree appointments to the Assistant Director roles in January 2014, which will also
take effect from 1 April 2014.

Service Directors

15. Within the Council’s current structure there are 5 Directorates and 2 ‘Offices’ (for
the Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive). As set out in the introduction of the
report it is proposed to assemble the Council’s functions under one of 4 Directorates;

Directorate for Resources;
Directorate for Governance and Law;
Directorate of Place; and

Directorate of Communities.

16. Each will be headed by a Director and service functions will be managed by
Assistant Directors.

Recruitment Process

17. The Director posts have changed significantly as the Council’s functions are
now grouped under 4 Directorates rather than 7 (albeit 2 service areas were not
considered directorates under the previous structure) and as a result there are no
reasonable matches for assimilation purposes. It is for this reason that assimilation
will not apply and it is proposed that a recruitment process is undertaken whereby the
Directors/Chief Officers apply. for the Director role(s) they are interested in.

18. As Council will be aware the Directorate Restructuring Panel has been
delegated, in its terms of reference, to participate in the recruitment process to the
Director roles. It is proposed to carry out the recruitment process in October 2013
and in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, the Panel will make its
appointment recommendations to Council at its meeting on TBA.

19.< Any redundancies that are required as a result of the recruitment process, the
Panel will also make the required recommendations to the same Council meeting, as
set out in the Constitution.

Voluntary Redundancies/Early Retirements

20. Directors/Chief Officers were formally asked to express their interest in
exploring the possibility of voluntary redundancy/early retirement, on a without
prejudice basis. The Panel in accordance with the Council’s Constitution considered
the requests and make the following recommendations to Council:

Name Job Title Costs

XXXXX

21. ltis proposed that the redundancies are implemented on the 31 March 2014.
Job Description

22. Directors were consulted on the 4 job descriptions and person specifications.
The Panel also considered the job descriptions at its meeting on xxx. They agreed

Page 201 4




that the Directors should continue to provide a wide corporate and strategic role,
which will become more important as the management team works with me to deliver
on a wide ranging change programme to improve performance and customer service.

23. In addition to the corporate and strategic role of Directors they will have
responsibilities for the overarching management of service and customer delivery.
These responsibilities have also been reflected in the job descriptions.

24. Council is asked to agree the Director job descriptions.
Salary

25. As the Director posts sit at the second tier of the Council’s structure, the Panel
agreed that there was no advantage to be gained by carrying out an expensive
external evaluation process. With agreement of the Panel the Council commissioned
GatenbySanderson to undertake a salary benchmark exercise for the Director posts.
They considered current market rates rather than historical salaries and provided
TBA

26. The Panel recommend TBA. The salary will be inclusive of inner fringe
allowance and Evening Committee Allowance as is the case with the Chief Executive
salary arrangements.

27. In addition to salary information, GatenbySanderson were asked to consider
allowances for the statutory and Deputy Chief Executive roles. The Panel
recommended TBA which is also inclusive of Evening Committee Allowance.

Statutory Delegations/Deputy Chief Executive Roles

28. To ensure fairness and flexibility in the structure it is proposed that the statutory
roles of the Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer are not assigned to specific
posts. This will allow officers to separately apply for these roles as part of this
process. If future vacancies occur at this level it could be decided that the statutory
role is undertaken at Assistant Director level.

29.< ltis also proposed that the Deputy Chief Executive function will not be assigned
to a specific post, allowing the officers, in the ringfence the opportunity to be
considered for this role. For practical reasons this particular role will remain at
Director level only.

Assistant Directors

30. Within the Council’s current structure there are 18 Assistant Directors (excluding
the Chief Internal Auditor) across the 5 Directorates and 2 ‘Offices’ (for the Chief
Executive and Deputy Chief Executive). As set out in the introduction of the report it
is proposed to assemble the Council’s functions under one of 4 Directorates reducing
the number of Assistant Directors to 15 (excludes the Chief Internal Auditor).

31. If the proposed structure is agreed the following posts will be redundant;

Assistant Director, Building Control (Planning and Economic Development);
Assistant Director, Performance and Operations (Environment and Street
Scene);

Assistant Director, ICT; and

Assistant Director, Facilities Management and Emergency Planning)

Page 202 8



32. The Assistant Directors Building Control and Performance and Operations are
vacant and therefore there are no associated redundancy costs regarding these
posts.

Recruitment Process

33. Under the Council’s existing Human Resources policies and practices there is a
requirement to consider the assimilation or ring fencing/redeployment of existing staff
as a priority in restructuring situations. There are a large number of Assistant
Directors which are closely aligned to the new Assistant Director roles and there is a
reasonable expectation of assimilations into the new positions.

34. The Council is therefore asked to note the principle that the assimilation of
postholders will take place wherever there is a similarity of existing and new roles, or
where this is not the case that appropriate ring fenced arrangements are drawn up in
consultation with the trade unions and in accordance with Council policy. The
adoption of this approach leads to the following direct assimilations;

(a) Assistant Director, Human Resources — existing Assistant Director, Human
Resources, Paula Maginnis;
(b) Assistant Director, Benefits — existing Assistant Director, Benefits, Janet

Twinn;

(c) Assistant Director, Revenues — existing Assistant Director, Revenues, Rob
Pavey;

(d) Assistant Director, Accountancy — existing Assistant Director, Accountancy,
Peter Maddock;

(e) Assistant Director, Democratic Services — existing Assistant Director,
Democratic Services, Graham Lunnun;

(f) Assistant Director, Legal Services — existing Assistant Director, Legal
Services, Alison Mitchell;

(g) Assistant Director Development Management — existing Assistant Director,
Development Control, Nigel Richardson;

(h) Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods — existing Assistant Director
Environmental and Neighbourhoods, Jim Nolan;

(i) Assistant Director, Technical Services — existing Assistant Director Technical,
Qasim Durrani;

() Assistant Director, Forward Planning & Economic Development — existing
Assistant Director Kassandra Polyzoides;

(k) Assistant Director, Housing Property — existing Assistant Director, Housing
property, Paul Pledger;

(I) Assistant Director, Housing Operations — existing Assistant Director, Housing
Operations, Roger Wilson;

(m) Assistant Director, Private Sector & Resources — existing Assistant Director,
Private Sector & Resources, Lyndsay Swan;

(n) Assistant Director, Community Services — existing Assistant Director,
Community Services, Julie Chandler; and

(o) Chief Internal Auditor — existing Chief Internal Auditor, Brian Bassington.

35. Council is asked to note the overall approach, the assimilations described above
and to note that where an Assistant Director post is not filled by direct assimilation
other arrangements (such as ring fencing or voluntary redundancy/early retirement)
may apply depending on the position of the individual post holders.

Page 203 9



36. Itis proposed that the assimilation/ring fenced arrangements for Assistant
Directors will commence in January 2014 once the Director appointments have been
agreed by Council on TBA.

Job Descriptions

37. Job Descriptions for the Assistant Directors will be subject to job evaluation
under the NJC Scheme which has been implemented by the Council. It is proposed
to use the same format as the current Job Descriptions whereby that in addition to
service and functional responsibilities, all Assistant Director posts will contain a
common element which reflects amongst other matters the Council’s commitment to
improving performance and corporate working.

38. The internal job evaluation process will determine whether Assistant Director
roles are graded at either 11 or 12.

Further comments maybe required if it is necessary to amend the Council’s payline.
Salary

39. As with the Director roles, the Council commissioned GatenbySanderson to
undertake a salary benchmark exercise for the Assistant Director posts.

Further information to be included here depending on out come of benchmark
exercise.

Other roles

40. Following the appointment of Directors and assimilation of the Assistant
Directors, they will be asked to apply for the following roles:

(a) Deputy Chief Financial Officer,;
(b) Deputy Monitoring Officer; and
(c) Returning Officer.

41.< The Panel will consider the appointments to the roles in (a) and (b) and the
Head of Paid Service will appoint role (c).

Consider an allowance for the deputy roles.

42. The Returning Officer is subject to a fee arrangement which is not set by the
Council.

Costs/savings

TBA

Consultation

All Directors and Assistant Directors were consulted with at an early stage of the
formation of the proposed structure as was the Directorate Restructuring Panel and
the Trade Unions. All staff received a draft copy of this report with the associated
attachments and were formally consulted over a period of 45 days through August

and September. Their comments were considered by the Head of Paid Service and
incorporated where appropriate.

Page 204 10



If appropriate, specific comments following the consultation process to be included
here.

Page 205

11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 206



Giovw 1smbngy

VQNETBA B SOIBIST
s, 184G 1eso SUONRIAG0 1084
SOS of BB YD L siodac G
. suonRId0 v Q0ZIaK g
UGNBULOMY AB(Y HWIDU0YS PUET POIBURLEIIOT |\ oy asogerg mﬁ“._n.wc.ﬁw__ adeaspue
GupienBajeg LGN B td " aiealinines {iGapens B UoNiBnIBSEld B3IL
[oUnGD yInG,  SIUEID B Kaifod aminouogiy g o) Buisusory suogediddy puey SROIAIBS JOQIIBW
adued Bunos SBWOH Weg  SURMO Busnoy : SOUNIN SPUNCISY gy Aovaliag - PREVILLIGD “Boy suondaly soydestiordex
SOOWIAG WIS sacnOSaY it SouUBLBIUIEN ueg) shemybiyy BumaRBAL 100D Butpiing poddng mmD SIUBLIAE BOIOALY [ITETEE
‘A3 spods fSuisnoy  Bushoy Haleusys  Buipyng busnoH vodsyely WONBIAQINY ROC1Y 2 UllEsH SiaRg LE:THG AT g sjueidwos songenby  SeoMJeS Bupung USROG P LuApY
aag sy KEPY poigesic } Jau ooy - velg piesny  0ELIRI) pugy spoownoquBlan uonzbinseau Buuueld g spuadwos 04 O Samoes SAEINELY] RoRs 7 uieeH
‘A2 AptnuIisony Binsnoyy  Buisnoy) suonun)  soususuEW B | IOIRINHO-0D) Busypey ;2) wwesl uouAlr prisgy eleiodog 2B OTT VOIS0 BB SUCHEDAMNUNINISD ) AUBNOIY  Laaooey e AEr00ey 108G fiesdeg
SOMUINWLKRD JaIES  JORES Bleald  PIoipUs BUSnoH  syeday BulsTon | iewswtonALg 1O S1sem 1By aunsiey pnY RG] WAWERHINE  soaIag R 10W SouBULOIRG L B ANSERL  gamueaay SHoIeg uH
S0IN0SAY _ ~a B
sa0M8g ) suaeedy ; 2EBR00T 5p0aY e SBANIBG LT
Apunanwsos 00IS BusnoH mwﬁo._m : g Buwesd seolasy -snotuBlen DUDRY B A30 SEUNBG RBIHOUIBC SaqEEe Asugiieaoy sanuBATY sieueg UBLAL
j UISTOH : BB L ; {ewou) 1090 feBa i 2 1ot 190 d
03HC BjeAlg J0pPBIK 0P8Ia : presae soxnan 100e] e A Jres 08310 o ICE9NG 155y Fo 5y ] IGPRHG
iS58y JoRenG 1SSy stsSy : 0P80 1s1ey TSy sissy 185% essy sy sIeSY IS8y
issy : 58y
: : m m _
: ' { i
; . H H
: : ! m
_ ! S N S ok EJ—
m “ :
i . '
W : : N~
_ ; : o
! : : * Al
| : m )
: Mg pue (a1
SSRIUNLILOT JO 101330 B JO Iojoall :
o § ia : SOUBLIBAOE) O 1010810 $BOINOSTY] JO 20108}
;

AR AY

T OKIQNIJY

{201ag pled 50 PEOH)
SALNOAXZ JBIUD




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



Appendix 2
EFDC Corporate Values & Behaviours Draft V4

Behaviour feedback suggestions to demonstrate the Values

TRUST

We will be open and honest with each other and our customers. We will treat
everyone with respect and take responsibility for our actions.

1. We will be open and honest in our dealings with each other, our residents and
customers.

2. We will listen, share information and trust in each other.

3. We will give and receive constructive and consistent feedback to each other.
4. We will take responsibility for our actions, learn from our mistakes and support
each other.

Unacceptable Behaviours

1. We won’'t make promises we know we can’t keep.

2. We won't discriminate against people by treating them unfairly or unequally.

3. We won't tolerate a ‘blame culture’.

4. We won't disclose private information or confidences (unless required to do so by
law).

PERFORMANCE

We will take pride in our work and celebrate our achievements. We will learn from our
mistakes and always do what we say we will do.

1. We will continually develop our skills and be willing to learn.
2. We will strive to achieve excellence in everything we do.

3. We will communicate clearly and use plain English.

4. \We will take pride in our work and lead by example.

Unacceptable Behaviours
1. We won’'t make excuses for not delivering.
2. We won'’t base decisions solely on emotion and assumptions, instead of facts.

3. We won't accept missed targets without good reason.
4. We won't allow personal interest or favoritism to affect our judgment.

Page 209



ONE TEAM

We will work together as One Council, supporting each other and our partners to
achieve better results for everyone.

Our Expected Behaviours

1. We will encourage each other and build good working relationships.

2. We will recognise everyone is different and value each others contributions.
3. We will work together to help everyone understand and achieve the council’s
goals.

4. We will keep a sense of humour, and set out to make each day enjoyable.

Unacceptable Behaviours

1. We won’t work in isolation or pursue our personal agendas.
2. We won't be inconsiderate or fail to give credit to others.

3. We won't be territorial.

4. We won't do the bare minimum just to get by.

CUSTOMER

We will put the customer at the heart of everything we do, providing services that are
tailored to the different needs of our communities

Our Expected Behaviours

1. We will listen, try to understand and respond to what is important to our customers.
2. We will maintain positive and caring attitudes

3. We will accept that everyone has different needs and offer realistic solutions
wherever possible.

4. We will keep our customers informed of any changes and decisions that affect
them.

Unacceptable Behaviours
1. We won't tell people what they need without consulting or listening to them.
2. We won’t assume the customer knows less information than we do.

3. We won't use jargon deliberately to confuse or demean people.
4. We won't be patronising, rude or dismiss complaints without investigation.

Page 210



INNOVATION
We will seek new ways of working to improve and change to meet new challenges.
Our Expected Behaviours

1. We will give people the confidence to suggest new ideas.

2. We will encourage and support creative thinking, learn from the experience of
others and share best practice.

3. We will try new ideas and review existing ways of doing things.

4. We will accept that not every new idea will work.

Unacceptable Behaviours
1. We won't resist change because ‘we have always done it this way’.
2. We won't create obstacles to block change.

3. We won't stay as we are for an easy life’.
4. We won’t take unnecessary risks when trying new things.

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 212



Agenda Item 24

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 213



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216



Agenda Iltem 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 222



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 226



Agenda Iltem 26

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 230



	Agenda
	8 Corporate Plan Key Objectives 2013/14 - Quarter 1 Progress
	C-021 Key Objectives 2013-14 Q1 Progress App I

	9 Development Strategy - Council Housebuilding Programme
	C-031 EppingForestDistrictCouncilDevStrategy
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixA
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixBPipelineReport
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixC EFDCInvestmentReportTemplate
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixD EconomicAssumptions
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixE OnsiteManagementProcess
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixF CoreFileRequirementsUSEPDF
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixG TermsofReference
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendixH ProgrammeandPerformanceReportFormat
	C-031 HousebuildingAppendix I ListofSites

	10 Epping Hall - Sports and Leisure Feasibility Study
	Epping Hall Feasibility Study, 19/08/2013 Cabinet Agenda Planning Group

	11 Limes Farm Centre
	12 Repairs Management Contract Renewal
	13 Proposed Refurbishment of Bakers Lane Toilets Epping
	14 Methodology for Determining Objectively Assessed Housing Need
	C-025 OAHN Methodology App I

	15 Assets of Community Value
	C-026 Community Assets App I
	C-026 Community Assets App II

	16 Capital Budget Allocation for Replacement of Pay and Display Machines
	17 Section 106 Contribution from the Redevelopment of St John's School, Epping
	C-028 St Johns School S106 App I

	18 Replacement of Waste & Recycling Containers and the use of Prudential Borrowing Powers for the new Waste Management Contract
	19 Introduction of Charges for C.A.R.E Handyperson Service
	20 Transfer of the District Council's Freehold Interest in Waltham Abbey Town Hall to the Town Council
	C-032 Transfer of WA Town Hall App I

	21 Directorate Restructuring
	C-033 Directorate Retructuring App I
	C-033 Directorate Restructuring App II
	C-033 Directorate Restructuring App III

	24 Capital Allocation for Installation of new CCTV Camera Equipment at Langston Road Depot
	25 Site of Sir Winston Churchill Public House, The Broadway, Loughton
	C-035 Sir Winston Churchill PH App I

	26 Langston Road Retail Park

